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hEFEYHRHE
FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
27
(Restated)
(7ENote1)  (#Note1) (3Note1) (#Note1)

BEFT  BEFT  BEFr  BETrT | BEFr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
E34 Results
ﬁ%fﬂﬁﬁ/ﬁﬂ Profit before taxation 593,585 472,187 509,973 472,459 29,761
Frig® () /R Income tax (expense)/credit (22,099) (36,125) (14,042) (15,490) 9,648
KATRE Profit attributable to
FEft A shareholders of the Company 571,486 436,062 495,931 456,969 39,409
AN TR REGREF
PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
ﬁ(?TT‘lg‘:USAND
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39,409
0 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
] WA, () nHE
AR THOUSAND NATURE OF PROFIT/(LOSS)
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0 \ R
(50,000)
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Ordinary business H ¥ ¥7& Dilution in shareholding B #E 55

4 B{E&EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited



hF R EE
FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
(831) (E3)
(Restated) (Restated)
(7ENote2) (FENote2) (#Note2) (7 Note2)
BT JBEFT JBIEFT BT T BYEFT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$’000
&E Assets
MmE - EE RS Property, plant and equipment 13,279 12,396 14,849 14,586 14,109
FHEEE Right-of-use assets 13,955 13,483 14,158 13,628 13,099
REME Investment properties 159,415 173,113 175,626 173,342 172,329
NG| Associates 5,532,229 6,117,020 6,778,417 6,550,270 | 6,442,096
BATES AR 2ERZ Financial assets at fair value through
MeRERE other comprehensive income 423,343 361,001 805,914 606,943 630,093
RE SR N EMERIRE  Debt investments at amortised cost 3,115 = = = 156,174
ERRZRENRITESR  Pledged and restricted bank deposits 280,782 325,816 111,733 352,072 354,542
ELFEMEE Deferred income tax assets 451 170 19 = =
REBRAHEE Insurance contract assets = = = = 1,461
BRRAGEE Reinsurance contract assets = - 5,160 11,738 15,019
EEREH AR Deferred acquisition costs 28,905 40,440 = = =
RER B Insurance receivable 23,025 63,218 = - =
BRBEE Reinsurance assets 8,976 8,135 = = -
EEERENZEERK  Credit-impaired loans to customers and
FEUFI &, interest receivable 20,981 21,034 17,979 15,921 15,102
EUH—FHEDRRE Dividend receivable from an associate = 4,754 = 4,527 =
HibEUMERTE » BI5 K&  Other debtors, prepayments and
jiign deposits 25,087 45,614 14,553 3,399 5,573
AT Y o 2 B TR Current income tax recoverable = = 35 = =
RATEEBIERTIBRE  Financial assets at fair value through
SREE profit or loss 97,822 369,978 742,997 742,080 626,443
EHER Term deposits 710,268 530,690 356,369 444,095 323,270
HERBEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 361,594 319,002 467,149 236,256 415,415
BEE Total assets 7,703,227 8,405,864 9,504,958 9,168,857 9,184,725
s Equity
[ Share capital 1,715,377 1,715,377 1,715,377 1,715,377 1,715,377
HibfHEe Other reserves 1,393,720 1,512,068 2,285,582 1,513,274 | 1,508,881
REHEA Retained profits 3,934,240 4,370,646 4,712,307 5,032,738 4,845,192
AARRR Total equity attributable to
(LR AR shareholders of the Company 7,043,337 7,598,091 8,713,266 8,261,389 8,069,450
af Liabilities
RBENAE Insurance contract liabilities = = 72,204 103,754 146,260
BRrRANEE Reinsurance contract liabilities - - 3,129 8,821 8,498
RBAEH Insurance contracts 87,870 129,216 = = =
RERIER K Insurance payable 16,147 31,135 = = =
HiEMBRZRETER  Other creditors and accruals 33,106 36,450 24,957 24,427 36,930
HEBE Lease liabilities 256 65 1,063 833 586
RITER Bank borrowings 259,965 371,583 497,308 692,594 855,570
BRIREER Loan from the controlling shareholder 199,886 149,943 99,985 = =
JE TR TE Current income tax payable 26,284 28,340 29,584 27,699 4,582
EEMEHAE Deferred income tax liabilities 36,376 61,041 63,462 49,340 62,849
e F Total liabilities 659,890 807,773 791,692 907,468 1,115,275
EEREE Equity and liabilities 7,703,227 8,405,864 9,504,958 9,168,857 9,184,725
—Z— =F4F3R Annual Report 2023
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
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{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

Notes:

(M

As set out in Note 2.2(a) to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group has adopted HKFRS 17 that was effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and retrospective adjustments
have been made from the transition date, 1 January 2022. The financial
information of the annual results for the year ended 31 December
2022 has been restated accordingly to conform with the current year’s
presentation. However, the financial information of the annual results
for the years ended 31 December 2019, 2020 and 2021 presented above
has not been restated to conform with the current year’s presentation.

As set out in Note 2.2(a) to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group has adopted HKFRS 17 that was effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and retrospective adjustments
have been made from the transition date, 1 January 2022. The financial
information of the assets and liabilities at 31 December 2021 and
2022 has been restated accordingly to conform with the current year’s
presentation. However, the financial information of the assets and
liabilities at 31 December 2019 and 2020 presented above has not been
restated to conform with the current year’s presentation.
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TRHEE
CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

b 5 s mREE 2023 EEmD

| am pleased to announce the full year
results of the Group for 2023. ,,

FFE EIF
Chairman WANG Fei

‘?.h
)

Uncertainties centered around geopolitical tension and
escalated interest rates continued to haunt the global
economy in 2023, which weaken global economic growth
momentum and diminish the business environment.

OUR PERFORMANCE

Amid the uncertain global economic outlook, we kept
abreast of market development and conducted our business
prudently to minimise operational risks. For the year ended
31 December 2023, the Group recorded a profit attributable
to shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) of
HK$39.41 million, decreased by 91.4% when compared to
the previous year, mainly due to the decrease in share of
results of Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd. (“XIB") for
the year ended 31 December 2023 as compared to the
same period in 2022 and the recognition of the one-off
loss on dilution of the Company’s shareholding in XIB from
approximately 8.8543% to approximately 8.689% in March
2023. Basic earnings per share was 6.6 HK cents.

—Z— =F4F3R Annual Report 2023
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FTHEHREE
CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

BPIBIRIR (48)
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HARR B SRR A EE ol -

M2023F 128318 KEBEWNEEENRS
B 91.81BT 0 LhER 2022 FFEEHE 91,7
B EFA0.2% °

ER (BEREMBAREREITERA A
(T&R]) MBRFABRBETERHDBERAR A
([BER]) ;mBAIEREE]) AAEER
BENSRIZE  BEREEER2023FFEA
EEFAEX)155.9% ° NEE 2023 FE#hE
FEBEREB BRI B 65958 T 82022
FEMB 47,766 BT T 2 86.2% ©
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EEAREBEEEER69.8% ° 120235F 12 8
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{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

OUR PERFORMANCE (Continued])

During the year under review, we paid a final dividend for
2022 of 12 HK cents per share to Shareholders, bringing
stable and sustainable returns to Shareholders. In addition,
the Directors continue to pay attention to Shareholders’
demands and strive to improve Shareholders’ returns, and
have resolved to recommend a final dividend for 2023 of 9
HK cents per share despite the decrease in profit attributable
to Shareholders for the year.

Total assets of the Group recorded an increase of 0.2%
to HK$9.18 billion at 31 December 2023 as compared to
HK$9.17 billion at the end of 2022.

XIB (together with its subsidiaries, Chiyu Banking
Corporation Limited (“CYB”) and Luso International Banking
Ltd. (“LIB"), are collectively referred to as “XIB Group”) is the
most significant financial investment of the Group and has
contributed about 155.9% of the results of the Group in
2023. The Group's share of profit after tax of XIB Group was
HK$65.95 million in 2023, a decrease of 86.2% as compared
to HK$477.66 million in 2022.

XIB Group achieved a steady growth in its balance sheet.
Total assets of XIB Group recorded an increase of 3% to
RMB1,120.42 billion at 31 December 2023 as compared to
RMB1,088.11 billion at the end of 2022.

The total assets of our banking business accounted for
69.8% of the Group’s total assets at 31 December 2023. The
net asset value per share of the Company amounted to
HK$13.51 at 31 December 2023, about 79.5% came from the
investment in XIB.
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FTHEHREE
CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

OUR PERFORMANCE (Continued])

In order to meet the capital requirements for long term
development and strategic plan, XIB has completed the
issuance of 263 million new shares in March 2023, which
resulted in the dilution of the Company’s shareholding in
XIB from approximately 8.8543% to approximately 8.689%.
The Group has recorded a dilution loss of approximately
HK$15.72 million during the year. The Company is still the
second largest shareholder of XIB upon completion of the
capital contribution in XIB.

As the first city commercial bank in Mainland China that
owns full-featured subsidiary banks both in Hong Kong and
Macau, XIB continues to leverage its advantages of more
than 140 branch networks in the Greater China region and
strengthen the business linkage of Mainland China, Hong
Kong and Macau in order to broaden financial services
products, strengthen its advantages and characteristics and
provide customised solutions to targeted clients. XIB Group
will adhere to technology-driven, promote Overseas Chinese
finance, strengthen cross-border financial services and
increase green credit issuance, and will create high-quality
development characteristics and differentiated advantages
around internationalisation and financial technology, in
order to enhance the quality and efficiency of the real
economy. We expect that our banking business will achieve
sustainable and reasonable value growth in the long term.

Xiamen International Investment Limited (“XIIL"), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of XIB, has submitted a listing application
to The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Through
the branch networks of CYB and LIB in the Greater China
region, XIIL provides integrated financial services driven
by advanced technology with a strong connection with
the Overseas Chinese community, strives to strengthen its
integration into the overall national development framework
by capitalising on the opportunities presented by various
national strategies.

XIB was ranked 154th in total assets and 161st in Tier-one
Capital in the 2023 Top 1000 World Banks announced by
The Banker. XIB had been rated as one of the top 200 for
consecutive years.

—Z— =F4F3R Annual Report 2023

9



FTHEHREE
CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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OUR PERFORMANCE (Continued])

We continued to pull resources together to vigorously
expand the insurance business and strived to improve the
quality and profitability of the underlying business during
the year under review. Insurance service result recorded a
surplus of HK$11.52 million for the year ended 31 December
2023, a decrease of 39.9% as compared to HK$19.15 million
in 2022 due to decrease in insurance revenue and increase
in claims costs. Insurance finance expenses of HK$5.3 million
were recorded for the year ended 31 December 2023, as
compared to insurance finance income of HK$4.54 million
in 2022. We will continue to improve the business quality as
well as to increase the premium size.

The management team of our insurance business will
continue to allocate sufficient resources, adhere to
“customer-centric, sincere service”, arouse the internal
momentum for innovation and strengthen the digital
transformation, in order to identify new opportunities
and keep improving the service quality and underwriting
professionalism in the increasingly competitive market
environment so as to enhance sustainable business
development and achieve a better financial performance.

PROSPECTS

Despite the uncertainty in the macro-environment, the
Group will maintain its prudent approach, remain alert to
the external environment, focus on our core business of
financial services investments, constantly optimise our asset
structure and adhere to prudent financial management
strategy. We will seize market opportunities and strive to
explore investment opportunities in the Greater China
region, leverage our strong resilience and innovation
capabilities to promptly respond to market uncertainties
and achieve income diversification and improve the
financial performance of the Group in order to create and
realise the long-term value to uphold the expectations of
the stakeholders.

Finally, I wish to take this opportunity to express my
heartfelt appreciation to my fellow board members for their
invaluable advice and support, and thank the management
team and all our staff for their commitment and dedicated
services.

WANG Fei
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year under review, we faced a challenging
operating environment amid the macroeconomic
environment and geopolitical backdrop. High interest rates
and the performance of our banking business affected the
Group’s results for the year.

Operating Results

The Group recorded a profit attributable to shareholders
of the Company (the “Shareholders”) of HK$39.41 million in
2023, representing a decrease of HK$417.56 million or 91.4%
as compared to HK$456.97 million in 2022. Such decrease is
primarily due to the decrease in share of results of Xiamen
International Bank Co., Ltd. (“XIB") for the year ended 31
December 2023 as compared to the same period in 2022
and the recognition of the one-off loss of approximately
HK$15.72 million on dilution of the Company’s shareholding
in XIB from approximately 8.8543% to approximately 8.689%
in March 2023. Basic earnings per share for the year was 6.6
HK cents, a decrease of 69.91 HK cents as compared to 76.51
HK cents in 2022.

Financial Services

The financial services business of the Group includes
the engagement of banking business through its major
associate, XIB (together with its subsidiaries, Chiyu Banking
Corporation Limited (“CYB”) and Luso International Banking
Ltd. (“LIB"), are collectively referred to as “XIB Group”) in
Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau respectively, and
the provision of micro credit business in Mainland China.

The Group’s financial services business reported a profit
after tax of HK$55.63 million in 2023, a decrease of 88.4% as
compared to HK$481.57 million in 2022. Such decrease in
the results is primarily due to the decrease in share of results
of XIB in 2023 as compared to the previous year and the
recognition of the one-off loss of approximately HK$15.72
million on dilution of the Company’s shareholding in XIB
from approximately 8.8543% to approximately 8.689% in
March 2023.

—Z— =F4F3R Annual Report 2023

"



12

EI2[E51m A i

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Financial Services (Continued)

Banking Business

XIB Group offers comprehensive financial services in
Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau through its
well-established branch network and technological
infrastructures.

XIB Group reported a profit after tax for the Group’s
reporting purpose of RMB673.51 million, a decrease of
RMB3.92 billion or 85.3% as compared to RMB4.59 billion
in 2022. Such decrease was mainly driven by the decrease
in net interest income and the increase in expected
credit losses and other credit impairment charges in 2023
as compared to the previous year. Net interest income
decreased by 39.4% in 2023 as compared to the previous
year, which was mainly due to an increase of 32.9% in
interest expenses while interest income increased by 7.9%.
The non-interest income increased by 9.1% which was
mainly due to the increase in investment income and net
exchange gains, and partially offset by the increase in net
fair value losses from financial assets measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

XIB Group achieved a steady growth in its total assets with
satisfactory growth in both loan books and customers’
deposits at 31 December 2023. At 31 December 2023, the
total assets grew by 3% to RMB1,120.42 billion as compared
to RMB1,088.11 billion at the end of 2022. Gross loans to
customers were RMB629.21 billion, an increase of 2.3% as
compared to RMB615.33 billion at the end of 2022. The
gross impaired loans and advances as a percentage of gross
loans and advances to customers was 2%, increased by 0.59
percentage points as compared to 1.41% at the end of 2022.
Total deposits from customers were up 3.7% to RMB726.61
billion from RMB700.71 billion at the end of 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Financial Services (Continued)

Banking Business [Continued]

In order to meet the capital requirements for long term
development and strategic plan, XIB has completed the
issuance of 263 million new shares in March 2023, which
resulted in the dilution of the Company’s shareholding
in XIB from approximately 8.8543% to approximately
8.689%. The Group has recorded an one-off dilution loss of
approximately HK$15.72 million in 2023. The Company is
still the second largest shareholder of XIB upon completion
of the capital contribution in XIB.

The Company had evaluated the applicable accounting
treatment in respect of its approximately 8.689%
shareholding in XIB after the completion of the capital
contribution and considered that the Company will continue
to have the ability to exercise significant influence over the
financial and operating policy decisions of XIB in accordance
with the terms of the constitutional documents of XIB.
Accordingly, the Company considered that XIB will continue
to be classified as an associate of the Company and the
Company'’s interest in XIB will continue to be accounted for
using the equity method in accordance with the Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs").

Micro Credit Business

Sanming Sanyuan District Minxin Micro Credit Company
Limited (“Sanyuan Micro Credit”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, had been engaged in the provision of
micro loans to small and medium-sized enterprises and
individuals in Sanming City, Fujian Province. Sanyuan Micro
Credit continues to proactively apply all measures to recover
its impaired loans.
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{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Financial Services (Continued)

Micro Credit Business [Continued)

Sanyuan Micro Credit recovered the principal and interest
income of impaired loans of RMB5.21 million and RMB2.77
million respectively, as compared to RMB8.73 million and
RMBO0.6 million respectively in 2022. The impaired loan
balances at 31 December 2023 were RMB146.6 million, a
decrease of 6.8% from RMB157.24 million at the end of
2022, which was mainly due to the write-off and recovery
of impaired loan principal. Sanyuan Micro Credit recorded
a profit after tax of RMB8.96 million (equivalent to HK$9.9
million) in 2023, a decrease of 16.4% as compared to
RMB10.72 million (equivalent to HK$12.44 million) in 2022.

Insurance Business

Min Xin Insurance Company Limited (“Min Xin Insurance”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, underwrites
general insurance businesses in Hong Kong and Macau.

Min Xin Insurance has adopted the requirements of HKFRS 17
Insurance Contracts on 1 January 2023 retrospectively
with comparatives restated from the transition date,
1 January 2022. At transition, the total equity attributable
to shareholders of Min Xin Insurance reduced by HK$1.32
million.

Min Xin Insurance recorded insurance revenue of HK$191.13
million in 2023, decreased by 2% as compared to HK$195
million in 2022. Insurance service result, which reflected
insurance revenue less insurance service expenses and
net expenses from reinsurance contracts held, recorded a
surplus of HK$11.52 million in 2023, decreased by 39.9% as
compared to HK$19.15 million in 2022, which was mainly
due to the decrease in insurance revenue and the increase
in claims costs. Insurance finance expenses, which reflected
the change in the carrying amount of the insurance
contracts arising from the effects of time value of money
and financial risk, recorded an expense of HK$5.3 million in
2023, as compared to an income of HK$4.54 million in 2022.

Min Xin Insurance recorded a profit after tax of HK$4.87
million in 2023, decreased by 74.7% as compared to
HK$19.25 million in 2022, which was mainly due to the
combined impact of the decrease in insurance service result
and the increase in investment income.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Insurance Business (Continued)

The management team of Min Xin Insurance will continue
to broaden distribution channels and identify new business
opportunities, and at the same time will make great efforts
to implement the anticipated business plan and improve
business quality in an increasingly competitive market to
achieve a better financial performance.

Huaneng A-Shares

At 31 December 2023, the Shanghai Composite Index
decreased by about 3.7% as compared to that at the end of
2022. The closing bid price per A-Share of Huaneng Power
International, Inc. (“Huaneng”) as quoted on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange increased from RMB7.61 per share at 31
December 2022 to RMB7.69 per share at 31 December
2023. The fair value of the Group’s investment in A-Share of
Huaneng (“Huaneng A-Shares”) measured with reference
to the closing bid price per A-Share of Huaneng stood at
HK$574.28 million (equivalent to RMB522.55 million). In
2023, the Group recorded a loss of HK$11.01 million (2022:
HK$220.62 million) arising from the net movement in its
fair value change in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the fair value reserve
(non-recycling). Such loss was mainly due to the devaluation
of exchange rate of Renminbi against Hong Kong dollars.

The board of directors of Huaneng recommended not to
declare the final dividend for 2022 and the shareholders
of Huaneng passed the resolution in the annual general
meeting.

—Z— =F4F3R Annual Report 2023

15



EI2[E51m A i

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EBOE (18)
FEREAR (18)

EE AMIRPEEHELNREN2023FE
PEEE  BEWAL2022FE FF3.1%
BEKARLL2022F E T B6.5% ° E fE A
2023 F EE SRR E LGN ARK8A5(E
T+ M2022 F RIS EEEIBARK 73.9(8
T EEEREREBEMRBKARLL T
PRMEERL ERMGETE - ARFTNE
¥BFEREARER - REBEFRAERIK
HARE0357C © M2022FEHNFREEA
R¥E061TL - ERLEET T EHETIR2023FE
RERBEERARK 02T -

MERE

AEBHMEREEBANRRALLES
TIREME - MEIRE FETFR 2023 FHAFH
BRABEEISEIT - L2022 F RS AEE
638 7T N 43.8% °

BREAEBMNTEFTENTIZEESN 2023 F1)
RIS - AFEBEURBINTHHEESEDE
KRB (TaM®mE]) KR2023F12 431 H
HEFRER DRI AE79.5% K 74.7% (2022 FF = &
R 588.2% & 75%) + HAFBEMLMAEE
HRERELONAAESBER TR - AEER
2023 FEBHESRAARKE 2098 T L&
202F M ARME28E T N #298% ¢ £ &
REARAMEESREHEETRE - 1K£2023F 12 A
318 BMNWENRFEE K 46618 T
L8R 2022 F R HY B #5 4,982 8 7T N #46.4% ©
REBMR 2023 FEFAFEREESEITE
TTRMBRIEER & AT EFEIB K148 8
JC 0 2022 FRIERIS A EEEBE 308 T
MANBRIEER & A F{EFEIE B 2408 7T -

{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Huaneng A-Shares (Continued)

Huaneng has announced its 2023 annual results under
the PRC Accounting Standards. Its operating revenue
increased by 3.1% and the operating expenses decreased
by 6.5% as compared to 2022. Its profit attributable to
shareholders was RMB8.45 billion in 2023, as compared to
loss attributable to shareholders of RMB7.39 billion in 2022,
primarily attributable to the combined effects of the year-
on-year decrease in unit fuel costs and increase in electricity
generation from its domestic operations, as well as the
significant year-on-year increase in Singapore business
profits. Earnings per share was RMBO0.35 for the year under
review, as compared to loss per share of RMB0.61 in 2022.
The board of directors of Huaneng recommended to declare
a final dividend for 2023 of RMBO.2 per share.

Property Investment

The property investment business of the Group represents
the leasing of certain investment properties in Mainland
China. In 2023, the property investment business reported
a profit after tax of HK$0.35 million, a decrease of 43.8% as
compared to HK$0.63 million in 2022.

The market rental of office space in Fuzhou, Fujian Province
remained soft in 2023. The occupancy rates of the leased
commercial properties and parking spaces in Fuzhou (the
“Fuzhou Property”) of the Group were 79.5% and 74.7%
respectively (2022: 88.2% and 75% respectively) at 31
December 2023, the monthly rental of certain new leases
have declined as compared to the expired leases. The
Group recorded a rental income of RMB2.09 million in
2023, decreased by 29.8% as compared to RMB2.98 million
in 2022, mainly due to the decline in monthly rental and
occupancy rates. At 31 December 2023, the fair value of the
Fuzhou Property was HK$46.61 million, a decrease of 6.4% as
compared to the fair value of HK$49.82 million at the end of
2022.The Group recorded a fair value loss of HK$3.21 million
and net fair value loss after deferred tax of HK$1.48 million
in 2023, as compared to a fair value loss of HK$5.3 million
and net fair value loss after deferred tax of HK$2.4 million in
2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group adheres to the principle of prudent financial
management and strives to maintain a healthy financial
position.

Net Asset Value per Share

Based on 597,257,252 ordinary shares in issue at 31
December 2023 (2022: 597,257,252 shares), the net asset
value per share was HK$13.51 at 31 December 2023 (2022:
HK$13.83).

Borrowings and Charged Assets

The Group monitors its liquidity requirement on a short to
medium term basis and arranges refinancing of the Group’s
borrowings as appropriate.

At 31 December 2023, the Group had borrowings totalling
HK$855.59 million granted by several banks, increased by
23.5% as compared to HK$692.63 million at the end of 2022.
Based on the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
facilities, the outstanding amounts totalling HK$656.99
million will mature and are repayable within one year and
the balance of HK$198.6 million will mature and is repayable
more than one year but within two years. The Group
will consider to arrange refinancing of the borrowings if
necessary. These bank loans are in Hong Kong dollars with
mix of fixed and floating interest rates. The fixed-rate bank
loans consist of the three-year term loan of HK$198.6 million
and the short-term loan of HK$140 million and the floating-
rate bank loans consist of all other revolving bank loans.
The effective interest rate at 31 December 2023 ranged from
2.7% to 7.6% (2022: 2.7% to 6.9%) per annum.

In addition, the Group had withdrawable revolving bank
loan facilities of approximately HK$433.01 million at
31 December 2023.

At 31 December 2023, the three-year fixed rate term loan
of HK$198.6 million (2022: HK$198.6 million) was secured
by a standby letter of credit issued in favour of the lending
bank. The standby letter of credit was collateralised by a
three-year bank deposit of RMB200 million (equivalent to
HK$219.8 million) (2022: RMB200 million, equivalent to
HK$226.37 million) placed by a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company in Mainland China.
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{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Borrowings and Charged Assets (Continued)

At 31 December 2023, a portion of the revolving bank loans
totalling HK$223.53 million (2022: HK$244.36 million) was
secured by the self-use office building owned by a wholly-
owned subsidiary in Hong Kong with a net book value of
approximately HK$8.37 million (2022: HK$8.63 million) at 31
December 2023. The fair value of the property was HK$240
million (2022: HK$280 million) at 31 December 2023.

Pursuant to the requirement of a standby letter of credit
issued by a bank in Hong Kong in favour of a reinsurance
company that has entered into the Non-life Reinsurance
Facility with a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
that wholly-owned subsidiary has placed a bank deposit of
HK$15 million (2022: HK$15 million) as a collateral for the
standby letter of credit at 31 December 2023.

Save for the above, no other assets of the Group were pledged
at 31 December 2023 and 2022 respectively.

Total Liabilities to Equity Ratio and Gearing Ratio

At 31 December 2023, the total liabilities of the Group were
HK$1,115.28 million (2022: HK$907.47 million) and the ratio
of total liabilities to total equity attributable to Shareholders
was 13.8% (2022: 11%).

At 31 December 2023, the gearing ratio of the Group (total
borrowings divided by total net assets) was 10.6% (2022:
8.4%).

Cash Position

The Group’s balances with banks are interest bearing at
prevailing market rates. At 31 December 2023, the total
balances with banks of the Group amounted to HK$1,061.83
million (2022: HK$1,018.25 million) of which 25.4% were in
Hong Kong dollars, 69.5% in Renminbi and 5.1% in other
currencies (2022: 27.8% were in Hong Kong dollars, 66.4% in
Renminbi and 5.8% in other currencies).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Cash Position (Continued)

Pursuant to the requirements from the Insurance Authority,
Min Xin Insurance, a wholly-owned subsidiary, shall maintain
at all times a portion of its funds of not less than HK$16
million in the name of “Insurance Authority account Min Xin
Insurance Company Limited” in bank deposits as a statutory
deposit. At 31 December 2023, Min Xin Insurance has placed
fixed deposits of HK$16 million (2022: HK$16 million) in the
name of “Insurance Authority account Min Xin Insurance
Company Limited” with a bank in Hong Kong for fulfillment
of such requirements. The requirements to maintain at all
times of its funds of not less than HK$16 million in the name
of “Insurance Authority account Min Xin Insurance Company
Limited” were rescinded after the reporting date and the
term deposits will be released on maturity in August 2024.

At 31 December 2023, Min Xin Insurance has also maintained
bank deposits of MOP18.41 million (equivalent to HK$17.87
million) and HK$69.45 million (2022: MOP18.41 million,
equivalent to HK$17.87 million and HK$69.45 million) for
fulfilling certain requirements under the Macau Insurance
Ordinance (Decree-Law no. 27/97/M of 30 June) (the “Macau
Insurance Ordinance”).

Risk of Exchange Rate Fluctuation

The Group operates in Hong Kong, Mainland China and
Macau, thus the exposure in exchange rate risks mainly
arises from currency fluctuation between Hong Kong dollars
and Renminbi. As the Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi are
both under managed floating systems, the Group reviews
and monitors periodically its foreign currency exposure and
considers hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise. The Group did not enter into any
derivative contracts aimed at minimising exchange rate risks
during the year.

Capital Commitments

At 31 December 2023, the Group’s capital commitments
relating to property, plant and equipment and investment
properties amounted to HK$0.65 million (2022: HK$0.66
million).
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{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Contingent Liabilities

At 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group had no
significant contingent liabilities.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

At 31 December 2023, the Group had 69 employees. The
remuneration of the employees is based on individual merits
and experience. The Group also provides other benefits to
employees included but not limited to retirement benefits
and medical scheme.

The Group regards human resources as its valuable assets.
The Group offers numerous employee benefits and group
activities to our staff members. To motivate our employees
to enhance and develop their professional knowledges
and skills, the Group provides on-the-job trainings and
workshops for our employees as well as encourages them
to attend seminars and trainings with topics of relevance
to their jobs and duties sponsored by the Group. The Group
also organises recreational activities such as Christmas party.

CUSTOMER RELATIONSHIPS

With respect to the Group’s insurance business, we are
committed to establishing good long-term business
relationships with our brokers and agents. Insurance
products together with the pricing philosophy and other
guidelines will be provided to brokers and agents if needed.
Our staff of business department visit our brokers and
agents regularly to maintain good relationships. Our claims
and customer service staff swiftly and carefully manage and
respond to our brokers’ and agents’ enquiries in relation to
the insurance products and other related matters.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

Being a responsible corporate citizen, the Group continues
to support the environmental protection initiatives to
conserve the natural resources. We place a high priority on
minimisation of the environmental impact of our business
activities by promoting energy-efficient lighting and use
of public transportation to reduce energy consumption. In
addition, we proactively encourage staff to consume less
energy, water and paper, by applying such as e-filings and
paper recycling in our offices. Details are disclosed in the
Environment, Social and Governance Report to be issued by
the Company pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Compliance is an integral part of the Group’s corporate
governance and we are aware of the potential risks of
regulatory non-compliance. As far as the Board is aware, the
Group has complied in material aspects with the relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
businesses and operations of the Group.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s businesses, financial condition, results of
operations and prospects may be affected by a number
of risks and uncertainties. The following key risks and
uncertainties identified by the Group are not exhaustive
or comprehensive, and there may be other risks and
uncertainties in addition to those shown below which are
not known to the Group or which may not be material now
but could turn out to be material in the future.

Insurance and Financial Risks

The Group’s business activities are exposed to a variety
of insurance risk and financial risks including market risk
(foreign exchange risk, price risk and interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The details of the Group’s insurance
risk and financial risks exposures are set out in Note 4 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.
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{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Continued)
Business Risks

Banking Business

The growth of XIB Group depends on the macroeconomic
factors that affect Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau,
including the growth of gross domestic product, inflation
levels, changes in laws and regulations related to banks
and financial products, changes in macroeconomic control
policies, market liquidity, changes in credit policies, changes
in loan demands as well as progress of financial reform and
interest rate liberalisation. XIB Group may be unable to
maintain its growth rate as a result of an adverse change in
any one or more of the above factors or any other factors,
which could have a material and adverse effect on its
financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

Insurance Business

The insurance industries in Hong Kong and Macau are
highly regulated. Companies carrying on insurance business
in Hong Kong and Macau must obtain authorisation from
Insurance Authority and Autoridade Monetdria De Macau
respectively and are subject to the requirements imposed
by Insurance Authority and Autoridade Monetaria De Macau
from time to time. Authorisation will only be granted to
insurers when certain requirements under the Insurance
Ordinance (Chapter 41 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and
the Macau Insurance Ordinance are met. Compliance with
applicable laws, rules and regulations may restrict the
operations of the Group’s insurance business and requires
the Group to deploy significant resources and to devote
considerable time to such compliance efforts. New or
revised laws, rules and regulations may be introduced from
time to time and such changes may have an adverse effect
on the insurance business of the Group in Hong Kong and
Macau.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Continued)
Business Risks (Continued)

Huaneng A-Shares

Huaneng is listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and
Huaneng A-Shares is classified as a long-term financial asset
of the Group. The dividend income from Huaneng A-Shares
is affected by various factors which are beyond the Group’s
control, included but not limited to the results of operations,
liquidity position and dividend policy of Huaneng.

The Group is required to measure Huaneng A-Shares at
its fair value at the end of each reporting period and the
change in fair value is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity. The fair
value of Huaneng A-Shares is measured with reference to
the closing bid price per A-Share of Huaneng. The closing
bid price per A-Share of Huaneng may be volatile and is
affected by various factors which are beyond the Group’s
control, included but not limited to the results of operations
of Huaneng, investor sentiment or confidence in the stock
market and changes in economic conditions of Mainland
China.

Property Investment

The monthly rental and the occupancy rate depends on
various factors, including but not limited to prevailing
supply and demand conditions of office building, economic
conditions of Mainland China as well as the quality of the
properties. There is no assurance that the Group is able to
look for new tenants within a short period of time or procure
new leases or renew existing leases at the prevailing market
rental.

The Group is required to revalue its investment properties
at the end of each reporting period and the change in fair
value is recognised in the consolidated income statement.
There is no assurance that changes in market conditions will
continue to generate gains or losses on revaluation at similar
level or at same level, or there will be no further decline in
the fair value of the Group’s investment properties.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr WANG Fei, aged 57, has been appointed as the Chairman
of the Board, an Executive Director, the Chairman of both
the Executive Committee and the Nomination Committee,
and an Authorised Representative of the Company since
February 2023. He holds a Master’s Degree in Business
Administration from the University of Birmingham, United
Kingdom and a Doctorate Degree in Economics from
Department of Economics of Xiamen University. He is a
Senior Economist in Mainland China. He is a deputy to
the 14th National People’s Congress. He has extensive
experience in corporate development and management,
financial investment management as well as financial
institutions and venture capital management. He is currently
the secretary of the Party Committee, the chairman of the
board of directors and the legal representative of Fujian
Investment & Development Group Co., Ltd. (“FIDG”"), the
controlling shareholder of the Company.

He was the vice chairman of the Board, an executive
director and a member of the Executive Committee of the
Company from August 2014 to September 2020. He had
previously assumed the positions of the deputy general
manager of Investment Management Department of Fujian
Investment and Enterprise Corporation, the deputy general
manager of Development and Research Department of
Fujian International Trust and Investment Corporation, the
general manager of Development Department and Financial
Investment Management Department of Fujian Investment
& Enterprise Holdings Corporation, the assistant to general
manager, a member of the Party Committee and the deputy
general manager of FIDG, the controlling shareholder of the
Company and the deputy secretary of the Party Committee,
the director-general and the vice chairman of Fujian Rural
Credit Union. He was a director of Industrial Securities Co.,
Ltd. (Stock code: 601377) from December 2014 to June
2021 and Xiamen King Long Motor Group Co., Ltd. (Stock
Code: 600686) from September 2014 to March 2016, both
of which are companies listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange. He was a director of Xiamen International Bank
Co., Ltd., the chairman of Haixia Goldenbridge Insurance
Co., Ltd., a director and the vice chairman of Haixia Capital
Management Co., Ltd., the chairman of Fujian Innovation
Venture Investment Management Co., Ltd., a director of
Alltrust Insurance Company Limited and the chairman of &
EREEREKREEZSAER AR (Fujian Industrial Equity
Investment Fund Company Limited*). He was a director and
the chairman of Vigour Fine Company Limited which is the
controlling shareholder of the Company from September
2014 to December 2018.

* The relevant English name is only a transliteration of the Chinese name
for reference only.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr HUANG Wensheng, aged 55, has been appointed as
the Vice Chairman of the Board, an Executive Director and
a member of the Executive Committee of the Company
since February 2023. He holds a Bachelor’s degree in
Economics from Department of Economics and a Master’s
degree in Business Administration from Department of
Business Administration of Xiamen University. He is a Senior
Economist in Mainland China. He has extensive experience
in banking, financial institutions management and capital
operations. He is currently the assistant to general manager
of FIDG and a director and the chairman of Vigour Fine
Company Limited, both are the controlling shareholders of
the Company. He is also a director of Xiamen International
Bank Co., Ltd..

He has worked in a commercial bank for a long time. He
had previously assumed the positions of the principal of
Lianban Office, the section chief of the Credit Department
and the general manager of Hubin Sub-branch, the general
manager of Tongan Sub-branch, the general manager of the
Business Department and the Key Accounts Department of
Xiamen Branch of Agricultural Bank of China Limited (the
“Agricultural Bank”). He was also served as the secretary
of the Party Committee and the general manager of the
Business Department, the general manager of the Key
Accounts Department and the general manager of the
Institutional Business Department, the Custody Business
Department Fujian Sub-section and the Pension Center
Fujian Sub-center of Fujian Provincial Branch of Agricultural
Bank. He was also a senior specialist of Fujian Provincial
Branch of Agricultural Bank.
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B{E&EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr CHEN Yu, aged 60, has been appointed as an Executive
Director, the General Manager, and a member of the
Executive Committee and the Remuneration Committee of
the Company since September 2018. He joined the Company
as the Executive Deputy General Manager in August 2018.
He is also the chairman of the board of directors of Min Xin
Insurance Company Limited and Fujian Minxin Investments
Co., Ltd., and a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. He holds a Bachelor degree in Water Resources
and Hydropower Engineering from Department of Civil
Engineering and Architecture of Fuzhou University. He is
a Senior Economist in Mainland China. He has extensive
experience in financial technology, capital operations and
financing re-guarantee. He is the general manager of Vigour
Fine Company Limited, which is the controlling shareholder
of the Company. He is also a director of Samba Limited,
which is a substantial shareholder of the Company.

He worked in Fujian Branch of China Construction Bank
from July 1985 to April 2000, and successively served as a
staff member of the Investment Department and the Sales
Department, the deputy manager of the Sales and Credit
Department, the manager of the Business Development
Department, and the section chief of the Asset Preservation
Department. He successively served as the deputy general
manager of the Private Business Department, the principal
of the Credit Management Department and the deputy
general manager of the Office Management Department
of Fuzhou Branch of China Everbright Bank from April 2000
to July 2004. He was the general manager of Gulou Sub-
branch, Fuzhou Branch of China Everbright Bank from July
2004 to April 2007. He worked in Fujian Rural Credit Union
from April 2007 to February 2018, and successively served
as the deputy director of the Technology Department from
April 2007 to December 2007, the director of the Technology
Department and the general manager of the Technology
Service Center from February 2008 to September 2009,
the director of Technology Department, the general
manager of Technology Service Center and the director
of Ningde Office from September 2009 to June 2011, the
director of the Technology Department and the general
manager of the Technology Service Center from June 2011
to February 2015, the general manager of the Technology
Department (Technology Service Center) and the Innovation
Development Department from February 2015 to February
2018. He was the general manager from February 2018 to
August 2018 and the chairman of the board of directors
and the legal representative from February 2018 to
November 2019 of f@&% Fﬂﬁ?xﬂéﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁfﬁ
(Fujian Provincial Mintou Financing Re-guarantee Company
Limited*, fiREEET/ N NEXEMBEREREELTR)
He was also the chairman of the board of directors and the
legal representative of f&iE4 ZEMEERER A 7 (Fujian
Provincial A_grlcultural Financin Guarantee Company
Limited*, AIMEREE B r%ﬁfﬂﬂ%% ‘X @]) from February
2018 to September 2018. He was the chairman of Vigour
Fine Company Limited, which is the controlling shareholder
of the Company, from December 2018 to March 2023.

* The relevant English name is only a transliteration of the Chinese name
for reference only.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr HON Hau Chit, aged 49, has been appointed as a Non-
executive Director of the Company since March 2016. He
is currently the managing director of Citychamp Dartong
Company Limited (“Citychamp Dartong”, Stock code:
600067), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange.
He joined Citychamp Dartong in December 2004 as the
deputy managing director and then has been appointed as
the managing director since April 2006. He is currently the
vice chairman and the secretary general of the 3rd standing
committee of Fujian Shizhu Charity Foundation, the vice
chairman of the executive committee of Fujian Province
Fuzhou Municipal Federation of Commerce and Industry,
the vice chairman of Development Committee of Fujian Real
Estate Association and a member of the Standing Committee
of Fuzhou Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr YANG Jingchao, aged 58, has been appointed as a Non-
executive Director of the Company since December 2018.
He holds a Bachelor degree in International Finance from
Department of Finance of Renmin University of China and
a Master of Business Administration of La Trobe University.
He is an economist in Mainland China. He has extensive
experience in financial investment and capital operations.
He is currently a full-time external director of FIDG and
a director of Vigour Fine Company Limited, both are the
controlling shareholders of the Company. He is a director of
BEEHKIREERE TR A (Fujian Railway Investment
Co., Ltd.¥) and BEAERAEREERGHERREER
(Fujian Mintou Deep Sea Breeding Equipment Leasing Co.,
Ltd.*), which are two subsidiaries of FIDG, the controlling
shareholder of the Company He is also a director of {8312
LERERMEERABMR AR (Fujian Agricultural Financing
Guarantee Co., Ltd.*), Huafu Securities Co., Ltd. and Haixia
Goldenbridge Insurance Co., Ltd..

He successively served as a staff member of the Finance
Department, the Foreign Exchange Department and
the Fund Management Department from July 1987
to September 1992, senior staff member of the Fund
Management Department from September 1992 to January
1994 and the deputy manager of the Treasury Department
from January 1994 to December 1995 of Fujian Investment
and Enterprise Corporation. He served as the deputy general
manager of the International Finance Department of Fujian
International Trust and Investment Corporation from
December 1995 to April 2003. He was the deputy general
manager of the Financial Investment Department of Fujian
Investment & Enterprise Holdings Corporation from April
2003 to September 2005 and from September 2006 to May
2009 respectively. He served as the deputy general manager
of /8 A M §EIRB R A 7] (CNOOC Fujian New Energy
Company Limited*) from May 2009 to January 2015. He was
also the general manager and the legal representative of &
ZHEYRAR AR (Fujian Zhongmin Logistics Company
Limited*) from March 2012 to January 2015. He served as
the deputy general manager of the Integrated Investment
Department from January 2015 to October 2016 and the
general manager of Financial Investment Management
Department from March 2018 to November 2023 of FIDG
respectively. He was the general manager from October
2016 to September 2018 and was also the secretary of the
Party Committee, the chairman of the board of directors and
the legal representative from August 2017 to September
2018 of TEFEERREMIEKRERBR AR (Pingtan
Comprehensive Experimental Zone Financial Holding Group
Company Limited*). He was also the executive director, the
legal representative and the general manager of 18 & & &8
£ & E FR & L A al (Fujian Futou Investment Company
Limited*), a subsidiary of FIDG, from May 2020 to November
2023.

* The relevant English name is only a transliteration of the Chinese name
for reference only.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr IP Kai Ming, aged 72, has been appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
since July 1998. He is the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company. He is currently the
guest senior lecturer of Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd..
He is a fellow member of both The Hong Kong Institute of
Bankers and The Hong Kong Institute of Directors, and has
over 40 years’ extensive experience in banking and finance.
He is also a director of the Macao Chamber of Commerce.
He was the chairman of the Supervisory Board of Xiamen
International Bank Co., Ltd. from 2013 to 2021 and the
senior advisor to the board of directors of Luso International
Banking Limited from 2016 to 2022. He has a Master of
Science degree in Corporate Governance and Directorship
from the Hong Kong Baptist University.

Mr CHEUNG Man Hoi, aged 53, FCCA, CPA, has been
appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director and
the Chairman of the Audit Committee since April 2017 and
has also been appointed as a member of the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the
Company since April 2018. He graduated from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University with a Bachelor of Arts (Hons)
in Accountancy in 1993 and the Chinese University of Hong
Kong with a MBA degree in 2003. He is also a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He has accumulated over 20 years of
experience in professional accounting, business consulting
and corporate management. He was the executive director
and the chief financial officer of Greenland Hong Kong
Holdings Limited (formerly known as SPG Land (Holdings)
Limited, Stock code: 337) from 2011 to 2012 and from 2009
to 2012 respectively, the group financial controller of Nine
Dragons Paper (Holdings) Limited (Stock code: 2689) from
2007 to 2008, and the group financial controller and the
company secretary of Tianjin Development Holdings Limited
(Stock code: 882) from 2000 to 2003, all these companies
are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
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{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr LEUNG Chong Shun, aged 58, has been appointed as
an Independent Non-executive Director and a member of
the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee of the Company since May 2018.
He graduated from the University of Hong Kong in 1988
and obtained a Bachelor’s degree in laws with honors. He
is qualified as a solicitor in Hong Kong and England and a
China Appointed Attesting Officer appointed by the Ministry
of Justice of the PRC. He is currently a partner of Woo Kwan
Lee & Lo and has been a practicing solicitor in Hong Kong
since 1991. He was the chief representative of Woo Kwan
Lee & Lo Beijing Office. He has accumulated extensive
experience in corporate finance, mergers and acquisitions
and commercial law and has been involved in various listing
and acquisition transactions of Chinese H Share companies
and red chip companies. He is currently an independent
non-executive director of China Medical System Holdings
Limited (Stock code: 867). He was an independent non-
executive director of China Communications Construction
Company Limited (Stock code: 1800) from January 2011
to November 2017, China National Materials Company
Limited (Stock code: 1893) from July 2007 to May 2018, SSY
Group Limited (Stock Code: 2005) from October 2005 to
May 2023 and China Coal Energy Company Limited (Stock
Code: 1898) from June 2017 to March 2023, respectively. All
these companies are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr SU Yuecai, aged 41, joined the Company as Deputy
General Manager in December 2023. He graduated in the
major of Mathematics and Applied Mathematics from
University of Science and Technology Beijing. He is an
Economist in Mainland China. He has extensive experience
in financial investment and assets management. He served
as an investment analyst of It RERE HEERKEFR
7/~ 7] (Beijing Xingyi Jufang International Investment Co.,
Ltd.*), the chief investment consultant of FEEFE ZE (EFY)
BIRHMR A A] (Kangjun Asset (Xiamen) Management Co.,
Ltd.*) and a researcher and investment manager of EFS
wEREEEAEREML AT (Xiamen Yiheng Investment
Management Co., Ltd.*). He served as the general manager
of the Securities Investment Business Department of Fujian
Innovation Venture Investment Management Co., Ltd., which
is a subsidiary of FIDG, the controlling shareholder of the
Company, and the senior director of capital operations
and the deputy general manager of Financial Investment
Management Department of FIDG.

Mr CHAN Kwong Yu, aged 53, is the Deputy General
Manager and Financial Controller of the Company. He
is also a member of the Remuneration Committee of
the Company, the Chief Representative of the Fuzhou
Representative Office of the Company, and a director of Min
Xin Insurance Company Limited, Fujian Minxin Investments
Co., Ltd., Sanming Sanyuan District Minxin Micro Credit
Company Limited and certain subsidiaries of the Company.
He joined the Company in April 2000 and was appointed
as Deputy Financial Controller in July 2004, Financial
Controller in January 2008, Deputy General Manager in
March 2014 respectively. He was the Company Secretary
of the Company from May 2019 to August 2021. He holds
a Bachelor of Commerce in Accounting, and is a Certified
Public Accountant, a Fellow of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and Senior Associate of Australian and
New Zealand Institute of Insurance and Finance (ANZIIF). He
is also a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors and
a Technical Specialist of the Institute of Risk Management.
Before joining the Company, he had worked for various
listed companies in Hong Kong.

* The relevant English name is only a transliteration of the Chinese name
for reference only.
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{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

Mr WU Xubin, aged 46, joined the Company as Deputy
General Manager in June 2017. He is also a director and
the Chief Executive of Min Xin Insurance Company Limited,
which holds a general insurance licence and is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company. He holds a Master Degree
in Engineering, Economics and Management from University
of Oxford. He is certified as a Construction Project Manager
(Senior) by China National Offshore Oil Corporation and
Senior Associate of Australian and New Zealand Institute of
Insurance and Finance (ANZIIF). He has extensive experience
in comprehensive corporate management and served as
a corporate controller for over 10 years. He served as the
general manager (controller) of CNOOC (Ningde) Oil Storage
Co., Ltd., CNOOC (Ningde) Petrochemical Jetty Co., Ltd. and
CNOOC Fujian Marketing Co., Ltd. respectively, and was
the Acting Chief Executive of Min Xin Insurance Company
Limited from February 2018 to February 2023.

Ms WENG Wei Jian, aged 53, joined the Company as Group
Chief Auditor in January 2018. She is also the supervisor
of Min Xin Insurance Company Limited, Fujian Minxin
Investments Co., Ltd. and Sanming Sanyuan District Minxin
Micro Credit Company Limited. She graduated in the major
of finance and accounting from Minjiang University and
in the major of law from East China University of Political
Science and Law. She is a Senior Accountant in Mainland
China. She has over 27 years’ extensive experience in risk
management and control, accounting, asset management
and financial management. She is also a director of Samba
Limited, which is a substantial shareholder of the Company,
and a non-executive director of Fujian Holdings Limited
(Stock code: 181), which is listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange.
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Mr CHEN Yanxing, aged 52, joined the Company as Deputy
General Manager in January 2024. He is also the general
manager of Fujian Minxin Investments Co., Ltd. and the
chairman of the board of directors, the legal representative
and the general manager of Sanming Sanyuan District
Minxin Micro Credit Company Limited. He graduated in
the major of financial accounting from Fujian Agriculture
University and in the major of finance from Fujian Institute
of Financial Administrators. He is a Senior Economist in
Mainland China. He has extensive experience in banking
and capital operations. He has worked in Agricultural Bank
for a long time. He had previously assumed the positions
of staff member of the Credit Management Department,
deputy general manager of Customer Department, deputy
general manager of Small Business Finance Department and
the general manager of Corporate Business Department
of Business Department of Fujian Provincial Branch. He
was also served as the secretary of the Party Committee
and the general manager of China (Fujian) Pilot Free Trade
Zone Fuzhou Area Branch, the general manager of Business
Department, Corporate Business Department and senior
specialist of Fuzhou Branch, the secretary of the Party
Committee and the general manager of Jinan Branch and
senior specialist of Corporate Business Department of
Fuzhou Branch.

Mr YU Xing, aged 39, joined the Company in December
2023 and has been appointed as Assistant General Manager
in January 2024. He graduated in the major of accounting
from Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics. He is an
Auditor in Mainland China. He has extensive experience in
accounting and risk management. He has served as an audit
assistant, project assistant and project manager of Fujian
Branch of Zhongrui Yuehua Certified Public Accountants
(Special General Partnership). He was also served as the
capital management supervisor of Capital and Finance
Department, the senior supervisor and the senior internal
control and risk supervisor of Audit Department of FIDG, the
controlling shareholder of the Company.
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{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board (the “Board”) of Directors (the “Director(s)”) of the
Company is committed to maintaining and upholding high
standards of corporate governance with a view to achieving
business objectives and sustainable development of the
Company. The Company has adopted the principles and
the code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix C1 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”)
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied
with all the applicable code provisions set out in the CG
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2023.

The Board will continue to monitor and periodically review
the Company’s corporate governance practices to ensure its
compliance with the CG Code.

CORPORATE CULTURE

The Group is committed to promoting a core corporate
spirit with integrity, innovation and pragmatism. The Group
is committed to establishing a sound corporate culture
that is people-centered, risk-prevention-oriented, legally
compliant and steady progress by integrating the cultural
characteristics of Mainland, Hong Kong and Macau. The
Group strives to build up a comprehensive financial service
platform that integrates the resources and characteristics
of Fujian, Hong Kong and Macau driven by the two wheels
of finance and industry. Focusing on the development
direction, the Group will continue to seize opportunities,
innovate development models, create outstanding
performance and strive for the greatest benefits for the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) and
stakeholders.
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CORPORATE CULTURE (Continued)

The Group adheres to customer-centric, strengthens
industrial co-operation and operates steadily; builds
up an effective, continual and regular communication
channel to exchange new ideas and suggestions of the
Group’s strategies and businesses with the staff and the
stakeholders. Also, with the Board’s oversight, the Group
continues to strengthen compliance and risk management
control and establish a sound compliance and risk
prevention mechanism. The Group promotes its culture
continuously by setting out various policies, including but
not limited to the Whistleblowing Policy, the Anti-corruption
Policy and the Shareholder Communication Policy. In
order to assist employee to integrate into the Group and
familiar with the corporate culture, the Group provides
corporate culture and compliance knowledge training to
all new employees, and the corporate culture is articulated
in the operating practices, workplace policies as well as
relationship with stakeholders.

In summary, the Board has reviewed the mission, value

and strategy of the Group and considered that they are in
alignment with the Group'’s corporate culture.
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{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

LINKAGE BETWEEN CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE AND ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL
AND GOVERNANCE

The Group recognises the significance of sound
Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG") practices
and is committed to the protection of the environment,
provision of quality workplace and serving the wider
community. The ESG considerations are reflected in the
policies, procedures and processes that are relevant to
the daily operations of the Group. The Board plays the key
role in ESG strategy and oversight in order to create long-
term growth and sustainable value for the stakeholders of
the Group. The Group had established a ESG governance
structure to advise and oversee the Group’s sustainability
and ESG-related issues and risks. The ESG management
approach and policies are overseen by the Board. The Board
identifies and evaluates the material ESG issues related to
internal and external stakeholders (including risks to the
Group'’s businesses). With the everchanging ESG-related
risks and the growing prominence of ESG-related issues
to stakeholders, the Group will continue to uphold and
strengthen the risk management system in order to cope
with the changing ESG-related risks and opportunities. The
ESG policies and performance of the Group are contained
in a separate ESG Report, which will be available at the
Company’s website under the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reports and the website of the Stock Exchange
on the same publication date of this report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

The Board of the Company currently comprises a total of
eight members, with three Executive Directors, two Non-
executive Directors and three Independent Non-executive
Directors.

The composition of the current Board members represents
a balanced mixture of skills, experiences and qualifications.
Members of the Board, who come from a variety of different
backgrounds, have a diverse range of business and
professional expertise. The Executive Directors and Non-
executive Directors have extensive experiences in banking,
financial institutions management, corporate development
and management, capital operations, financial technology,
financial investment and financing re-guarantee. The three
Independent Non-executive Directors possess appropriate
academic and professional qualifications and have
experiences in banking, accounting, legal, corporate finance
and mergers and acquisitions which would contribute
to the long-term development of the Company. All the
Independent Non-executive Directors have shared their
experiences and expertise to the Board and demonstrated
their ability to provide independent view and judgement in
the Group’s affairs.

The Board has adopted a policy setting out the approach
to achieve and maintain diversity on the Board (the
“Board Diversity Policy”) with the aim of enhancing Board
effectiveness and corporate governance as well as achieving
our business objectives and sustainable development.

The Board recognises and embraces the benefit of having a
diverse Board. Board diversity has been considered from a
number of perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, required expertise, skills, knowledge and length
of service. The Nomination Committee has the primary
responsibility for identifying suitably qualified candidates
to become members of the Board and, in carrying out such
responsibility, will give adequate consideration to the Board
Diversity Policy.
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{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued]

Board Composition (Continued)

To further promote diversity in the Board, the Company
targets to appoint at least one female director on or
before 31 December 2024 and continues to maintain a
diverse Board. The Group will also ensure that there is
gender diversity when recruiting employees and senior
management. As at 31 December 2023, approximately 44.9%
of our employees (including senior management) are male
and 55.1% of our employees (including senior management)
are female and one of the four senior management is female.
The Group will strive to maintain an appropriate balance of
gender diversity so that it will have a pipeline of diversified
gender for senior management and potential successors to
the Board going forward.

The Nomination Committee has reviewed the board diversity
and the Board Diversity Policy and believes that the current
composition of the Board satisfies the Board Diversity Policy
and demonstrates a thorough consideration of the factors
for achieving board diversity, and the Board Diversity Policy
continues to be effective.



E5E (18)

SF IO (18)

MR2023F 128310 EEeHEFXKEA

EFREBHS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Board Composition (Continued)

An analysis of the Board’s current composition at

Ao 31 December 2023 is as follows:
B=
Directors
A Bat
Number Percentage
B A Designation
WITES Executive Directors 3 37.5%
FIEEE (F/F) Mr WANG Fei (Chairman)
BEXBEEE (BIEE) Mr HUANG Wensheng (Vice Chairman)
BRF ST (AEACHE) Mr CHEN Yu (General Manager)
FEHITES Non-executive Directors 2 25.0%
PREF KL Mr HON Hau Chit
THEEA S A Mr YANG Jingchao
BN IERITES Independent Non-executive Directors 3 37.5%
HRIA L Mr IP Kai Ming
RIF A Mr CHEUNG Man Hoi
ZAlIE 5 4 Mr LEUNG Chong Shun
5l Gender
Bt Male 8 100%
FirAE Rl Age Group
71-80 5% 71-80 years old 1 12.5%
51-60 5% 51-60 years old 6 75.0%
41-50 5% 41-50 years old 1 12.5%
EEARRESNEH Directorship with the Company
(£8) (Number of years)
B 20F Over 20 years 1 12.5%
1-10 4 1-10 years 7 87.5%
BEEEM LT ARNES Directorship with other listed companies
(AEIEE) (Number of companies)
1 1 2 25.0%
0 0 6 75.0%
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{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

An updated list of Directors and their roles and functions
together with the information of their roles as Independent
Non-executive Directors is posted on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange. The updated biographical
details of the Directors are set out in the Biographical Details
of Directors and Senior Management on pages 24 to 33 of
this annual report. Independent Non-executive Directors
are also identified as such in all corporate communications
that disclose the names of the Company’s Directors. Save
as disclosed under the section headed “Biographical Details
of Directors and Senior Management”, there is no financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationships
between Board members.

The Company has a formal procedure for the appointment
of new directors. Any proposed appointment will be first
reviewed by the Nomination Committee of the Board,
taking into account the balance of skills, knowledge and
experience on the Board. Upon recommendation of the
Nomination Committee, the proposed appointment will
then be reviewed by the Board and, if thought fit, approved
by the Board or by the Shareholders in any general meeting.

All directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years. All retiring directors are eligible for
re-election at each annual general meeting in accordance
with the Articles of Association of the Company. Any new
director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or appointed as an
addition to the Board shall hold office until the next annual
general meeting of the Company following his appointment,
and shall then be eligible for re-election at that meeting.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Role and Function of the Board

The Board determines the Group’s overall corporate
objectives, business strategies and operational policies.
The Board continuously monitors and evaluates the Group's
operational and financial performance, maintains effective
oversight over the management, risks assessment and
controls over business operations. The Board also decides on
matters such as annual budgets and business plans, major
transactions, appointment of new directors, re-appointment
or re-designation of directors, dividend distribution and
accounting policies, and ESG management approach
and strategy. The Board has delegated the authority and
responsibility for implementing its business strategies and
managing the daily operations of the Group’s businesses to
the General Manager Meeting which is led by the General
Manager of the Company, who is also an Executive Director
of the Company.

Non-executive Directors (including the Independent Non-
executive Directors) have made positive and constructive
contributions to the development of the Company’s
corporate objectives, business strategies and operational
policies through independent, constructive and informed
advice. They gave the Board and the Board Committees
on which they served the benefit of their skills, expertise
and experiences through regular attendance and active
participation.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Role and Function of the Board (Continued)

The Board is responsible for determining the corporate
governance policies of the Company. During the year,
the Board developed and reviewed the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance and made
recommendations as below:

. To develop and review the corporate culture, mission
and value of the Company;

. To develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

. To review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

. To review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

. To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to the
directors and employees;

. To review the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure requirements in the Corporate
Governance Report; and

. To develop and review ESG management approach and
strategy, including but not limited to the endorsement
of ESG philosophy and governance structure, the
determination of ESG targets, the evaluation and
determination of ESG-related risks, and the review and
approval of the ESG Report.

All Directors are required to disclose to the Company their
offices held in other public companies or organisations,
other major appointments and professional qualifications.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Board Independence

The Company recognises that Board independence is critical
to constitute good corporate governance. The Company
has established different channels through formal and
informal means to ensure independent views and input are
available to the Board. The Board reviews the channels on an
annual basis, including the proportion and independence of
Independent Non-executive Directors, and their contribution
and access to external independent professional advice.

During the year under review, three out of the eight
Directors are Independent Non-executive Directors, the
number of Independent Non-executive Directors represents
at least one-third of the Board. All Independent Non-
executive Directors have made annual confirmation of
independence to the Company as required under the
Listing Rules, the Nomination Committee has assessed the
independence of Independent Non-executive Directors
and the continued independence of the current long-
serving Independent Non-executive Directors. The Board
considers all its Independent Non-executive Directors to be
independent.

All Directors actively participated in the Board and Board
Committees meetings and expressed their views in an
open and candid manner. The Chairman of the Board (the
“Chairman”) will meet with the Independent Non-executive
Directors at least annually without the presence of other
Directors and senior management and all Directors has been
provided with sufficient resources to perform its duties,
including but not limited to seeking legal or independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expense.

The Board is of the view that the channels to ensure
independent views and input are available to the Board are
effective and the Board has a strong independent element
and operates effectively.

—Z— =F4F3R Annual Report 2023

43



4i

EXREGHRS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

E5E (18)
EEERF

EZeBFELBTHRERGE Ul
AEBMERERNRE  YEBFTERE
ZNREE - RTREEXREZLZELR
% THEFegaNBEH—REFEL
2 BUEBFHEBRERHEMRESHED
MMBENFHE - AAWERDHESSRE
BEHIE EANEFSEIARESFEZR
EeedRAME L3R EFHEFTEZ
BEgXEBRTHEHAREMEBESTS T
FEEEREEXN - BEEENTERERS
LREFGZRE@RHETENENRERE - U
EREFENEEETGNEZS LB SR
AER  EFBMEAE R EEL BN
AHE - ERALENBRBNERS D RIE XSG
EREENEFSZEGNEMERERMT
B-EFEREFERECRALEART
WERE YRR TEREH -

PREENARELAEIAEMAEENEY
XHFER o i EREREEE FRE
HAEBMNEBRE - MR RATSER T
RAIEBREH AT Ao MR AR E R
& UHERTSRTRESTRITE(ETR
A MBS - EZ S RERNZES A LAES
MBUEZEBARATNSREREABMNARW
= .

EEPARNEEBATRESTSRIZ RS
KBIBEXEER  BRERAARNRRN -

{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Board Meetings

The Board meets regularly, and at least four times a year,
to review business development and performance of the
Group and additional meetings will be held as and when
required. Board meetings are normally scheduled in advance
to facilitate fullest possible attendance. Each Director is
invited to present any businesses that he wishes to discuss
or propose at such meetings. The Company Secretary assists
the Board in preparing the agenda for meetings. Directors or
Board Committee members receive the meeting agenda and
accompanying Board papers or Board Committee papers at
least three days before the date of Board meeting or Board
Committee meeting. Management also supplies the Board
and the Board Committees with sufficient information and
explanations so as to enable them to make an informed
assessment of financial and other information put before
the Board and the Board Committees for review and
approval. Draft and final versions of minutes are circulated
to all the Directors and Board Committee members for
their comments and records respectively. Minutes of Board
meetings and Board Committee meetings are kept by the
Company Secretary and are open for inspection by the
Directors.

All Directors have full access to business documents and
information of the Group on a timely basis. Furthermore,
management provides all Directors with monthly updates
which give a balanced and understandable assessment
of the Group’s performance, position and prospects in
sufficient detail to enable the Board as a whole and each
Director to discharge their duties under the Listing Rules.
The Board and each Director has separate and independent
access to senior management and Company Secretary of the
Company.

Directors may seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense upon
making requests to the Board.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Board Meetings (Continued)

Directors make their best efforts to contribute to the
development of strategy, policies and decision-making by
attending the Board meetings in person or via telephone/
video conferencing.

The attendance records of four scheduled Board meetings
held in 2023 and the annual general meeting of the
Company are set out below:

HERE EFRH
Attendance/Number of Meetings
BRRAFAE
Exg Annual
Board General
EEpnE Name of Directors Meetings Meeting
WiITES Executive Directors
FIESE (FE) Mr WANG Fei (Chairman) 4/4 11
(R202342 H28 HZ1F) (Appointed on 28 February 2023)
BRIEdRA (F/E) Mr YAN Zheng (Chairman) @A T E
(R 20234 2 A 28 HEFF) (Resigned on 28 February 2023) N/A N/A
BEXBRE (BI£E) Mr HUANG Wensheng (Vice Chairman) 4/4 11
(R2023F2 F28 HZ(F) (Appointed on 28 February 2023)
RN E (BIF/E) Mr CHEN lJie (Vice Chairman) T3 R i@
(202342 A28 HEFHT) (Resigned on 28 February 2023) N/A N/A
BRF ST (AEACHE) Mr CHEN Yu (General Manager) 4/4 11
FEMITES Non-executive Directors
PRERESRL Mr HON Hau Chit 4/4 11
HEEA S A Mr YANG Jingchao 3/4 1/1
B IERITES Independent Non-executive Directors
HRIA L Mr IP Kai Ming 4/4 1/1
SRIB S Mr CHEUNG Man Hoi 3/4 11
ZAINE % £ Mr LEUNG Chong Shun 4/4 1/1
F R RITIER A Chairman and Chief Executive

TREEARFBEE (ATREEZF 51T
B)ZBBATRALESE UAEEEEE
ERAEEREERBEENBRESAARR

7 e

The positions of the Chairman and the General Manager
(acting in the capacity of the Chief Executive) of the
Company are held by separate individuals with a view to
maintain an effective segregation of duties regarding the
management of the Board and the day-to-day management
of the Group’s businesses.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Chairman and Chief Executive (Continued)

One of the important roles of Mr WANG Fei, the Chairman,
is to provide leadership to the Board to ensure that the
Board acts in the best interests of the Group. The Chairman
ensures that the Board works effectively and discharges its
responsibilities, and that all key and appropriate issues are
discussed by the Board in a timely manner. The Chairman
has delegated the responsibility for drawing up the agenda
for each Board meeting to the General Manager, Mr CHEN
Yu.

Senior management is responsible for the day-to-day
management and operations of the Group under the
leadership of the General Manager of the Company. The
General Manager, supported by senior management, is
responsible for managing the businesses of the Group,
including the implementation of strategies adopted by the
Board and assuming full accountability to the Board for the
operations of the Group.

Other than regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held
meetings with the Independent Non-executive Directors
without the presence of other Directors and senior
management.

Independence of Independent Non-executive Directors

More than one-third of the members of the Board consist
of independent non-executive directors and at least one
of whom has appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has made
an annual confirmation of independence to the Company
and their independence have been assessed with reference
to the criteria as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
Following such assessment, the Board has affirmed that all
Independent Non-executive Directors remain independent.

The re-election of an Independent Non-executive Director
who has served the Board for more than nine years will
be subject to a separate resolution to be approved by the
Shareholders in the annual general meeting. The Board will
assess the independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors and state the reasons why the Board considers the
Independent Non-executive Directors are still independent
and recommend the Shareholders to vote in favor of the re-
election of the Independent Non-executive Directors.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Term of appointment of Non-executive Directors

The Non-executive Directors of the Company have not
been appointed for a specific term but they are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meetings of the Company in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company.

Directors’ Training

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure their contribution to
the Board remains informed and relevant. In 2023, the
Company has arranged two seminars for the Directors and
senior management with topics covered the compliance
requirements on corporate governance, ESG and Listing
Rules. The Company has also provided training materials to
the Directors and senior management with the emphasis on
the updates on corporate governance, internal control and
ESG matters.

According to the records maintained by the Company, the
Directors received trainings in the following areas:

Attended Read
EENE Name of Directors seminar materials
HITES Executive Directors
FIESE (F/E) Mr WANG Fei (Chairman) v/ v/
(20232 28 HE(F) (Appointed on 28 February 2023)
BRIESLE (F/F) Mr YAN Zheng (Chairman) TEA N/A v/
(R 2023 % 2 A 28 HFHF) (Resigned on 28 February 2023)
BXBRE (BIEE) Mr HUANG Wensheng (Vice Chairman) v v
(20232 F28 HE(F) (Appointed on 28 February 2023)
BRI E (5/E/E) Mr CHEN lJie (Vice Chairman) B N/A v/
(R 2023 % 2 A 28 AHFHF) (Resigned on 28 February 2023)
PRF ST (AEACHE) Mr CHEN Yu (General Manager) v v
EHITES Non-executive Directors
BEEENSE Mr HON Hau Chit v/ v/
BEEA S A Mr YANG Jingchao v v/
BYIEHITES Independent Non-executive Directors
ERAALESE Mr IP Kai Ming v 7
ROB A Mr CHEUNG Man Hoi v v/
A8 E Mr LEUNG Chong Shun v v
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Liability Insurance for Directors

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage
on directors’ and officers’ liabilities against possibility of
legal action to be taken against the directors and senior
management. No claim under such insurance policy was
made in 2023.

BOARD COMMITTEE

The Board has established four Board Committees, namely
the Executive Committee, the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee.
Each of the Board Committees has its terms of reference
with defined powers and authorities given to the Committee
members to discharge their duties. The terms of reference
of all the Non-executive Board Committees have been made
available on the Company’s website and the website of the
Stock Exchange.

The Audit Committee comprises solely of Independent
Non-executive Directors. Majority of the Remuneration
Committee members and the Nomination Committee
members are Independent Non-executive Directors while
the Executive Committee comprises all Executive Directors.
The General Manager Meeting set up by the Executive
Committee and endorsed by the Board comprises the
General Manager, who is also an Executive Director, and the
senior management of the Company.

Executive Committee

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility
for implementing its business strategies and managing the
daily operations of the Group's businesses to the Executive
Committee which currently consists of three Executive
Directors, namely Mr WANG Fei (Chairman), Mr HUANG
Wensheng and Mr CHEN Yu.

Mr YAN Zheng has resigned as the chairman of the Executive
Committee and Mr WANG Fei has been appointed as the
chairman of the Executive Committee, both with effect from
28 February 2023.

Mr CHEN Jie has resigned as a member of the Executive
Committee and Mr HUANG Wensheng has been appointed
as a member of the Executive Committee, both with effect
from 28 February 2023.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)

Executive Committee (Continued)

To further improve the work process and enhance the
effectiveness, the Executive Committee has set up the
General Manager Meeting which has been endorsed by
the Board to exercise the authority and responsibility
delegated by the Board to the Executive Committee.
The General Manager Meeting meets at least once per
month and operates as a general management committee
under the direct authority of the Executive Committee.
It exercises the powers, authorities and discretions as
directed by the Executive Committee in so far as they
concern the management and daily operations of the Group
in accordance with its terms of reference and such other
policies and directives as the Executive Committee may
determine from time to time. The General Manager and the
senior management of the Company report periodically
to the Executive Committee for the daily operations and
management status of the Group.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises three Independent
Non-executive Directors and is chaired by Mr CHEUNG Man
Hoi. Mr CHEUNG Man Hoi has accumulated over 20 years of
experience in professional accounting, business consulting
and corporate management. The other members are Mr IP
Kai Ming and Mr LEUNG Chong Shun.

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing, among
other things, the Group’s financial reporting and ESG
reporting, the nature and scope of audit, the effectiveness
of the systems of internal control and risk management,
and compliance relating to financial reporting and ESG
reporting. The Audit Committee is also responsible for
making recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment, removal and remuneration of the Group'’s
external auditor. The Audit Committee meets regularly to
perform its duties and has a separate meeting with the
external auditor in the absence of management to discuss
any audit issues and any other matters the external auditor
may wish to raise. The Audit Committee can perform its
duties with unrestricted access to both the Group's external
and internal auditors. Sufficient resources are provided
to the Audit Committee to discharge its duties including
but not limited to obtaining legal or other independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expense.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

During the year, the Audit Committee has performed, inter
alia, the following:

. reviewed and discussed with external auditor the
annual results for the year ended 31 December 2022
and the interim results for the six months ended
30 June 2023 and recommended to the Board for
approval respectively;

. reviewed and obtained explanation from management
on the interim and annual results, including causes
of changes from the previous accounting period,
effects on the application of new accounting policies,
and compliance with the Listing Rules and relevant
legislation;

. reviewed the activities of the Group’s risk management,
compliance management and internal audit functions
and their findings and recommendations as laid down
in their respective reports;

. oversaw the ESG issue of the Group and reviewed ESG
Report for the year of 2022;

. reviewed the internal audit plan for the year of 2023;

. reviewed the risk management system, risk appetite
report and risk management work plan for the year of
2024;

. recommended the Board regarding the re-appointment

of the Company’s external auditor;
. reviewed the audit plan for the year of 2023;

. considered the adequacy of resources, professional
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting, risk management,
internal control and internal audit functions, and their
training programs and budget; and

. held a meeting with the external auditor, in the
absence of management, to discuss any audit issues
and any other matters the external auditor may wish to
raise.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

In 2023, the Audit Committee held three meetings. The
attendance record of each Committee member is set out
below:

HERE SRAH

REHA Name of Committee Members Attendance/Number of Meetings
BYIERITES Independent Non-executive Directors

RXOGRE (F/E) Mr CHEUNG Man Hoi (Chairman) 3/3

BRI SLE Mr IP Kai Ming 3/3

REINES £ Mr LEUNG Chong Shun 3/3

HHEEE

FMEE SR ARMUMEARK - Hp R
DRERBIFATES - FTNZESHE
MIEMITEEEMASLELETE - EMAK
BRERXERE  RAIRELE RFEL
KRBT L ©

FNEZE SR ETAANRANFINBE - U
RElERBNARRAEERSREEABR
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises five
Committee members, the majority of whom are Independent
Non-executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee
is chaired by Mr IP Kai Ming who is an Independent Non-
executive Director, the other members are Mr CHEUNG
Man Hoi, Mr LEUNG Chong Shun, Mr CHEN Yu and Mr CHAN
Kwong Yu.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for considering
and making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s remuneration policy, and the formulation and
review of the remuneration packages of all Directors and
the senior management of the Company. The Remuneration
Committee meets at least once a year and reports to the
Board on the decisions or recommendations following
each meeting. Sufficient resources are provided to the
Remuneration Committee to discharge its duties including
but not limited to obtaining legal or other independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expense.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has
performed, inter alia, the following:

reviewed the proposal for salary adjustments to its
employees and recommended the same to the Board
for approval;

reviewed the proposal for the remuneration package
of the Directors and senior management and
recommended the same to the Board for approval;

reviewed the proposal for payment of bonus to the
senior management and recommended the same to
the Board for approval;

reviewed the directors’ fees for the year of 2023 and
recommended the same to the Board for endorsement;
and

considered the director’s fees for the newly appointed
Directors and recommended the same to the Board for
approval.

In 2023, the Remuneration Committee held four meetings.
The attendance record of each Committee member is set out

below:
HERE SRR

REHSE Name of Committee Members Attendance/Number of Meeting
BYIERITES Independent Non-executive Directors

ERBEE (FE) Mr IP Kai Ming (Chairman) 4/4

REEA Mr CHEUNG Man Hoi 4/4

2 ENE 5 £ Mr LEUNG Chong Shun 4/4
WITES Executive Director

BRI A (AEACFE) Mr CHEN Yu (General Manager) 4/4
BHREEBAE Senior Management

BRETF LA Mr CHAN Kwong Yu 4/4
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

Details of the remuneration of Directors are disclosed
on an individual basis and are set out in Note 11(a) to
the consolidated financial statements of the Group. The
remuneration payable to the senior management of the
Company by band for the year ended 31 December 2023 is
set out in Note 11(c) to the consolidated financial statement
of the Group.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises four Committee
members. The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr
WANG Fei, the Chairman of the Board, and the other
members are three Independent Non-executive Directors,
Mr IP Kai Ming, Mr CHEUNG Man Hoi and Mr LEUNG Chong
Shun.

Mr YAN Zheng has resigned as the chairman of the
Nomination Committee and Mr WANG Fei has been
appointed as the chairman of the Nomination Committee,
both with effect from 28 February 2023.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on nominations,
appointments or re-appointments of Directors and Board
Committee members in accordance with the Company’s
Nomination Policy. The Nomination Policy sets out the
procedures, process and criteria for identifying and
recommending candidates for election to the Board. The
Nomination Committee considers and reviews, among other
things, the structure, size, composition and diversity of
the Board, the balance of skills, knowledge and experience
of the candidates, independence of Independent Non-
executive Directors, re-election of retiring Directors, term
of appointment and time commitment of Non-executive
Directors (including Independent Non-executive Directors)
and the membership of respective Board Committees. The
Nomination Committee is also responsible for developing
and reviewing measurable objectives for the Company’s
Board Diversity Policy to ensure its effectiveness. The
Nomination Committee meets at least once a year and
reports to the Board on the decisions or recommendations
following each meeting. Sufficient resources are provided to
the Nomination Committee to discharge its duties including
but not limited to obtaining legal or other independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company'’s expense.
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B (EERZTEBR) MERLE .

BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

inter alia, the following:

During the year, the Nomination Committee has performed,

reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of

M WIREBZBRBRIEFTSMR
B RENAK (BREETRNEEE -
B EE)  WAEESIEHER

e R B FFITE E B ¢

BERAEFSHBEZIHES &

the Board Diversity Policy and the structure, size
and composition (including but not limited to the
skills, knowledge and experiences) of the Board
in accordance with the Board Diversity Policy and
reported to the Board;

reviewed and assessed the independence of the
Independent Non-executive Directors;

reviewed and recommended to the Board for the

e MERE TSN 2023 FRTHMR .
RBEFAS LHEBERREES -

REZEGMN2023FHITT —R

FB 2 HERSEHTIINT

appointment of new Directors; and

annual general meeting held in 2023.

2% c B In 2023, the Nomination Committee held one meeting. The

reviewed and recommended to the Board for the
proposed re-election of the retiring Directors at the

attendance record of each Committee member is set out

below:
HERE EFXE
REHR Name of Committee Members Attendance/Number of Meeting
WITES Executive Directors
TIESE (£E) Mr WANG Fei (Chairman) 11
(R202342 F 28 HZ1F) (Appointed on 28 February 2023)
BRIESAE (/%) Mr YAN Zheng (Chairman) Nz
(R 20232 A 28 HEFF) (Resigned on 28 February 2023) N/A
B IEMITES Independent Non-executive Directors
ERAALAE Mr IP Kai Ming 11
SR BSRAE Mr CHEUNG Man Hoi 11
2 A8 % A Mr LEUNG Chong Shun 11
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DIRECTORS" SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted its own code of conduct
regarding directors’ securities transactions (the “Code of
Conduct”) on terms no less exacting than the required
standard in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules. The Company has made
specific enquiry to all Directors and all Directors of the
Company have confirmed that they have complied with the
required standards as set out in the Model Code and the
Company’s Code of Conduct throughout the year ended 31
December 2023.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Board aims at making a balanced, clear and
comprehensive assessment of the Company’s performance,
position and prospects. The Directors are responsible
for overseeing the preparation of consolidated financial
statements of each financial year which give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Company and its
subsidiaries at the end of the reporting period and of their
financial performance and cash flows for that period then
ended. In preparing the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2023, the Directors
selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently, adopted appropriate Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and Hong Kong Accounting Standards
which are pertinent to its operations and relevant to the
financial statements, made judgement and estimates that
are prudent and reasonable, and prepared the accounts on a
going concern basis.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the accounts of the Company on a going concern basis.
The consolidated financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2023
have been audited by the external auditor, Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, and reviewed by the Audit Committee. At 31
December 2023, the Directors were not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which
might cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

The responsibilities of the external auditor with respect
to the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended
31 December 2023 are set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 85 to 94 of this annual report.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for maintaining
and overseeing an appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems. The risk
management and internal control systems will monitor the
material aspects of the Group’s business and operations
and also to safeguard its assets. Such systems are designed
to manage the Group’s risks within an acceptable risk
profile, rather than to eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable but
not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss, and to manage and minimise risks of failure in
operational systems.

The Board has adopted the Risk Management Policy which
covers the Group’s risk appetite and risk management
framework at strategic and operational levels in identifying,
measuring, monitoring and controlling risks including
but not limited to credit risk, market risk, insurance risk,
operational risk, investment risk, compliance risk and
ESG risk, the details of which were set out in the Risk
Management and Internal Control Report on pages 64 to
71 of this annual report and a separate ESG Report, which
will be available at the Company’s website under the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reports and the
website of the Stock Exchange on the same publication date
of this report.

The Board oversees the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems with the
assistance of the Audit Committee and the Risk Management
Department of the Company. Risk Management Department
developed the risk registers and risk management manual
for implementing risk management and internal control
practices. The Manager of Risk Management Department
is also responsible for reviewing the risk management
status in the Group, to monitor and review the execution of
and compliance with the established risk control policies
and measures. Regular audits or reviews are conducted
to provide assurance that the risk controls are in place in
business and operational units of the Group. The Manager
of Risk Management Department presents reports to the
members of the Audit Committee on the effectiveness of
risk management and internal control systems.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)

Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)

The Board also delegates the responsibility for reviewing
the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems to the Audit Committee. The
Audit Committee monitors the Group’s risk management
processes and internal control systems through the Internal
Audit Department. The Internal Audit Department performs
ongoing assessments and regular independent reviews of all
material controls of the Group, checks for compliance with
policies and standards and evaluates the effectiveness of
internal control structures across the Group.

As assessed by the ESG Working Group and the General
Manager Meeting during the year, the Group is exposed to
climate-related risks that may cause physical damages to
our office premises and financial losses to our insurance
business. The Group has embedded climate-related risks into
its risk management process and risk register and expanded
the climate-related risks as part of its stress and scenario
testing to access the impact of possible financial losses and
financial positions.

The Audit Committee has considered and reviewed the
climate-related risks and the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems covering
all material controls, including financial, operational,
compliance, ESG and risk management functions during
the year, the resources allocated to risk management
and internal control operations, and the risks that we
may be faced in the operations. The Audit Committee
has reported the review result to the Board following
each Audit Committee meeting. The Board has reviewed
and considered, and was satisfied with the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems and the risk
management functions are effective, adequate and in
compliance with the risk management and internal control
code provisions of the CG Code.

The Group will closely follow changes in regulations
regarding climate-related disclosures, to identify emerging
transition risks and opportunities, and closely examine the
effects of climate change on our insurance business in order
to assess and mitigate risks.

—Z— =F4F3R Annual Report 2023

57



58

EXREGHRS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

% 2160 B =

REBEFA @ BT EIAR R IMNEZE
EMiEg . =PRSS EHENTT A E X EUR
% (BREEME BN BEREERE179RA4ER
B BMEMNECETER)  RITHERE
Fr (BEAARRARIMP B BERE) REB% &G
RIS E A5 Bl &5 # 4,834,000 7T B
323,000 7T M 75 ¥ 386,400 7T °

NCIEDE

MBELLIRARANRAMERRER
R MBARBNEZREER W THEARF]
BEEH wRERAEEFSTF  SEFNE
REER YBEEREFSRHEERTHEN
BR - HEREN2023FERAEI TIN5
/N 2 PR B SR AR I A SE T A O B BE AN RN

FE

BRRRAS ([RRAE])
BHEGSRBRERRAS LRORNK BN
RFRERD 5N BRRAGRLFRARE
ERRADABRRAE -

EK

@ BMBEFEREAR LRIEH
— AR

(b) A BREZMBIARILH N

© FRETEREAR LAELEHLHE
TR LB AR SO |

(d) ZARRBZERNAEARE

(e) ARMHARFAHAEFHARXRIAR
E_‘I o

{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

During the year under review, the fees paid or payable
to the external auditor of the Company, Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu for statutory audit services (including services for
the statutory audit of the consolidated financial statements
on adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
17), agreed-upon procedures (in relation to interim financial
statements issued by the Company) and tax and consultancy
services were HK$4,834,000, HK$323,000 and HK$386,400
respectively.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms Tse Ching Wah is the Company Secretary and an
Authorised Representative of the Company. Ms Tse is a
full time employee of the Company and has day-to-day
knowledge of the Company'’s affairs. She should report to
the Chairman, Vice Chairman and the General Manager
and is responsible for advising the Board on governance
matters. She confirmed that she has taken no less than 15
hours relevant professional training to update her skills and
knowledge during the year 2023.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convening a General Meeting (“GM”)

Shareholder(s) of the Company representing at least 5% of
the total voting rights of all the members having a right to
vote at general meetings may request the Directors of the
Company to call a GM of the Company.

The request:

(@) must state the general nature of the business to be
dealt with at the GM;

(b) may consist of several documents in like form;

() may include the text of a resolution that may properly
be moved and is intended to be moved at the GM;

(d) must be authenticated by the person or persons
making it; and

(e) may be sent to the Company in hard copy form or in
electronic form.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (Continued)

Convening a General Meeting (“GM”) (Continued)

The request will be verified with the Company’s share
registrar and upon its confirmation that the request is
proper and in order, the Company Secretary will notify the
Directors to proceed to convene a GM within 21 days from
the date of the receipt of the request. Such GM must be held
on a date not more than 28 days after the date of the notice
convening the GM.

If the Directors fail to convene a GM within 21 days from
the date of the receipt of the request, the shareholder(s)
who requested the GM, or any of them representing more
than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene the GM. Any GM so convened shall not
be held after the expiration of three months from the date
of the receipt of the request.

A GM so convened by the shareholder(s) concerned shall be
convened in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that
in which meetings are to be convened by the Directors.

Any reasonable expenses incurred by the shareholder(s)
concerned by reason of the failure of the Directors
duly to convene a meeting shall be reimbursed to such
shareholder(s) by the Company.

For further details, shareholders are kindly requested to refer
to Sections 566 to 568 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”).

Moving a Resolution at an Annual General Meeting
("AGM”)

Shareholders of the Company may request the Company
to give, to shareholders of the Company entitled to receive
notice of AGM, notice of resolution that may properly be
moved and is intended to be moved at the AGM. Such
shareholders must represent:

(@) at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the
shareholders who have a right to vote on the resolution

at the AGM to which the requests relate; or

(b) at least 50 shareholders who have a right to vote on
the resolution at the AGM to which the requests relate.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (Continued)

Moving a Resolution at an Annual General Meeting
(“AGM”] (Continued])

The request (i) may be sent to the Company in hard copy
form or electronic form; (ii) must identify the resolution of
which notice is to be given; (iii) must be authenticated by
the person or persons making it; and (iv) must be received
by the Company not later than 6 weeks before the AGM to
which the request relates; or if later, the time at which notice
is given of that meeting.

In addition, the request will be verified with the Company'’s
share registrar and upon its confirmation that the request is
proper and in order, the Company Secretary will notify the
Directors for including the resolution in the agenda for the
AGM.

The Company is required to give notice of the resolution
at the Company’s own expense to each shareholder of the
Company entitled to receive notice of the AGM in the same
manner as the notice of AGM; and at the same time as, or as
soon as reasonably practicable after, it gives notice of AGM.

For further details, shareholders are kindly requested to
refer to Sections 615 and 616 of the Companies Ordinance.

Circulation of Statement at General Meetings

If shareholders of the Company would like to express their
views to a matter mentioned in a proposed resolution or
other business to be dealt with at a GM, they can submit
a written statement of not more than 1,000 words with
respect to that matter or business and request the Company
to circulate their written statement to the shareholders
of the Company entitled to receive notice of GM. Such
shareholders must represent:

(a) at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the
shareholders having the relevant right to vote at the
meeting; or

(b) at least 50 shareholders having the relevant right to
vote at the meeting.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (Continued)

Circulation of Statement at General Meetings
(Continued)

The shareholders having the right to vote mean (i) in relation
to a proposed statement concerning a matter mentioned in
a proposed resolution, a right to vote on that resolution at
the meeting to which the requests relate; and (ii) in relation
to any other statement, a right to vote at the meeting to
which the requests relate.

The request to circulate a statement (i) may be sent to
the Company in hard copy form or in electronic form; (ii)
must identify the statement to be circulated; (iii) must be
authenticated by the person or persons making it; and (iv)
must be received by the Company at least 7 days before the
meeting to which the request relates.

The request will be verified with the Company’s share
registrar and upon its confirmation that the request is proper
and in order, the Company will circulate the statement to
each shareholder of the Company entitled to receive notice
of the meeting provided that:

(@) if the request relates to an AGM and the proposed
statement is received in time to enable the Company
to send a copy of the statement at the same time as
it gives notice of AGM. Otherwise, the shareholders
concerned have to deposit a sum reasonably sufficient
to meet the Company’s expenses in circulating the
statement submitted by the shareholders concerned
not later than 7 days before the AGM;

(b) if the request relates to a GM (other than an AGM),
the shareholders concerned have to deposit a sum
reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses
in circulating the statement submitted by the
shareholders concerned not later than 7 days before
the GM.

For further details, shareholders are kindly requested to
refer to Sections 580 to 582 of the Companies Ordinance.

Further, a shareholder may propose a person other than a
retiring Director of the Company for election as a Director of
the Company at a GM. The procedures for such proposal are
available on the website of the Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (Continued)

Putting Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries requiring the Board'’s
attention in writing together with his/her contact details
addressing to the registered office of the Company or by
email to mxhl.enquiry@minxin.com.hk for the attention of
the Company Secretary.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has adopted the Shareholders Communication
Policy aims at enhancing the efficiency of communication
amongst the Shareholders, the Board and the senior
management of the Company through various official
channels so that the Shareholders can access the Company’s
public information equally in a timely manner. Information
would be communicated to the Shareholders mainly
through the Company’s corporate communications, such as
interim and annual reports, announcements and circulars,
and annual general meetings, as well as disclosures on the
website of the Company. The Shareholders are provided
with contact details of the Company in order to enable
them to make any query that they may have with respect
to the Company. They can also send their enquiries to the
Board through these means. In addition, the Shareholders
can contact the Company’s share registrar if they have any
enquiries about their shareholdings and entitlements to
dividend.

The Board is of the view that the Shareholders
Communication Policy promotes effective communication
between the Company and the Shareholders, and the
Shareholders Communication Policy continues effective.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted the Dividend Policy which
has set out the principle and procedures for the payment
of dividend to the Shareholders to provide stable and
sustainable returns to the Shareholders and to share
the profits of the Company with the Shareholders. The
Board may decide from time to time to declare interim
dividend or to recommend the payment of final dividend
and special dividend to the Shareholders which is subject
to the Shareholders’ approval in a general meeting. The
Company intends to provide the eligible Shareholders with
approximately 10% to 20% of the Group’s consolidated profit
for the year attributable to the Shareholders as dividend, the
remaining consolidated profit for the year will be used for
the future development and operations of the Company.
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ANTI-CORRUPTION AND WHISTLEBLOWING
POLICY

The Group has zero tolerance for bribery and corruption. The
Group has adopted the Anti-corruption Policy, which aims at
requiring employees of the Group and the stakeholders and
third parties who deal with the Group to comply with any
applicable laws, rules and regulations relating to anti-bribery
and anti-corruption, including but not limited to the Prevention
of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter 201 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
relevant guidelines issued by the Independent Commission
Against Corruption and other jurisdictions in which the Group
operates, or in any applicable case, similar laws and regulations.
To encourage employees of the Group and the stakeholders
and third parties who deal with the Group to raise concerns
and report in confidence about misconducts, malpractices or
irregularities in any matters related to the Group, and providing
with reporting channels and guidelines, the Group has also
adopted the Whistleblowing Policy. The Audit Committee is
responsible for monitoring and reviewing the effectiveness of
the Anti-corruption Policy and Whistleblowing Policy and the
actions resulting from any investigation.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company adopted the amended and restated Articles
of Association in substitution for, and to the exclusion of,
the then existing Articles of Association of the Company by
a special resolution at the AGM held on 13 June 2023. The
amendments made were to bring the Articles of Association
in line with the current provisions of the Companies
Ordinance and the amendments made to Appendix A1
to the Listing Rules which took effect on 1 January 2022
introducing a common set of core shareholder protection
standards which shall apply to all listed issuers in Hong
Kong, as well as to modernise and update the Articles of
Association. Please refer to the circular of the Company
dated 24 April 2023 for details of the amendments.

The amended and restated Articles of Association of the
Company is posted on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other change made to

the amended and restated Articles of Association during the
year and up to the date of this annual report.
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Figure 1 : Risk Management Framework
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Min Xin Holdings Limited (the “Company “) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) strive to establish a sound
risk management and internal control system to
achieve sustainable development and be responsible to
shareholders. The Board of the Company (the “Board”) has
the overall responsibility for maintaining the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control system. The senior
management is charged with the responsibility to establish
and implement such system to control risks arising from
business activities within an acceptable level via an effective
risk management process.

During the year under review, the Group complied with the
above principles and the CG Codes D.2.1 to D.2.7 and the
recommended best practices D.2.8 and D.2.9. The details are
summarised as follows:

B2 BRI R
Figure 2 : Risk Appetite Framework
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Note:  Five core principles include: Securing capital adequacy; Maintaining a strong liquidity position; Preserving
good reputation; Complying with regulatory and compliance management requirements; Matching
between risks and returns.

El4
Figure 4

BEREERE

: R|sk Management Process

e B 28k

Risk Identification

04

Risk Reporting

REIRE

01

03

A&

siskjeuy ys1y
4
%!

we

[ B B

Risk Monitoring

o
N




FEIRER R AIBEIZ KBRS

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL REPORT

FIIREIRIER (B 1)

il 7E ez i FRAE 2R E’JEE’JEEAEHTJ?@?E&$E
EEREENE R BERES  ERERED

Kt E s LAﬁE{%$$@Tﬁxﬁliﬂz$ﬂﬁﬂ
RERE - BRI LB AREERETE
MEXRRE - AREREMAEZ28RSMR
EEEIMNEEZRELZEE  HMERIUEE R

BB B IR R ST FE A ©

EiziRirieR (B2)

AEENRRREFERRELIEDANZORE
T BRE:REAEHNELR  #RFROHR
Bt RERMNEE mEEEHEARE
R R EE R AR

SREEERBAAZORANMELERR

ArRERESEMEARRBYEHRAESTSRE

E%ﬂﬁl e ARNEREEFEL —RED
BRI RE  WRFEEFSEL -

[ bR IS R R
3)

Ris k=8 &RERN (B8

AEBERBEGCHRREER L Y8
Em TR EEE S o B AR R EEASRE
BREFE SREEENSRBGEM -

. EEgARREEMNSR=SIEEEAMN I
EEZZEENH THHEAEEERK
KIS B ZRAMEAZEMNRR @ BREA
BB IR R NEBESIE R A B UM o

- PREEEEARVERRRE  ERR
® - ARERER L_LHEA“IEXHL
TR ERRREENABEERR -

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK (FIGURE 1)

The Group has established a risk management framework
to define its risk management objectives, risk appetite,
risk monitoring and reporting mechanism to enable the
effective implementation of the risk management process
by the Group. If there are any material risks being identified
that can have significant effect on the Group, it should
be immediately reported to the senior management or
notified to the Audit Committee to take appropriate risk
management action against the material risks.

RISK APPETITE FRAMEWORK (FIGURE 2]

The Group's risk appetite is based on five core principles,
including: Securing capital adequacy; Maintaining a strong
liquidity position; Preserving good reputation; Complying
with regulatory and compliance management requirements;
and Matching between risks and returns.

The senior management shall design risk indicators and
risk limits based on the five core principles and operating
environment. The senior management shall also report
its implementation status to the Board on a regular basis.
Meanwhile, a risk appetite statement report should be
compiled at least once a year and subsequently submitted
to the Board for approval.

RISK GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE AND THREE
LINES OF DEFENSE MODEL (FIGURE 3)

The Group has adopted a systematic risk management
approach to implement a top-down management
mechanism. The current risk management organisational
structure includes the Board, the senior management and
business divisions.

+  The Board is the highest steering committee for risk
management, and with the assistance of the Audit
Committee, it evaluates the risks that the Group is
willing to accept during the phase of achieving strategic
goals, so as to ensure the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control system.

+  The senior management is responsible for formulating
risk strategies, risk policies and risk management
framework; establishing the risk management culture;
and implementing and supervising the risk management
and internal control system.

—Z— =F4F3R Annual Report 2023

65



66

FIREIR R AIBEIEREIRS
RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL REPORT

RIS IERiIE R =BM xR (B 3)(48)
RISK GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE AND THREE LINES OF DEFENSE MODEL (FIGURE 3]

(Continued)
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Business divisions (and subsidiaries)
serve as the first line of defense. They
shall be responsible for managing
the risks arising from business
activities. At the same time, they
shall formulate relevant regulations
and processes in accordance with
risk management policies, carry out
specific risk management work, as well
as provide risk indicators to the risk
management function on a regular
basis to track the performance of risk
management. In addition, business
divisions (and subsidiaries) shall work
with the compliance management
function to ensure that the design of
various policies was in conformity with
the related regulations of competent
authorities.

The risk management function and
the compliance management function
are responsible for the second line
of defense. The risk management
function is responsible for collecting
key risk information, managing
the implementation status of its
risk indicators as well as issuing risk
warnings when those risk indicators
are close to exceeding the risk limits.
The compliance management
function is responsible for managing
the Company'’s internal systems,
monitoring whether each business
divisions has complied with relevant
internal policies in business operations,
duly performing supervisions and
inspections such as compliance
check and compliance examination,
and conducting inspections on the
compliance practice in business
operations. Meanwhile, the risk
management function and the
compliance management function
shall report the implementation status
of risk management to the senior
management, the Audit Committee
and the Board on a regular basis.

The internal audit function acts as the
third line of defense. The Board and
the Audit Committee are responsible
for leading the internal audit function
in inspecting and evaluating the
adequacy and the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control
system regularly, and requesting for
enhancements where appropriate.

{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited
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RISK GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE AND THREE
LINES OF DEFENSE MODEL (FIGURE 3)
(Continued)

+ Each business division is an implementation entity of
its respective business activities, and shall regularly
provide risk indicators to the risk management
department or internal audit function of the Company,
or corresponding function under the subsidiaries for
conducting risk management activities on the basis of
its current work.

At the same time, in order to implement the risk
management and internal control system effectively and to
achieve the goal of “To be risk-oriented and to comply with
the laws”, the Group has set up a “Three Lines of Defense”
model (Table 1) to ensure that the operational management
and business processes of the Group have been embedded
with risk management activities.

RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS (FIGURE 4]

The Group conducts risk management by adopting the
following risk management steps:

Step 1: Risk Identification - Identifying the significant
sources and types of risks faced by the Group;

Step 2: Risk Analysis — Evaluating the existing risks;

Step 3: Risk Monitoring - Setting key risk indicators
to identify significant risks based on the risk appetite
framework and monitoring risk changes on a regular basis;
and

Step 4: Risk Reporting - Concluding and analysing the
results of risk management and reporting the results to the
senior management, the Audit Committee and the Board.
The report also outlines the following items:

+ Implementation of risk indicators and limits; and
«  Risk assessment.

—Z— =F4F3R Annual Report 2023

67



68

FIREIR R AIBEIEREIRS

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL REPORT

REEFrBEEAIE AR KR

AREEHIILEELBOEAAR - IR
AR AEARRR - RBER - £
% - TIBER - RERBRRRSE LB RE
AR © ERE RIARE RGN T

e NS

(B2 AR AR | RIEH AR AR AL
DR R E R E R o

AEBREENRE/TANEREE &
REETHEER AARBBARNERERS
RABEUNMERMBREXENFEEES
FRETRRERE

R2023F K » BB ITEREEEGAE
B & E 45 69.82% ©

f PR 2L PR

[RERER | RIRE ERERFEFE - RUEUR
BB W HBAERRR ABE ZAREK K
BHOXMERFEALBBEERE - HIERY
ZBICERBRZEAR -

MERRERAR ([RERR]) BRL%
REEABEREBERY  WEBSENER
12 AP KRR IR IR B @A Fh R R E i
REAMAR  REEBHFRBLHESRR
ZHIFEAI R X EER

B IRERMN 2023 FEMER 258 (BIBRAT
WIRE) BE119,437 87T © 2022 FEH
B 20,3198 TR 4.4%

{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

SIGNIFICANT RISKS TO THE GROUP

The Group has identified significant risks in principal
businesses, which can be categorised as: Associated
company risk, Insurance risk, Credit risk, Market risk,
Operational risk and ESG risk. The summary about the risks
and related management measures are as follows:

Associated Company Risk

“Associated company risk “ is the risk of difficulty in realisation
of its equity interests of an associated company.

The most significant investment held by the Group is its equity
interests in XIB Group. Therefore, the Company conducts
risk management by nominating a director to the board
of directors of XIB and continuously monitoring long-term
investment performance to reduce uncertainty.

At the end of 2023, the total assets of our banking business
accounted for 69.82% of the Group’s total assets.

Insurance Risk

“Insurance risk” refers to the risk of losses resulting from
unexpected changes in the payment of claims and related
expenses in accordance with the contract after receiving
premiums and starting to undertake the risk of the insured
in the insurance business.

In order to reduce the risk, Min Xin Insurance Company
Limited (“Min Xin Insurance”) focuses on high-quality new
businesses with mature underwriting policies, and adopts
appropriate claim procedures to reduce the risks in claim
processing due to improper operations or negligence.
Besides, Min Xin Insurance has arranged the reinsurance to
control risks within an acceptable range.

The risk exposure (total gross written premium) of Min
Xin Insurance at the end of 2023 was HK$194.37 million, a
decrease of 4.4% as compared to HK$203.19 million at the
end of 2022.
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SIGNIFICANT RISKS TO THE GROUP (Continued)

Credit Risk

“Credit risk” is the risk of potential financial loss due to
counterparty or debtor failing or declining to perform
contractual obligations.

The credit risk of Min Xin Insurance is mainly from the risk
of treaty-reinsurer failing to execute the reinsurance treaty
resulting in Min Xin Insurance suffering financial loss and
may lead to an impairment of the Group’s consolidated
assets. Min Xin Insurance has selected treaty-reinsurers
with credit ratings of A- or above from Standard & Poor’s
(or equivalent) as business partners prior to arranging
reinsurance and has regularly monitored their credit ratings.
There were 13 treaty-reinsurers cooperating with Min Xin
Insurance, and their credit ratings were all above A- as at 31
December 2023.

The credit risk of the Sanming Sanyuan District Minxin
Micro Credit Company Limited (“Sanyuan Micro Credit”)
arises from the debtor failing or refusing to repay the loans
resulting in the increase of non-performing debts and may
lead to an impairment of the Group’s consolidated assets.
Sanyuan Micro Credit has stopped underwriting new loan
business and will continue to adopt proactive measures to
recover its non-performing loans.

Market Risk

“Market risk” is the risk due to price changes in financial
instruments which affect the value of the Group’s financial
assets and in turn create losses.

The Group’s risk management objective is to increase
shareholders’ value while ensuring that the risks will be
controlled within the Group’s acceptable range. The risk
exposures of the Group in major financial instruments
at the end of 2023 were: Stocks and Capital Security:
HK$630 million (market value), Funds: equivalent to
approximately HK$20.5 million (market value), Structured
deposits: RMB550.3 million (equivalent to HK$604.8 million)
(principal).

Besides, some of the investment products are denominated
in RMB. The Group may have exchange risk in the conversion
of RMB into HKD. After considering the application of fund,
the Group did not have any significant market risk resulting
from the exchange volatility as at 31 December 2023.
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SIGNIFICANT RISKS TO THE GROUP (Continued)

Operational Risk

“Operational risk” is the risk of losses due to improper
or faulty of internal operation, personnel and system, or
external events.

The Group manages and controls the risks through methods
such as effective work division and balancing mechanism,
sort major business segments and set up formal policies.

Environmental, Social and Governance Risk

The Group consolidates the Group’s risk management
culture and strengthens the balance between risk control
and business development by identifying, assessing and
managing the major ESG risks that may be faced in the
course of operations.

The Group reviews and identifies climate-related risks
every year in order to identify the impact of climate risks
on related businesses and formulate countermeasures to
improve our management and control of specific climate
risks.

During the reporting year, the ESG Working Group has
conducted the ESG risk assessment. According to the ESG
risk assessment result, ESG risks faced by the Group fell
into “medium” and “low” levels and were cybersecurity
risk, corruption and fraud risk and Physical Risk and ESG
Disclosure Requirement.

INSIDE INFORMATION AND DISCLOSURE

The Group has adopted the “Inside Information Disclosure
Policy” which has set out strict specification on areas such as
the definition of inside information, the requirements for the
release of inside information, the roles and responsibilities
of the Board and the senior management on inside
information management, the procedures and internal
control for processing and issuing inside information as
well as public communication. The announcement of the
disclosure of inside information shall be submitted to the
Board or an authorised officer for approval.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Group’s internal controls are designed to improve the
operational efficiency, prevent misuse and unauthorised
processing of assets, maintain proper accounting records to
deliver a true and fair view for the financial statements, and
ensure the compliance with relevant laws and regulations.

REVIEW OF RISK MANAGEMENT AND
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

In accordance with the CG Codes D.2.1 and D.2.2, the
Board and the Audit Committee reviewed the Group’s
financial, operational, compliance, risk management and
ESG functions. The senior management has confirmed to
the Board and the Audit Committee that the current risk
management and internal control systems of the Group are
adequate and effective. Based on the review results and
the senior management ‘s confirmation, the Board and the
Audit Committee considered the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems to be adequate and effective.
Details of which are summarised below:

In the year under review, the Board reviewed the Group’s risk
management framework which contained risk management
objectives, risk appetite framework, risk monitoring and risk
reporting.

In the year under review, the Board was of the view that
the risk management and internal control system has been
continuously improved by the Group. It strives to make the
risk management methods more standardised, including
the enhancement of risk appetite system, risk indicators and
risk limits, and risk monitoring system for the Group in the
future.

In the year under review, the Group has adopted the Anti-
corruption Policy and the Whistleblowing Policy. The
Group will continue to strengthen the management and
implementation of risk management and internal control
system in order to comply with the provisions in the CG
Code and the recommended best practices.
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The Directors hereby present their report together with
the audited financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding,
and the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are
principally engaged in financial services, insurance, property
investment and strategic investment. The principal activities
and other particulars of the principal subsidiaries and
associates are set out in Notes 35 and 18 respectively to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the revenue and results of the Group by
operating segment during the financial year is set out in
Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2023 and the financial position of the Group at that date are
set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 95
to 98.

The Board has resolved to recommend at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to be held on
Tuesday, 18 June 2024 (the “2024 AGM”) the payment
of a final dividend of 9 HK cents per share totalling
HK$53,753,152.68 for the year ended 31 December 2023
(2022: final dividend of 12 HK cents per share totalling
HK$71,670,870.24). The proposed dividend, if approved, will
be paid on or before 12 July 2024.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A discussion and analysis of the activities of the Group
as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies
Ordinance”), including a fair review of the Group’s business,
a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties faced
by the Group, particulars of important events affecting the
Group that have occurred since the end of the financial
year 2023, an indication of likely future development in the
Group’s business, an analysis of the Group’s performance
using financial key performance indicators, a discussion on
the Group’s environmental policies and performance, the
Group’s compliance with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Group, and an account
of the key relationships with its stakeholders that have a
significant impact on the Group and on which the Group'’s
success depends, are provided in the Five-Year Financial
Summary, Chairman’s Statement, Management Discussion
and Analysis, Corporate Governance Report and Risk
Management and Internal Control Report set out on pages 4
to 23 and pages 34 to 71 respectively of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 34 to
63 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

Further discussions on the environmental policies and
performance of the Group, and our relationships with key
stakeholders are contained in a separate Environmental,
Social and Governance Report (the “ESG Report”), which
will be available at the Company’s website under the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reports and the
website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on the same publication date of this
report.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For Determining the Entitlement to Attend and Vote
at the 2024 AGM

For the purpose of ascertaining the entitlement to attend
and vote at the 2024 AGM, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Wednesday, 12 June 2024 to
Tuesday, 18 June 2024, (both days inclusive), during which
period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to
qualify for the right to attend and vote at the 2024 AGM,
all properly completed transfer forms accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged for registration
with the Company’s share registrar, Tricor Standard Limited,
at 17th Floor, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road,
Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 11 June
2024.

For Determining the Entitlement to the Proposed
Dividend

The proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2023 is subject to the approval by the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”) at the 2024 AGM. For the
purpose of ascertaining the Shareholders’ entitlement to
the final dividend, the register of members of the Company
will be closed from Tuesday, 25 June 2024 to Thursday, 27
June 2024, (both days inclusive), during which period no
transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for
the final dividend, all properly completed transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged for registration with the Company’s share registrar,
Tricor Standard Limited, at 17th Floor, Far East Finance
Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Monday, 24 June 2024.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, net assets and total equity of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages
4 to 6.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets of the Group are set out in Notes 15
and 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTY INTERESTS HELD

Details of the principal property interests held by the Group
are set out on page 268.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in
Note 29(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out on page 99 and in Note 34(a) to
the consolidated financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December
2023, calculated under Part 6 of the Companies Ordinance,
amounted to HK$536,955,000 (2022: HK$566,186,000).
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DIRECTORS

The names of the Directors during the year and up to the
date of this report are set out on page 2.

In accordance with Articles 94 and 95 of the Articles of
Association of the Company, Mr HUANG Wensheng, Mr IP
Kai Ming and Mr LEUNG Chong Shun will retire by rotation
at the 2024 AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

No Director proposed for re-election at the 2024 AGM
has any service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

The Company has received from each Independent
Non-executive Director an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and the Company still
considers that all the Independent Non-executive Directors
are independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

The biographical details of the current Directors are set
out in the Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management of this annual report.

CHANGE IN THE INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the change
in the information of the Directors required to be disclosed
since the publication of 2023 interim report of the Company
up to the date of approval of this annual report is set out
below:
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CHANGE IN THE INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Mr HUANG Wensheng has been appointed as the director
of Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd. with effect from 13
October 2023.

Mr YANG Jingchao has been appointed as the full-time
external director of Fujian Investment & Development Group
Co., Ltd. (“FIDG") with effect from 12 November 2023. He
has also been appointed as a director of {82 & #KIKE
APRE £ T (Fujian Railway Investment Co., Ltd.*) and &
BEERRNERERBHEBREE AR (Fujian Mintou
Deep Sea Breeding Equipment Leasing Co., Ltd.*), which are
two subsidiaries of FIDG, the controlling shareholder of the
Company, and a director of 182 & EXMEERBRE LA
(Fujian Agricultural Financing Guarantee Co., Ltd.*) since 21
December 2023. He has resigned as the general manager
of Financial Investment Management Department of FIDG
and the executive director, the legal representative and the
general manager of {2 Z & @I E AR EIE R A (Fujian
Futou Investment Company Limited*), a subsidiary of FIDG,
both with effect from 12 November 2023.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other change in the
information of the Directors required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The names of the directors who have served on the boards
of directors of the subsidiaries of the Company during the
year and up to the date of this report are set out below:

Mr CHEN Yu

Mr CHAN Kwong Yu

Mr WU Xubin

Mr CHEN Yanxing (Notes 1)
Mr SHIUNG An Tai

Mr LAM Chi Sing

Mr GUO Xiang (Notes 2)
Mr QIU Peng Zhong

Notes:

1. Mr CHEN Yanxing has been appointed as a director of a subsidiary of
the Company with effect from 16 January 2024.

2. Mr GUO Xiang has resigned as a director of a subsidiary of the Company
with effect from 16 January 2024.
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DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

At 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and Chief Executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO")) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) in the Listing
Rules were as follows:

EARATEHITRA

ZEHBEDt

BHERGOEE Approximate percentage

EEMA ERMEE Number of of the issued share capital

Name of Director Nature of interests shares held of the Company

RARBEBRG Z 1R

Long Position in Ordinary Shares of the Company
A EAER

IP Kai Ming Personal interest 865,800 0.14%
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Save as disclosed above, at 31 December 2023, none of
the Directors and Chief Executive of the Company had any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in
the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code; and none of the
Directors or their spouses or children under the age of 18,
had any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company,
or had exercised any such right during the year.

At no time during the year was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate.



ESEMNMPRIFIER

ARABIFIBATESRIIFRTESCHERARK
ERFABEERIFRBEAHAEBED
BARKATREBREFURE(LETRA) F
8.10 1A T BRI E i ©

EEZRD  RHKREHIER

RAFEI(MHAFERFER > RRAREFK
REARENERYEAEANR - RERA
Al 1R F % B # AT B A ) A (e AR ER
BXBEENERRS  THAANTER
SRR R E AL

EESTREIRX

ARRCHEBERAAD I8 - £ (AR EF
BI) RET - ARRBRES KEMIT
ABREHRTRETEBE RN E 2B
PIBs —IRA - B - Bk AX KA
B OBREARRBEETESEE A2
AERARARENBARNES REMIT
BABRHFERREERITHRABEERE
RRGHR R BESFETRSY LER -

EEBHRS
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS" INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

All Executive Directors and Non-executive Directors of
the Company have confirmed that they did not have any
interests in business which competed or was likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business
of the Group during the year as required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS" INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract that is significant
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company,
its holding company or any of their respective subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director of the Company or an
entity connected with a Director had, directly or indirectly,
a material interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association of the Company provides that,
subject to the Companies Ordinance, every Director and
other officers of the Company shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all
costs, charges, losses, expenses and liabilities incurred
by him in the execution and discharge of his duties or in
relation thereto. The Company has arranged appropriate
directors’ and officers’ liability insurance for its Directors
and other officers of the Company and its subsidiaries. The
terms and extent of the coverage are reviewed and renewed
annually.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" AND OTHER
PERSONS" INTERESTS IN SHARES

At 31 December 2023, substantial shareholders and other
persons (other than Directors and Chief Executive of the
Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange, were as follow:

RN
SRITRE
ZBHNETL
Approximate

percentage of
BEERMDHE  theissued share

a8 5% Jir23 Number of capital of the
Name Capacity Notes shares held Company
RARAEBRG 2 17
Long Positions in Ordinary Shares of the Company
Samba Limited (“Samba”) ERBERA 1 144,885,000 24.26%
Beneficial Owner
BfE BERBAANK AR R 1 355,552,883 59.53%
Vigour Fine Beneficial Owner and interest
of Controlled Corporation

BERAEEE REEE R 2 355,552,883 59.53%
FIDG Interest of Controlled Corporation
BRBHEAEEEER DA BEREAA

([EmsEsk | ) Beneficial Owner 3 88,150,000 14.76%
Citychamp Watch & Jewellery

Group Limited (“Citychamp”)
HEFRAR ([FE]) REEEER 3 88,150,000 14.76%
Full Day Limited (“Full Day”) Interest of Controlled Corporation
ERERBRAA ERBERARK LR R 3 91,390,000 15.30%

([ZERE]) Beneficial Owner and interest
Sincere View International of Controlled Corporation

Limited (“Sincere View")
FEEE ([8EL]) REEE R 4 91,390,000 15.30%
HON Kwok Lung (“Mr Hon") Interest of Controlled Corporation
MORE ([#Et]) FoBay e 4 91,390,000 15.30%
LAM Suk Ying (“Ms Lam”) Interest of Spouse

{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (Continued)

Notes:

1. 144,885,000 shares of the Company was held by Samba. Vigour Fine was
the controlling shareholder of Samba and was deemed to be interested
in the 144,885,000 shares of the Company held by Samba. Vigour Fine
also directly held 210,667,883 shares of the Company.

2. FIDG directly held the entire issued share capital of Vigour Fine and was
deemed to be interested in the 355,552,883 shares of the Company.

3. 88,150,000 shares of the Company was held by Citychamp. Citychamp
was the controlled corporation of each of Sincere View and Full Day
and each of Sincere View and Full Day was deemed to be interested in
the 88,150,000 shares of the Company. Sincere View also directly held
3,240,000 shares of the Company.

4. Mr Hon held the entire issued share capital of Full Day and was the
controlling shareholder of Sincere View, Mr Hon was deemed to be
interested in the 91,390,000 shares of the Company. Ms Lam, the spouse
of Mr Hon, was deemed to be interested in the 91,390,000 shares of the
Company.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 December 2023, the Company
had not been notified by any person (other than Directors
and Chief Executive of the Company) who had any interest
or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's issued
shares during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the year, the Company had renewed the annual
management agreement with Vigour Fine, the controlling
shareholder of the Company, whereby Vigour Fine agreed
to provide management services to the Company which
included the provision of directors to the Board of Directors
of the Company. A management fee of HK$1,880,000 had
been paid to Vigour Fine during the year.

Save as disclosed above, there was no contract of significant

entered into between the Company and Vigour Fine during
the year.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS (Continued)

Mr HUANG Wensheng has been appointed as a director of
Vigour Fine and Mr CHEN Yu has resigned as a director of
Vigour Fine, both with effect from 13 March 2023.

Mr HUANG Wensheng, Mr CHEN Yu and Mr YANG Jingchao
were deemed to be interested in the above transaction by
virtue of being directors of Vigour Fine.

Except for the above, there were no other contracts
concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company entered into or existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, both the percentage of purchases
attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers combined
and the percentage of revenue from rendering of services
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers combined
were less than 30% of the total purchases and total revenue
of the Group respectively.

BANK BORROWINGS

Details of the bank borrowings of the Group at 31 December
2023 are set out in Note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE INSURANCE
ORDINANCE

Min Xin Insurance Company Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, is subject to the supervision
of the Insurance Authority and is required to comply with
the relevant provision of the Insurance Ordinance (Chapter
41 of the Laws of Hong Kong) in relation to the amount of
gross premium income limit per annum and the amount of
operating expense payments to specified persons.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Significant related party transactions entered into by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2023, which
are not required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules as
connected transactions, are disclosed in Notes 18(b), 18(c),
19(b), 20(a), 24(a), 33(a), 33(b) and 33(c) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Other related party transactions, which also constitute
connected transactions under the Listing Rules, are
disclosed in Notes 10, 11(a)(iii) and 36(a) to the consolidated
financial statements.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENT
PURSUANT TO RULE 13.21 OF THE LISTING
RULES

Pursuant to the term loan and revolving loan facilities
(collectively, the “Loan Facilities”) entered into between
the Company and certain banks, among other things, the
Company undertakes to procure that there is no adverse
change on FIDG and FIDG shall beneficially own (whether
directly or indirectly) not less than 51% of the issued share
capital of the Company and have the power to exercise
(whether directly or indirectly) management control over
the Company during the terms of the Loan Facilities. Breach
of such undertakings will constitute an event of default and
all amounts (including principal and interest) due and owing
by the Company to the banks under the Loan Facilities shall
become immediately due and payable.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained the prescribed amount of public
float as required under the Listing Rules during the year and
up to the date of this annual report.

DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year for charitable
and community purposes amounted to approximately
HK$15,000 (2022: HK$5,000).
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2023 have been audited by Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu who will retire and, being eligible, offer itself for
re-appointment at the 2024 AGM. A resolution for the re-
appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the auditor
of the Company and to authorise the Directors to fix its
remuneration will be proposed at the 2024 AGM.

On behalf of the Board

WANG Fei
Chairman

HONG KONG, 28 March 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF MIN XIN HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Min Xin Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 95 to 267, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023, and
the consolidated income statement, consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including material accounting policy
information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2023, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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The Key Audit Matter

HHEL GBS 5 TZE

Accounting for interest in an associate

EEEMFEPMBERRTRENB AT (5
BAREREE) £8.689% KL - REELR
BB RRTNRAERETETERE -

The Group'’s approximately 8.689% interest
in Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd. and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “XIB
Group”) is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements under the equity
method.

HE-_T-_=F+-_A=+—RHLFE &
SEELERER 2 BRENRLER 6,595
Ex EEEREREEERNKREEER
HE 64112987 - FMEBAEHRE_T
—=FEEEERREMGEN167.34% K&
HE_Z_=F+-_A=+—HEKEHEE
£ ) 69.8% ©

The Group's share of the profit after taxation
from XIB Group for the year ended 31
December 2023 was approximately HK$65.95
million and the carrying value of the Group’s
interest in XIB Group was approximately
HK$6,411.29 million. This represented
approximately 167.34% of the Group’s profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company for the year ended 31 December
2023 and approximately 69.8% of the Group’s
total assets as at 31 December 2023.

EREENTBESNFBERNGEEPBR
FirkE18 o

Details of the financial information of
XIB Group are set out in note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.

{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters are addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

HIPI & 5t P R0 IR P2 B2 & 51 F IR

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BTN EREENERN ST RENEARF BN
NRIE

Our audit procedures in relation to the accounting for the
interest in XIB Group included the following:

- THREBEAHBRETHEREEESAERERE
WIREBUR - EFMERAENRTMERR ;
understanding the Group’s established policy,
procedures and controls over the consolidation process
for equity accounting for the Group’s interest in XIB
Group;

HEREENER S T SR E R AR AR AR
SHETTELRR
comparing consolidation journal entries and
adjustment or reclassification journal entries in respect
of the interest in XIB Group with relevant underlying
documentation;

- BEEREENVBER  SFAEEEEREFEE
MEEBNAFENRERN
recalculating the Group’s share of net assets and the
Group's share of profit for the year based on the financial
information of XIB Group;
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We identified the accounting for the interest
in XIB Group as a key audit matter because
of its material impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements and the
complexity and management judgement
applied in the preparation of the financial
information of XIB Group, in accordance with
the accounting policies aligned with that of
the Group’s consolidated financial statements,
which increases the risk of material
misstatement in XIB Group’s consolidated
financial statements. The critical accounting
estimates and judgements are applied by XIB
Group to determine the valuation of level 3
financial instruments, impairment of loans
and advances, and impairment on goodwill,
which are inherently subjective given the
lack of market-based data and significant
estimation uncertainty and thus increases the
risk of error or potential management bias.

fﬁﬁ@%é%%&%¢mﬁﬁ%ﬁ'%ﬂ
RBBEREZREMEEEBREMBE®REK
EXEANTE -

Any misstatement in XIB Group ’s consolidated
financial statements could have a consequential
material impact on the Group'’s consolidated
financial statements through the equity
method of accounting.

EREBEOBER S G MAEOFBER
b AR IS WA 3.7 -

Details of the critical accounting estimates
and judgement of XIB Group are set out
in note 3.7 to the consolidated financial
statements.

#1F

How
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A&t PL E iR & 51 B IR

our audit addressed the key audit matter

FETREREERZEED ([HERCE DA ] ) AP
ﬁ@%ﬁ%ﬁ%%*%%ﬁ%ﬁ%%%ﬁﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁm
&3t

instructing the auditor of XIB Group (“the component
auditor”) to perform a full scope audit of the financial
information of XIB Group in accordance with the Group
Audit Instructions issued by us;

EARR B D I BRA E 1T R A AR - UFEEEIREE

MM B AR ERERER, BREETRNERSE
EEANERS Jﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ D% BB &

mEZEREREEY &

involving the component auditor in the assessment
process to identify significant risks of material
misstatement of the financial information of XIB Group,
including but not limited to the critical accounting
estimates and judgments applied by XIB Group, and
discussing with the component auditor its responses
to address such risks; and

AR BB D B At am L B st IR A
KBRS @g%MIﬁﬁh %ﬁmﬁm%ﬁ CRESINIS
HFIpZ e B RRETHETZTERRMEGE -
discussmg with the component auditor its f|nd|ngs and
conclusions with regard to its audit and evaluating the
sufficiency and appropriateness of the audit evidence
for purpose of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements by reviewing the component auditor’s
working papers.

NIZGE e
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BERENE B IREERE 17 %
First time adoption of HKFRS 17

R2023F1A1H EEERNTEBHB
HREERE17RERBREL - RAFBHBR
FEAF4FRREL - BEBHAR20224F
THAVH - BEMBGREERFE175RMELT
REEE KR - 5H2 - JImAELERE
EEBMBREENEIFHNERFERE
Ho

On 1 January 2023, the Group adopted HKFRS
17 “Insurance Contracts” which supersedes
HKFRS 4 “Insurance Contracts” with a
transition date of 1 January 2022. HKFRS 17
establishes the principles for the recognition,
measurement and presentation and disclosure
of insurance contracts which are significantly
different to those required under HKFRS 4.

RIBFTRE220) KE - EEEEREZEEMN
BREENFE17RHERABTE2EERE X
iR ERHERRESIE ([RESBDE])
HEZNRREOARNNFENBRREEL
MREITTEE - Bt - L BREBF /20226
1AVRBEHRIIR - BEXIRAE R R
ERANE175  BHREEENRRESER
BEIRD T 132887T © BlE 2023512 A 31
B ERERGEEHBERARESRRE L
BE146BET RIREEKBE 1462688
7T BREBENEE BB TNERRE
HBESSOEATT

As disclosed in note 2.2(a), the Group
adopted the full retrospective approach
on transition to HKFRS 17 and applied the
Premium Allocation Approach (“PAA") to
the measurement of groups of insurance
contracts issued and groups of reinsurance
contracts held at the transition date. As a
result, comparative financial information has
been restated from 1 January 2022 with the
first time adoption of HKFRS 17 resulting
in a decrease in total equity attributable
to shareholders of the Group by HK$1.32
million. As at 31 December 2023, the Group
recorded insurance contract assets, insurance
contract liabilities, reinsurance contract
assets, and reinsurance contract liabilities of
HKS$1.46 million, HK$146.26 million, HK$15.02
million, and HK$8.50 million, respectively, the
consolidated statement of financial position.

{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HPIERNERA T EMBEREERF 17 R RROFAIZTE
BATAR

Our audit procedures in relation to the adoption of HKFRS 17
included the following:

REEEETAEERSMBEHREENFE175HBRER
B HBR - B AESREE

understanding the Group’s established policy,
procedures and controls over the transition to HKFRS 17;

M EEEHREER BV BREENE 175K
HHERVERET ~ BHEER

evaluating the design and implementation,
management’s controls over the transition to HKFRS 17;

HAINNERBE R REEE TP ROR SR
RAMMEEBRMEZNRE N - A HEEETa LR
WEX - BRERREVNELEENERRE DA
BRI

involving our internal actuarial specialists to evaluate
the appropriateness of key accounting decisions and
related policies and elections involved in transition
to assess compliance with the requirements of the
standard including the level of aggregation of insurance
contracts and the eligibility of the use of PAA;

- BAORBBEERTEERRESOBENERER
WEARRERONRE M- - BEEHELRE - AR
ABRMABAORRSE
involving our internal actuarial specialists to assess the
appropriateness and consistency of the key assumptions
used in the measurement of the insurance contract
liabilities including expected loss ratio, risk adjustments
and non-performance risk and so on;

BN AR EZEZRIBLYETENERRE RN KRR
SHAEETEL L - SHEESEHRE R EZNER
BRAMBEMBEREERNE 17 Rt HER

involving our internal actuarial specialists to
assess the Group’s implementation of the defined
methodology and HKFRS 17 calculation results through
an independent estimate of the insurance contract
liabilities for a selection of insurance contracts;
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First time adoption of HKFRS 17
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The adoption of HKFRS 17 required
considerable judgments in the interpretation
and determination of accounting policies
and methodologies to be applied to the
HKFRS 17 models, including the significant
judgments involved in PAA eligibility test,
level of aggregation assessment with
onerosity testing, and key assumptions of
expected loss ratio, risk adjustment and non-
performance risk relating to the measurement
of the insurance contract liabilities.
Furthermore, the new accounting standard
required significant changes regarding the
presentation and disclosures of insurance
contracts and related account balances. This,
therefore, caused significant changes made
to the systems, processes and controls with
effect from 1 January 2023. This resulted in
an increased extent of audit effort, including
the involvement of internal specialists with
specialised skills and knowledge to assist in
evaluating the audit evidence obtained.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EHMNARERRHRER LR AABT B HRE LR
F17 RABMFNIEEBEMEME R A TBIEME
wit R

together with our IT specialists, testing the
completeness and accuracy of the incremental data
required for HKFRS 17 calculations; and

AHEFT B RE M EBE SRR RE - WRKE
BRI @ S RO SR A SRR BRI AR -

evaluating the new ongoing disclosures and the
disclosures related to the transition impact and
reconciling the disclosures to underlying accounting
records and supporting data.
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ERIFNE BT REERIFE 17 5%
First time adoption of HKFRS 17

FETE B R BRAN BT B ) T 2 B R I I A0 AE R
HH - FERBMRAKRENTE - Bitd
B BREENE N7 REZRKENER AL
RIZEHIE  YEREDBNABEETHE
MAEESL -

Determining the first time adoption of these
judgements is inherently judgmental and
complex, requiring significant auditor effort.
Implementation of HKFRS 17 has also required
incremental data to be used within the new
models and new disclosure requirements
both on transition and on an ongoing basis.

ARG EAMEEBERE QI ELS
ARREEHEENEMEEENTENH
£ - URBFBMBREERE17REEANS
STECR B RE K - WM 5E2.2 (a) F2.10F7
& o

Details of the quantitative and qualitative
information on the impact of the new
standard and certain accounting policy
choices made by the Group on transition
date, and the related accounting policies and
presentation requirements of HKFRS 17 are
set out in Notes 2.2 (a) and 2.10 respectively.

90 B{E&EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited
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Information other than the consolidated financial
statements and auditor’s report thereon

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section
405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Tong, Mei Yin.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
28 March 2024
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

#E20234F 12 H 31 H 1L/ For the year ended 31 December 2023

2023 2022
(&%)
(Restated)
TrE BT T JEIT T
Note HK$’000 HKS$'000
REBUA Insurance revenue 6 191,128 194,998
BREBRMEF AR Interest income calculated using
E’JT'J s A the effective interest method 10,847 3,822
S CIE 10 Rental income from
AU A investment properties 8,132 9,301
BAFEFAEMEEWYWE Dividend income from
REeREE financial assets at fair value through
% B U A other comprehensive income 2,662 -
TT’D\ETZTEET‘)\ﬁTﬁiEHﬂZ Distribution income from
K& Bh financial assets at fair value through
’ﬁ@ﬂﬂﬁl?\ other comprehensive income 1,880 =
WA 4B %8 Total revenues 214,649 208,121
HAb A Other income 7 34,239 33,926
LN Operating income 248,888 242,047
fﬁ\’r@@ﬁﬁ — F8A Other losses - net 8 (6,461) (12,234)
R ARTSE A Insurance service expenses 6 (163,007) (160,950)
%ﬁ@ﬁéké\?’] 9 Net expenses from reinsurance
%ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ contracts held 6 (16,606) (14,897)
REMRR A DH Finance (expenses)/income from
g (BA) A insurance contracts issued (5,565) 4,856
BEEBRBRE NN Finance income/(expenses) from
B A (BA) reinsurance contracts held 261 (320)
B[l Eﬁf VERENED) Write back of impairment loss on
P ER R EBFE credit-impaired loans to customers
EODERES )EETE and interest receivable 23 2,845 6,294
BB A ENEBRIRE  Impairment loss on debt investments
B E 1R at amortised cost 20 (150) =
THRER Administrative expenses (56,566) (47,050)
BERF Operating profit 9 3,639 17,746
BhE Bk A Finance costs 10 (41,366) (21,558)
RN Share of results of associates 67,488 476,271
F?ﬁﬂu sox Al Profit before taxation 29,761 472,459
FriefiEe, (XH) Income tax credit/(expense) 12 9,648 (15,490)
AR Profit for the year 39,409 456,969
BE Dividend
REARR B Final dividend 13 53,753 71,671
B BN
HK CENTS HK CENTS
BREF Earnings per share
EARREE Basic and diluted 14 6.60 76.51
BREE Dividend per share
REARR B Final dividend 9 12
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

#E 2023412 A 31 HIF4FE  For the year ended 31 December 2023

2023 2022
(&%)
(Restated)
BT T BB F T
HK$’000 HK$’000
EFE Al Profit for the year 39,409 456,969
Hih2mEWK = Other comprehensive income
FTEEFIBEZERR Items that will not be reclassified to
WIEH : income statement:
BAFEAAEME2EYZE  Equity investments at fair value through
WHX$ETn§ B other comprehensive income
AT EFESEEFE Net movement in fair value reserve
(71_,—]1@%&) (non-recycling) (10,388) (222,565)
RIETRIE Deferred tax (16,233) -
(26,621) (222,565)
JE(RES S DRI EMEE Share of other comprehensive income
Wz of associates (4,156) 12,050
(30,777) (210,515)
HETREEHFOEEIEZER  Items that may be reclassified subsequently
MIEH : to income statement:
BAFEFAEMETEUZ  Debt investments at fair value through other
HEFIRE comprehensive income
—REtE N RIS RS Released on dilution of interest in an
S e associate 2,962 =
INEFTE i E Exchange translation reserve
Tr YEINT B A R R B Exchange differences arising on translation
NAIR B SRR PTE & of the financial statements of foreign
El’\] PE 5 = RE subsidiaries and associates (225,739) (602,256)
—REE N RIS RS Released on dilution of interest in an
AF 4 m) associate 4,545 -
(221,194) (602,256)
PRI AR E M 2 Share of other comprehensive income
Wz of associates 89,332 (24,578)
,,,,, (128,900)]  (626,834)
BNBRBERNREE Other comprehensive income for the year,
Hie 2 mE S net of tax ~ (159,677) (837,349)
AEEZHK AL Total comprehensive income for the year (120,268) (380,380)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

20234F12 H 31 H#%5  As at 31 December 2023

12A31H 12 A31H 1H1H
31 December 31 December 1 January
2023 2022 2022
(&%) (E7%)
(Restated) (Restated)
TR BT BT T BT
Note HK$’000 HKS’000 HK$’000
BE Assets
M - MR N R Property, plant and equipment 15 14,109 14,586 14,849
CREEE Right-of-use assets 16 13,099 13,628 14,158
KEYE Investment properties 17 172,329 173,342 175,626
A o/NC] Associates 18 6,442,096 6,550,270 6,778,417
BAFERA Financial assets at fair value
Eemias through other
e RmEE comprehensive income 19 630,093 606,943 805,914
TREEK AT ER Debt investments at
BIIEE amortised cost 20 156,174 - -
K R I Pledged and restricted
EHER term deposits 25 354,542 352,072 111,733
EILEFTEREE Deferred income tax assets 28 - - 19
REEANEE Insurance contract assets 1,461 = =
BREBAENEE Reinsurance contract assets 22 15,019 11,738 5,160
EEEREMNEFE  Credit-impaired loans to
B E W S customers and interest
receivable 23 15,102 15,921 17,979
U — R & A A Dividend receivable from
&= an associate = 4,527 =
H R AR R - Other debtors, prepayments
BN REE and deposits 5,573 3,399 14,553
AU [l A B A IR Current income tax recoverable - - 35
BAT(EFERIBEE Financial assets at fair value
IRRA 2 BB B through profit or loss 24 626,443 742,080 742,997
T BATE R Term deposits 25 323,270 444,095 356,369
W& NIBELEEY  Cash and cash equivalents 25 415,415 236,256 467,149
BMEE Total assets 9,184,725 9,168,857 9,504,958
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2023412 H 31 H4%5  As at 31 December 2023

12H31H 12 H31H 1H1H
31 December 31 December 1 January
2023 2022 2022
(&%) (E51)
(Restated) (Restated)
iR BT T BT JBMEF T
Note HK$’000 HKS’000 HKS’000
S Equity
f& A Share capital 29(a) 1,715,377 1,715,377 1,715,377
HiviZEe Other reserves 29(b) 1,508,881 1,513,274 2,285,582
REE & A Retained profits 4,845,192 5,032,738 4,712,307
AT RERE Total equity attributable to
A shareholders of the
Company 8,069,450 8,261,389 8,713,266
=N Liabilities
ReeMBEE Insurance contract liabilities 21 146,260 103,754 72,204
BREADMAE Reinsurance contract liabilities 22 8,498 8,821 3,129
Ef AR Other creditors and
FE=tE R accruals 36,930 24,427 24,957
HEBE Lease liabilities 26 586 833 1,063
RITER Bank borrowings 27 855,570 692,594 497,308
AR IR E K Loan from the controlling
shareholder - - 99,985
FEAST AN AR 18 Current income tax payable 4,582 27,699 29,584
EIEFEFHEE Deferred income tax liabilities 28 62,849 49,340 63,462
HEE Total liabilities 1,115,275 907,468 791,692
Y =R Equity and liabilities 9,184,725 9,168,857 9,504,958
2 WANG Fei
FzE Director
PR = CHEN Yu
FzE Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

#E20234F 12 H 31 H 1L/ For the year ended 31 December 2023

Hftfitee
Other reserves
AYE AVE HEEE it
BRe  BEE EfERE NEFE  BRE
i 28 £ (TER)  (FTER)  leasehold B 45 hFEE
e fie fife BBS  Farvalie  Fairvalie  buildings  Exchange Tl REEH g
Share  Statutory General Capital reserve reserve  revaluation  translation other  Retained Total
capital reserve reserve reserve  (recycling) - (non-tecycling) reserve reserve  reserves profits equity
(E5)) (E5))
(Restated)  (Restated)
Bin B BFn BT B BT B B B BT B
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'00  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'00  HKS'000
R Enfg At31 December 2021,
‘ & as originally presented 1715371 1,046,875 208708 2199470 (51,630) 583,691 5,207 193,261 2285582 413622 8714581
TRERARHAAS  mpacton itl application

EHZnEHEE of HKFRS 17 - - - - - - - - - 135 03
AnEIRE At 1 January 2022,

HET] as restated 1715377 1,046,875 208708 2199470 (51,630) 583,691 5,207 193,261 2,285,582 4m2307 8713266
KEERR Profitforthe year S - - - - - 2 2 - %9 456,969
Eh2ENE Other comprehensive income - - - - (000 10519) - (51989 (@349 - )
it Dividend - - - - - - - - - (e (e
“FEELAERL  lssuance expenses of

anEs capital securites

HER capitalised by an associate = = = (40) = = = = (40) - (40)
BRUFHEINRE  Undaimed dividend forfeited 5 - - = - - - = = M M
i Transfrs - 57,188 789 - - - - - 65,081 (65,081) -
HURENANA At31 December2022,

HEL| as restated 1715377 1104003 216,601 299430 (158633) 313176 5207 (326568) 1513274 5032738 8261389
AT - Representing;

WNERTHE 2022 proposed dividend - - - - - - - - - 71471 T8
i Others 1715377 1104003 216,601 299430 (158633) 373,176 5207 (326568) 1513274 4961067 8,189,718
RUnENANR: At 31 December 2022,

&E5 as restated 1715377 1104003 216,601 299430 (158635) 33,176 5207 (326568) 1513274 5032738 8261389
RUBEIA1A At 1 January 2023 1715377 1,104,063 216,601 299,430 (158,635) 313,176 5,207 (326,568) 1513274 5032738 8,261,389
KERER Proftfor the year - - - - - - - - - A09 39409
EfRENE Other comprehensive income - - - - oM 30m) - (08082 (159677) - (15967)
it Dividend - - - - - - - - - g men)
-FBENER Release on dilution of nterest

FEERRE inan associate - 03100 (358 (5464 - (249) - - (981 2991 -
B Transfers - 167,322 17983 - - - - - 185,205  (185,265) -
RusE1E3A At 31 December 2023 115377 1,251,075 230,586 293,966 (719,493) 342,150 5207 (5346100 1,508,881 4845192 8,069,450
&gt Representing;

WBERRRE 2023 proposed dividend - - - - - - - - - 53,753 53,753
L4 Others 115377 1,251,075 230,586 293,966 (79,493) 342,150 5207 (5346100 1,508,881 4791439 8,015,697
Ru3E12831A At 31 December 2023 115377 1,251,075 230,586 293,966 (719,493) 342,150 5207 (5346100 1,508,881 4845192 8,069,450
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

#E 2023412 A 31 HIF4FE  For the year ended 31 December 2023

2023 2022
(&%)
(Restated)
i BT T BB F T
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
BETHRESAANFE Net cash inflow from operations 32(a) 18,025 40,001
2 U & Interest received 20,437 49,911
EAHE Interest paid (39,837) (18,566)
BENHIE Tax paid (14,622) (27,900)
REXBEZHRE Net cash (outflow)/inflow from
(Rd) ARARE operating activities (15,997) 43,446
REEE Investing activities
RIFRBEEEHIBRTE Placement of term deposits pursuant to
MmiFERE EHFER insurance regulatory requirements (129,018) (225,117)
RIBREREEEEERT Withdrawal of term deposits pursuant
MmizEA E HHFER to insurance regulatory requirements 129,018 218,160
FHREERNEREFER Placement of pledged term deposits (15,000) (15,000)
R EHEEHFER Withdrawal of pledged term deposits 15,000 15,000
FRREIBABR=EA Placement of term deposits with
") 7E HATE 3K original maturity over three months (298,153) (472,073)
RBREIBABRB=EA Withdrawal of term deposits with
H)7E HATE 3K original maturity over three months 418,446 337,487
BE AR SE AR ARETEHEFE Purchase of debt investments at
®E amortised cost (154,150) =
R AR B METS  Disposal of debt investments at
®E amortised cost 1,972 =
AR AFEFTAEM Purchase of financial assets at fair value
PHKENSREE through other comprehensive income (33,538) (23,594)
BARATEERER Purchase of financial assets at
IR SR EE fair value through profit or loss (2,183,779) (2,683,435)
R HERATESS Redemption/disposal of financial assets
BRIENESREE at fair value through profit or loss 2,294,670 2,650,585
A - WS NERHE Purchase of property, plant and
equipment (1,253) (1,479)
HEME - WS KRB Disposal of property, plant and
equipment - 16
S NG =N Dividends received from associates 64,644 177,635
EFEHESRA GR)  Net cash inflow/(outflow) from
FRE investing activities 108,859 (21,815)
BEEEAES Net cash inflow before
WAEEE financing activities 92,862 21,631

{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2023

2023 2022
(E73)
(Restated)
iFrE BT T BT T
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
b & E B Financing activities
EEERERREER Loan repaid to the controlling
shareholder 32(b) - (100,000)
EUSERTTIERK Bank loans obtained 32(b) 1,606,200 734,721
BERIBITEK Bank loans repaid 32(b) (1,443,241) (540,596)
A E A (& FRB AN Other borrowing costs paid 32(b) (690) (51)
Y &SN Dividend paid 32(b) (71,671) (71,671)
MEF Lease payments 32(b) (247) (230)
FHEEREY Placement of pledged
TEHFEXR term deposits 32(b) = (247,180)
BRETBHRS Net cash inflow/(outflow) from
TR GRE) B financing activities 90,351 (225,007)
ReERBASEEY Increase/(decease) in cash and cash
®whm, ) equivalents 183,213 (203,376)
1B1BEFENEER Cash and cash equivalents at
REZEEY 1 January 236,256 467,149
EXSEHnsTE Effect of foreign exchange rates
changes (4,054) (27,517)
12831 BHEFNEER Cash and cash equivalents at
REZEEY 31 December 25 415,415 236,256
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{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

GENERAL INFORMATION

Min Xin Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively refer to as
the “Group”) are principally engaged in financial
services, insurance, property investment and strategic
investment.

The Company is a limited liability company
incorporated in Hong Kong. The address of its
registered office is 17th Floor, Fairmont House, 8
Cotton Tree Drive, Central, Hong Kong. The Company
is listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Directors consider that Vigour Fine Company
Limited (“Vigour Fine”), a limited liability company
incorporated in Hong Kong, is the immediate holding
company of the Company and Fujian Investment &
Development Group Co., Ltd. (“FIDG”), a company
established in the People’s Republic of China, is the
ultimate holding company of the Company.

These consolidated financial statements have been
approved for issue by the Board on 28 March 2024.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The material accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which
collectively refer to all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
(“Ints”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), and have been aligned
with accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the requirements of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
(the “Companies Ordinance”). For the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements,
information is considered material if such information
is reasonably expected to influence decisions made by
primary users. The consolidated financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”).

The Directors of the Company have, at the time of
approving the consolidated financial statements, a
reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. Thus they continue to adopt the
going concern basis of accounting in preparing the
consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention except
that the following assets and liabilities are stated at
their fair value as explained in the accounting policies
set out below:

- financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

- financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

- investment properties
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{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for
the leasing transactions that are accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 16 Leases.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with the HKFRSs requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. Although
these estimates are based on management’s best
knowledge of current events and actions, actual results
may differ from those estimates.

Estimates and judgement made by management are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity or where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 3.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.2 Application of new standard and amendments
to standards

The Group has adopted the following new standard
and amendments to standards issued by the HKICPA.

- HKFRS 17 (including Insurance Contracts
the October 2020

and February 2022

Amendments to

HKFRS 17)

- Amendments to Disclosure of Accounting
HKAS 1 and Policies
HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

- Amendments to Definition of Accounting
HKAS 8 Estimates

Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities
arising from a
Single Transaction

- Amendments to
HKAS 12

International Tax Reform
- Pillar Two Model Rules

- Amendments to
HKAS 12

The nature and impact of the adoption of HKFRS 17
Insurance Contracts are further described in Note (a)
below. Except for the adoption of HKFRS 17 Insurance
Contracts, the adoption of other amendments to
standards had no material effect on how the Group's
results and financial position for the current or prior
periods have been prepared or presented in these
consolidated financial statements. The Group has
not applied any amendment to standards that is not
effective for the current accounting period.
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{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.2 Application of new standard and amendments
to standards (Continued)

Up to the date of issuance of these consolidated
financial statements, the HKICPA has issued a number
of amendments to standards which are not yet
effective for the accounting year ended 31 December
2023 and which have not been early adopted in these
consolidated financial statements as follows:

Amendments to Classification of Liabilities as
HKAS 1 Current or Non-Current and
related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(2020)'

- Amendments to Non-Current Liabilities with
HKAS 1 Covenants'

- Amendments to Supplier Finance Arrangements'

HKAS 7 and

HKFRS 7

- Amendments to Lack of Exchangeability?

HKAS 21

- Amendments to
HKFRS 16

Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback'

- Amendments to Sale or Contribution of
HKFRS 10 and Assets between an Investor
HKAS 28 and its Associate or

Joint Venture®
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.2 Application of new standard and amendments
to standards (Continued)

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2024.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2025.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
a date to be determined.

(a) Summary of key changes in accounting
policies resulting from application of HKFRS
17

In the consolidated financial statements, the Group
has adopted HKFRS 17 for the first time. HKFRS
17 establishes the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of insurance
contracts issued and reinsurance contracts held by the
Group and supersedes HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts.

HKFRS 17 outlines a general model, which is modified
for insurance contracts with direct participation
features, described as the variable fee approach. The
general model is simplified if certain criteria are met by
measuring the liability for remaining coverage (“LRC")
using the premium allocation approach (“PAA”). Based
on the assessment undertaken to date, the Group’s
insurance contracts issued and reinsurance contracts
held are all eligible to be measured by applying the
PAA. Therefore, the Group applied PAA for all its
insurance contracts.

On 1 January 2023, the Group has adopted the
requirements of HKFRS 17 retrospectively with
comparative restated from the transition date, 1
January 2022. The Group applied full retrospective
approach to all insurance contracts existed at the
transition date.
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{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.2 Application of new standard and amendments

(a)

to standards (Continued)

Summary of key changes in accounting
policies resulting from application of HKFRS
17 (Continued)

Insurance and reinsurance contracts are aggregated
into different groups of contracts according to the
level of aggregation under HKFRS 17. The groups of
contracts shall be assessed on the profitability and
onerous contracts shall be identified at the initial
recognition. For details, please refer to Note 2.10(b).

The measurement principles of the PAA differ from the
previous approach used by the Group under HKFRS 4
in the following key areas:

The LRC reflects premiums received less paid
insurance acquisition cash flows and less
amounts recognised in revenue for insurance
services provided. LRC is also adjusted by the
amount relating to the amortisation of insurance
acquisition cash flows in the reporting period
for the Group. The Group determines that the
premiums receivable from the policyholder and
the premiums receivable from the intermediary
are future cash flows within the boundary of an
insurance contract under HKFRS 17, the balances
shall be accounted for as part of the LRC.

Measurement of the LRC includes an adjustment
for the time value of money and the effect of
financial risk where the premium due date and
the related period of service are more than 12
months apart.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.2 Application of new standard and amendments
to standards (Continued)

(a) Summary of key changes in accounting
policies resulting from application of HKFRS
17 (Continued)

- Measurement of the LRC involves an explicit
evaluation of risk adjustment for non-financial
risk when a group of contracts is onerous in order
to calculate a loss component.

- Measurement of the liability for incurred claims
(“LIC") is determined on a discounted probability-
weighted expected value basis and includes an
explicit risk adjustment for non-financial risk.

- Measurement of the asset for remaining coverage
(“ARC") for group of reinsurance contracts
held is also adjusted to include a loss-recovery
component to reflect the expected recovery of
onerous contract losses where such contracts
reinsure onerous direct contracts.

For presentation in the consolidated statement of
financial position, the Group aggregates insurance and
reinsurance contracts issued and reinsurance contracts
held at the portfolio level. The line item descriptions
in the consolidated income statement have been
changed significantly compared with last year. HKFRS
17 requires separate presentation of:

- insurance revenue;

- insurance service expenses;

- insurance finance income or expenses; and

- income or expenses from reinsurance contracts
held.
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{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.2 Application of new standard and amendments
to standards (Continued)

(a) Summary of key changes in accounting
policies resulting from application of HKFRS
17 (Continued)

At transition, the Group’s total equity at 1 January 2022
was reduced by HK$1.32 million from HK$8,714.58
million under HKFRS 4 to HK$8,713.27 million under
HKFRS 17. The reduction in equity is primarily driven
by the remeasurement of the inward treaty liability for
remaining coverage that increased by HK$3.28 million
less the positive effect from the discounting of the
liability for incurred claims amounting to HK$1 million.
Under HKFRS 4, insurance premium revenue of the
aforesaid inward treaty was recognised by passage of
time. Whereas, under HKFRS 17, the expected premium
receipts of this inward treaty are allocated on the
basis of expected timing of incurred insurance service
expenses given that the expected pattern of release
of risk during the coverage period differs significantly
from the passage of time. The revised revenue release
pattern due to change in accounting standard leads to
a reduction in insurance premium earned previously,
while an increase in revenue to be recognised in the
remaining coverage period is expected. The liability for
incurred claims, while not discounted under HKFRS 4,
had been measured by considering a best estimate of
future cash flows and the provision of an amount that
is equivalent to the risk adjustment under HKFRS 17
thus making the application of discounting the only
restatement applicable to the liability for incurred
claims.

On 1 January 2023, the Group has adopted the
requirements of HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
retrospectively with comparatives restated from
the transition date, 1 January 2022. The table below
provides the transition restatement impact on the
Group's consolidated income statement for the year
ended 31 December 2022.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.2 HIEARFEREFTNER

2.2 Application of new standard and amendments

(#&) to standards (Continued)
(a) ERSEUMBERSERFE17 (a) Summary of key changes in accounting
KNET2EARRENEE policies resulting from application of HKFRS
(#8) 17 (Continued)
2022
BREREBN
BREERE
17 RN E
Impact
RE25% on initial B
Asoriginally  application of KE5
presented HKFRS 17 As restated
e BT T BT T BT T
Note HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
mHREFE Net earned insurance premiums (i) 168,186 (168,186) =
R UL . Insurance revenue (ii) = 194,998 194,998
RERFZRITAE  Interest income calculated using
COENISYAON the effective interest method 3,822 - 3,822
wEHE Rental income from investment
I E WA properties 9,301 - 9,301
WA ez Total revenues 181,309 26,812 208,121
HAp A Other income 33,926 - 33,926
BEBA Operating income 215,235 26,812 242,047
HAthEy18 - JH58 Other losses - net (12,234) = (12,234)
R TS EE &Y Net insurance claims incurred and
BEFER commission expenses incurred
RegH on insurance business (i) (146,781) 146,781 =
R BRTE & A Insurance service expenses (ii) - (160,950) (160,950)
BEHRBEME  Netexpenses from reinsurance
ERFE contracts held (ii) = (14,897) (14,897)
RENRBRE LM Finance income from insurance
RN contracts issued (ii) = 4,856 4,856
A BRERE LM Finance expenses from reinsurance
MBER contracts held (ii) = (320) (320)
BODEERMEN  Write back of impairment loss
BEPERRER on credit-impaired loans to
FEHRERE customers and interest receivable 6,294 - 6,294
1THE A Administrative expenses (iii) (55,372) 8,322 (47,050)
= v Operating profit 7,142 10,604 17,746
A& Bk 2N Finance costs (21,558) = (21,558)
NG E Share of results of associates 476,271 - 476,271
BRBE A& A Profit before taxation 461,855 10,604 472,459
FriSfisz Income tax expense (15,490) = (15,490)
AEERF Profit for the year 446,365 10,604 456,969
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.2 Application of new standard and amendments

(a)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

to standards (Continued)

Summary of key changes in accounting
policies resulting from application of HKFRS
17 (Continued)

On the implementation of HKFRS 17, new
consolidated income statement line items
associated with insurance contract accounting
were introduced. Consequently, the previously
reported HKFRS 4 line items “Net earned
insurance premiums” and “Net insurance claims
incurred and commission expenses incurred on
insurance business” were also removed.

The measurement of the insurance contract
liabilities under HKFRS 17 is based on groups
of insurance contracts and includes a liability
for fulfilling the insurance contracts, such as
insurance revenue, insurance service expenses
and finance income and expenses for insurance
contracts issued and reinsurance contracts held.
The net increase in profit before taxation for the
year ended 31 December 2022 is primarily caused
by (i) an increase in insurance service income of
HK$2.54 million as a result of the revised revenue
release pattern of the inward treaty as mentioned
above; (ii) a decrease in insurance service
expenses of HK$1.76 million due to the effect of
discounting on incurred claims during 2022; and
(iii) an increase in insurance finance income of
HK$4.86 million as a result of the revaluation of
the discounting of liabilities of incurred claims
using current market interest rate observable on
31 December 2022, which was significantly higher
than the market interest rate on 1 January 2022.

Directly attributable expenses were the costs
associated with originating and fulfilling an
identified portfolio of insurance contracts. These
costs included the appropriate allocations of fixed
and variable overheads, which were included
within the fulfillment cash flows and were no
longer shown on the operating expenses line,
whereas non-attributable expenses remained in
the operating expenses.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.2 Application of new standard and amendments
to standards (Continued)

(b) Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2 Disclosure of
Accounting Policies

HKAS 1 is amended to replace all instances of the
term "significant accounting policies" with "material
accounting policy information". Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together
with other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy
information may be material because of the nature of
the related transactions, other events or conditions,
even if the amounts are immaterial. However, not all
accounting policy information relating to material
transactions, other events or conditions is itself
material. If an entity chooses to disclose immaterial
accounting policy information, such information must
not obscure material accounting policy information.

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 “Making Materiality
Judgements” (the "Practice Statement") is also
amended to illustrate how an entity applies the
"four-step materiality process" to accounting policy
disclosures and to judge whether information about
an accounting policy is material to its financial
statements. Guidance and examples are added to the
“Practice Statement”.

The application of the amendments is not expected
to have significant impact on the financial position
or performance of the Group, but has affected the
disclosures of the Group's accounting policies set out
in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.

—Z— =F4F3R Annual Report 2023

13



114

fm O BT IR ¥R RS
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Wbl BHRERBEERSERX
SstERER (£8)

2.3 RER%E

op

AEEMBRREEH#E12A31AXR
RANEWMBRRNHBHRRLAEE
eI B S R R R -

(a) PFIEL S RIFZARIER

B AREAREHEERENENE
B (BREBEER) - EAKEBARA
EXEFE2EBMERMEMNAIZ DR
MR ER - B BEEZERA
RAREZEN®R  AAKEYHZER
ABEHE - ReHEARERLTEHED
B EZE (AREREMETA L
BH) BEMERER

B AR REFHIRARESE BREEE
THIREARILE B IEEIRELR S MR Rk
NEEEHE - REAMBHRERANBE R
AN ETHRERFTRELWRE - IR
REARSEERABER —2

SERNRREARNIRS - BN BEE
ANARIEAER ZELENEMARER S
FR AR B4R & B 5 3RR B 2 B8 - /&
SEANRREANITRZELNRERE
BIMEARBER G AT A - B2
BREEEE SR

ERRABNHBARRARA REBEAR
AR ERKANENRREER (8
2.9(b)) Pk - B AR XAERARLQF
REW N KA B AR

{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and all its
subsidiaries and the Group's interests in associates
made up to 31 December.

(a) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities)
controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity
when it has power over the investee, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the
Group and other parties) are considered.

Subsidiaries are consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed,
where necessary, in the consolidated financial
statements to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same
way as unrealised profits but only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairment.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
the investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost
less impairment losses (Note 2.9(b)). The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividend received and receivable.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(b) Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has
significant influence, but not control or joint control
over its management, including participation in the
financial and operating policy decisions.

Investments in associates are accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity
method. Under the equity method, the investments
are initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter
to recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of the investments.
The cost of the investments include purchase price,
other costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of the investments, and any direct investment into
the associates that forms part of the Group’s equity
investments. The investments are adjusted for the
post-acquisition changes in the Group's share of the
investees’ net assets including profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and any impairment losses
relating to the investment. The consolidated income
statement includes the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and any
impairment losses for the year, whereas the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax items of the
investees’ other comprehensive income is recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. The accounting policies of the investees have
been aligned, where necessary, in the consolidated
financial statements to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.
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{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(b) Associates (Continued)

On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill,
which is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period
in which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including
goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with
HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs
of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised is not allocated to any asset, including
goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the
proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to
that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of
the related assets or liabilities.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(b) Associates (Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of
the entire interest in that investee, with a resulting
gain or loss being recognised in the consolidated
income statement. Any interest retained in that
former investee at the date when significant influence
is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset (Note 2.8). In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income in respect of that investee are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities.

When the ownership interest in an associate is
reduced but significant influence is retained, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the interest reduced
in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in the consolidated income statement. In
addition, only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income relating to that reduction
in ownership interest is reclassified to consolidated
income statement where appropriate.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
the investments in associates are stated at cost
less impairment losses (Note 2.9(b)). The results of
associates are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividend received and receivable.
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{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.4 Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i)  the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the
Group's previously held equity interest in the
acquiree; over

(ii) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured at the acquisition
date.

If, after reassessment, (ii) is greater than (i), then this
excess is recognised immediately in the consolidated
income statement as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of
cash-generating units, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination and is tested annually
for impairment (Note 2.9(b)).

On disposal of a cash-generating unit during the year,
any attributable amount of purchased goodwill is
included in the calculation of the gains or losses on
disposal.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
assets.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Subsequent expenditure is included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with that asset will
flow to the Group and the cost of that asset can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
costs are expensed in the income statement during the
period in which they are incurred.

Gain or loss arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined by comparing the net sale proceeds with
the carrying amount and is recognised in the income
statement on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, over their estimated useful lives
at the following annual rates:

(a) Straight line method

Leasehold land and
land use rights held
for own use

Over the unexpired term of
the lease

Over the shorter of the
unexpired term of the lease
and 30 years

Buildings held for
own use

Computer equipment  20% - 50%
and software

(b) Reducing balance method

Furniture, fixtures and  10% - 20%
office equipment

Motor vehicles 20% - 25%
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{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An asset’s residual value and useful life are reviewed,
and adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting date. An
asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to
its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note
2.9(b)).

2.6 Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which
are owned or held under a leasehold interest to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation, and are
not occupied by the companies within the Group.

Investment properties are measured initially at their
costs, including related transaction costs. After initial
recognition, investment properties are carried at fair
value. Fair value is based on active market prices and
adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the nature,
location or condition of the specific asset. If this
information is not available, the Group uses alternative
valuation methods such as recent prices on less active
markets or discounted cash flow projections.

Subsequent expenditure is included in the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with that asset will
flow to the Group and the cost of that asset can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
costs are expensed in the income statement during the
period in which they are incurred.

Changes in fair value and gain or loss on disposal of
an investment property are recognised in the income
statement as part of “Other losses — net”.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.7 Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed
where the customer has both the right to direct the
use of the identified asset and to obtain substantially
all of the economic benefits from that use.

(a) As alessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and
non-lease component(s), the Group has elected not
to separate non-lease components and accounts for
each lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component for all leases.

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets.
For the Group, the low-value assets are typically
office equipment. When the Group enters into a lease
in respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides
whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease
basis. The lease payments associated with those leases
which are not capitalised are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

—Z— =F4F3R Annual Report 2023

121



122

fm O BT IR ¥R RS
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Wbl BHRERBEERSERX
SstERER (£8)

2.7 W& (48)
(a) fFR&AMEA (18)

BENMEER  HERGBMHEREE
HAEMNEENRNBRERR  FA
HEFRSNNRFTE  JNEETS
FETE SZ A& - R AR RE RO 38 & {5 5K A
K o IRTERIL - HEABIREHKRA
AFERAE X HRBERFEOATHE - T~
RN ESEA XA 2HENRTE
REHERGEMNFED  BHRELR
Ve HIRINEm AR

MERNRBLRE

- BEENR(BREE LOHEEN
) IR (o] Y AR

- RRRIEBEUL R TR B EH
- AYIAAGE A B A0S B SR
SHEMTREENK

- ARERBEEERBEXN
HEHE

- WMRARBEAEMESTEEER
- RIBEENTEE &

- WMRBEEGRRIRBRAEEITER
IFHEEER BIXMRILHE

£ =
EMEIRK -

{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.7 Leases (Continued)

(a) As alessee (Continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not included in
the measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

The lease payments include:

- fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

- variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or
rate as at the commencement date;

- amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

- the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise the
option; and

- payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising an
option to terminate the lease.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.7 Leases (Continued)

(a) As alessee (Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use asset also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present value, less
any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset
is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (Notes 2.5 and
2.9(b)), except for the right-of-use assets that meet the
definition of investment property are carried at fair
value in accordance with Note 2.6.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated
useful life and the lease term.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted for
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included
in the cost of right-of-use assets.
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{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.7 Leases [Continued)

(a) As alessee (Continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a change
in an index or a rate, or there is a change in the Group's
estimate of the amount expected to be payable under
a residual value guarantee, or there is a change arising
from the reassessment of whether the Group will be
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase, extension
or termination option. When the lease liability is
remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is
made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not
meet the definition of investment property and lease
liabilities as a separate line item in the statement of
financial position. The current portion of long-term
lease liabilities is determined as the present value of
contractual payments that are due to be settled within
twelve months after the reporting date.

Lease modifications

Except for Covid-19-related rent concessions in which
the Group applied the practical expedient, the Group
accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease if:

. the modification increases the scope of the
lease by adding the right to use one or more
underlying assets; and

. the consideration for the lease increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect
the circumstances of the particular contract.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.7 Leases (Continued)
(a) As alessee (Continued)

Lease modifications (Continued)

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability,
less any lease incentives receivable, based on the lease
term of the modified lease by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liability by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset.

(b) As alessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease
if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to the ownership of an underlying asset to
the lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is classified
as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each component on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis. The rental income from
operating leases is recognised in accordance with Note
2.16(b).

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted
for under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments from lessees.

Lease modifications

Changes in consideration of lease contracts that were
not part of the original terms and conditions are
accounted for as lease modifications, including lease
incentives provided through forgiveness or reduction
of rentals.
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{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.7 Leases [Continued)
(b) As alessor (Continued)

Operating leases

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating
lease as a new lease from the effective date of the
modification, considering any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to the original lease as part of the
lease payments for the new lease.

For rent concession under which the Group legally
releases the lessee from its obligation to make
specifically identified lease payment, of which some
of these lease payments are contractually due but
not paid and some of them are not yet contractually
due, the Group accounts for the portions which have
been recognised as operating lease receivables (i.e.
the lease payments which are contractually due but
not paid) by applying the expected credit loss and
derecognition requirements under HKFRS 9 and applies
lease modification requirements for the forgiven lease
payments that the Group has not recognised (i.e. the
lease payments which are not yet contractually due) at
the effective date of modification.

2.8 Financial instruments

(a) Recognition and initial measurement

All other financial assets (including regular-way
purchases and sales of financial assets) and financial
liabilities are initially recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially
measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.8 Financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Classification

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as
measured at (i) amortised cost, (ii) fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) or (iii) fair value
through profit or loss (“FVPL").

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to
their initial recognition unless the Group changes its
business model for managing financial assets, in which
case all affected financial assets are reclassified on
the first day of the first reporting period following the
change in the business model.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it
meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as FVPL:

- it is held within a business model whose objective
is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows;
and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets
both of the following conditions and is not designated
as FVPL:

- it is held within a business model whose objective
is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets; and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates

to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.8 Financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Classification (Continued)

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is
not held for trading, the Group may irrevocably elect
to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair
value in other comprehensive income. This election is
made on an investment-by-investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at
amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are
measured at FVPL. This includes all derivative
financial assets. On initial recognition, the Group
may irrevocably designate a financial asset that
otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at
amortised cost or FVOC| as measured at FVPL if doing
so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch that would otherwise arise.

(il  Business model assessment

The Group makes an assessment of the objective of
the business model in which a financial asset is held at
a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the
business is managed and information is provided to
management. The information considered includes:

- the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio
and the operation of those policies in practice.
These include whether management’s strategy
focuses on earning contractual interest income,
maintaining a particular interest rate profile,
matching the duration of the financial assets to
the duration of any related liabilities or expected
cash outflows or realising cash flows through the
sale of the assets;

- how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated
and reported to the Group’s management;
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.8 Financial instruments (Continued)
(b) Classification (Continued)

(il Business model assessment (Continued)

- the risks that affect the performance of the
business model (and the financial assets held
within that business model) and how those risks
are managed;

- how managers of the business are compensated
- e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair
value of the assets managed or the contractual
cash flows collected; and

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of
financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for
such sales and expectations about future sales
activity. However, information about sales activity
is not considered in isolation, but as part of an
overall assessment of how the Group’s stated
objective for managing the financial assets is
achieved and how cash flows are realised.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are
managed and whose performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis are measured at FVPL.

lii] Assessment whether contractual cash flows are
solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, “principal” is
defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. “Interest” is defined as consideration
for the time value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding
during a particular period of time and for other
basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and
administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.
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{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.8 Financial instruments (Continued)
(b) Classification (Continued)

(il Assessment whether contractual cash flows
are solely payments of principal and interest
(Continued)

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are
solely payments of principal and interest, the Group
considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This
includes assessing whether the financial asset contains
a contractual term that could change the timing or
amount of contractual cash flows such that it would
not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the
Group considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount
or timing of cash flows;

- leverage features;

- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon
rate, including variable-rate features;

- prepayment and extension features;

- terms that limit the Group’s claim to cash flows
from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features);
and

- features that modify consideration of the time
value of money (e.g. periodical reset of interest
rates).
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.8 Financial instruments (Continued)
(b) Classification (Continued)

liii) Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at FVPL: These assets are subsequently
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period, with fair value gains or losses recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in the
income statement includes any interest earned on the
financial asset at FVPL and is included in the “Other
losses — Net”. The net gain or loss recognised excludes
the dividend income which is included in other income.

Financial assets at amortised cost: These assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The amortised cost
is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Debt investments at FVOCI: These assets are
subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income
calculated using the effective interest method, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses
are recognised in other comprehensive income. On
derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity investments at FVOCI: These assets are
subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are
recognised as dividend income from financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive income
in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive
the dividends is established, unless the dividend
clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised
in other comprehensive income and are never
reclassified to profit or loss.
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{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.8 Financial instruments (Continued)
(b) Classification (Continued)

(iv] Financial liabilities - Classification, subsequent
measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at
amortised cost or FVPL. All financial liabilities of the
Group are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. Interest expense
and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is
also recognised in profit or loss.

(c) Derecognition

[i]  Financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the
contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset are transferred or in which the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not
retain control of the financial asset.

The Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers
assets recognised in its statement of financial position,
but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and
rewards of the transferred assets. In these cases, the
transferred assets are not derecognised.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.8 Financial instruments (Continued)
(c) Derecognition (Continued)

(il Financial assets [Continued)

In transactions in which the Group neither retains nor
transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership of a financial asset and it retains control
over the asset, the Group continues to recognise the
asset to the extent of its continuing involvement,
determined by the extent to which it is exposed to
changes in the value of the transferred asset. Any
interest in transferred financial assets that qualify for
derecognition that is created or retained by the Group
is recognised as a separate asset or liability.

On derecognition of a financial asset (other than
FVOCI), the difference between the carrying amount
of the asset derecognised (or the carrying amount
allocated to the portion of the asset derecognised) and
the sum of (i) the consideration received (including
any new asset obtained less any new liability
assumed) and (ii) any cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income is
recognised in profit or loss.

Any cumulative gain or loss recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of equity investment
securities designated as measured at FVOCI is not
recognised in profit or loss on derecognition of such
securities, and will be transferred to retained profits.
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{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.8 Financial instruments (Continued)
(c) Derecognition (Continued)
lii]  Financial liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its
contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or
expire. The Group also derecognises a financial liability
when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the
modified liability are substantially different, in which
case a new financial liability based on the modified
terms is recognised at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference
between the carrying amount extinguished and the
consideration paid (including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognised in
profit or loss.

(d) Fair value measurement

“Fair value” is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date in the principal or, in its absence,
the most advantageous market to which the Group has
access at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects
its non-performance risk.

When one is available, the Group measures the fair
value of an instrument using the quoted price in an
active market for that instrument. A market is regarded
as “active” if transactions for the asset or liability take
place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide
pricing information on an ongoing basis.

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the
Group uses valuation techniques that maximise the use
of relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of
unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation technique
incorporates all of the factors that market participants
would take into account in pricing a transaction.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.8 Financial instruments (Continued)

(d) Fair value measurement (Continued)

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument
on initial recognition is normally the transaction price,
i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received.
If the Group determines that the fair value on initial
recognition differs from the transaction price and the fair
value is evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active
market for an identical asset or liability nor based on a
valuation technique for which any unobservable inputs are
judged to be insignificant in relation to the measurement,
then the financial instrument is initially measured at fair
value, adjusted to defer the difference between the fair
value on initial recognition and the transaction price.
Subsequently, that difference is recognised in profit or loss
on an appropriate basis over the life of the instrument but
no later than when the valuation is wholly supported by
observable market data or the transaction is closed out.

If an asset or a liability measured at fair value has a bid
price and an ask price, then the Group measures assets
and long positions at a bid price and liabilities and
short positions at an ask price.

The fair value of a financial liability with a demand
feature is not less than the amount payable on
demand, discounted from the first date on which the
amount could be required to be paid.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of that
date of the event or change in circumstances that
caused the transfer.
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{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.9 Impairment
(a) Non-derivative financial assets

(il Financial instruments

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECLs”) model on financial
assets (including credit-impaired loans to customers
and interest receivable, other debtors and deposits,
dividend receivable and bank balances) which are
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9. The
amount of ECLs is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECLs represents the ECLs that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECLs
represents the portion of lifetime ECLs that is expected
to result from default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date. Assessments are done
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current conditions at the reporting date as
well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group measures the loss allowances equal to
12-month ECLs, unless there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in
which case the Group recognises lifetime ECLs.
The assessment of whether lifetime ECLs should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risks of a default occurring since initial
recognition.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.9 Impairment (Continued)
(a) Non-derivative financial assets (Continued)

lii) ~ Significant increase in credit risk

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Group
considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or
effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis, based on the Group’s
historical experience and informed credit assessment
and including forward-looking information.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

- failure to make payments of principal or interest
on their contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
a financial instrument’s external or internal credit
rating (if available);

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have
a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability
to meet its obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial assets, the
assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or a collective
basis. When the assessment is performed on a
collective basis, the financial assets are grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics, such as past due
status, credit risk ratings and collateral types.
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{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.9 Impairment (Continued)
(a) Non-derivative financial assets (Continued)

lii] ~ Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30
days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

liii] Definition of default

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default
when:

- the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse
by the Group to actions such as realising security
(if any is held); or

- the financial asset is more than 90 days past due,
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.

liv] Measurement of ECLs

The measurement of ECLs is a function of the
probability of default (“PD"), loss given default (“LGD")
(i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default)
and the exposure at default (“EAD"). The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given default
is based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECLs reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined
with the respective risks of default occurring as the
weights.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.9 Impairment (Continued)
(a) Non-derivative financial assets (Continued)

liv] Measurement of ECLs [Continued)

Generally, the ECLs is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial assets’ credit risk since
initial recognition. Any change in the ECLs amount is
recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss.

(vl Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit-
impaired. A financial asset is credit-impaired when one
or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have
occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable data:

= significant financial difficulty of the borrower or
issuer;

- a breach of contract such as a default or being
more than 90 days past due;

- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the
Group on terms that the Group would not
consider otherwise;

- significant changes in the technological, market,

economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the borrower;
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{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.9 Impairment (Continued)
(a) Non-derivative financial assets (Continued)

[v] Credit-impaired financial assets [Continued)

- it is probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial restructuring; or

- the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

[vi] Basis of calculation of interest income on
credit-impaired financial assets

Interest income recognised in accordance with Note
2.16(a) is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial
asset is credit-impaired, in which case interest income
is calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the financial
asset.

lvii] Presentation of allowance for ECLs in the
statement of financial position

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at
amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets except for loans to customers
and interest receivable where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance
account.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.9 Impairment (Continued)
(a) Non-derivative financial assets (Continued)
Wviii] Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is
written off when the Group has no reasonable
expectation of recovering a financial asset in its
entirety or a portion thereof. The Group individually
makes an assessment with respect to the timing
and amount of write-off based on whether there is a
reasonable expectation of recovery. The Group expects
no significant recovery from the amount written off.
However, financial assets that are written off could still
be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply
with the Group’s procedures for recovery of amounts
due. A write-off constitutes a derecognition and any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in the income
statement.

(b) Other non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether
there is an indication that a non-financial asset is
impaired. Assets that have an indefinite useful life
or have not yet available for use are not subject to
amortisation and are at least tested annually for
impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
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{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.10 Insurance contracts

(a) Definitions and classifications

Products sold by the Group are classified as insurance
contracts when the Group accepts significant insurance
risk from a policyholder by agreeing to compensate
the policyholder if a specified uncertain future event
adversely affects the policyholder.

This assessment is made on a contract-by-contract
basis at the contract issue date. In making this
assessment, the Group considers all its substantive
rights and obligations, whether they arise from
contract, law or regulation.

The Group determines whether a contract contains
significant insurance risk by assessing if an insured
event could cause the Group to pay to the policyholder
additional amounts that are significant in any single
scenario and only if there is a scenario with commercial
substance in which the issuer has a possibility of a
loss on a present value basis upon occurrence of the
insured event, regardless of whether the insured event
is extremely unlikely.

The Group also issues reinsurance contracts in the
normal course of business to compensate other entities
for claims arising from one or more insurance contracts
issued by those entities.

For reinsurance contracts held even if a reinsurance
contract does not expose the issuer to the possibility
of a significant loss, the contract is deemed to
transfer significant insurance risk if it transfers to the
reinsurer substantially all the insurance risk relating
to the reinsured portions of the underlying insurance
contracts.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.10 Insurance contracts (Continued)

(b) Level of aggregation

Insurance contracts are aggregated into groups for
measurement purposes. Groups of contracts are
determined by identifying portfolios of insurance
contracts, each comprising contracts subject to
similar risks and managed together, and dividing
each portfolio into annual cohorts and each annual
cohort into three groups based on the profitability of
contracts:

- any contracts that are onerous on initial
recognition;

- any contracts that, on initial recognition, have
no significant possibility of becoming onerous
subsequently; and

- any remaining contracts in the portfolio.

The Group divides portfolios of reinsurance contracts
held applying the same principles above, except that
the references to onerous contracts shall be replaced
with a reference to contracts on which there is a net
gain on initial recognition.

When the contract is recognised, it is added to an
existing group of contracts or, if the contract does not
qualify for inclusion in an existing group, it forms a
new group to which future contracts are added. Groups
of contracts are established on initial recognition and
their composition is not revised once all contracts have
been added to the group.
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{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.10 Insurance contracts (Continued)
(c) Recognition

The Group recognises groups of insurance contracts
issued from the earliest of the following dates:

- the beginning of the coverage period of the
group of contracts;

- the date when the first payment from a
policyholder in the group becomes due (in the
absence of a contractual due date, this is deemed
to be when the first payment is received);

- the date when a group of contracts becomes
onerous.

A group of reinsurance contracts held is recognised on
the following dates:

- reinsurance contracts held that provide
proportionate coverage: generally later of the
beginning of the coverage period of the group of
reinsurance contracts held, or the date on which
any underlying insurance contract is initially
recognised;

- other reinsurance contracts held: the beginning
of the coverage period of the group of
reinsurance contracts held.

However, if the Group recognises an onerous group
of underlying insurance contracts on an earlier date
and the related reinsurance contract held was entered
into on or before that earlier date, then the group of
reinsurance contracts held is recognised on that earlier
date.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.10 Insurance contracts (Continued)

(d) Contract boundaries

The measurement of a group of contracts includes all
of the future cash flows within the boundary of each
contract in the group.

Cash flows are within the boundary of a contract if they
arise from substantive rights and obligations that exist
during the reporting period under which the Group
can compel the policyholder to pay premiums or has
a substantive obligation to provide insurance contract
services.

A substantive obligation to provide insurance contract
services ends when:

- the Group has the practical ability to reassess the
risks of the particular policyholder and can set a
price or level of benefits that fully reflects those
reassessed risks; or

- the Group has the practical ability to reassess the
risks of the portfolio that contains the contract
and can set a price or level of benefits that
fully reflects the risks of that portfolio; and the
pricing of the premiums for coverage up to the
reassessment date does not take into account
risks that relate to periods after the reassessment
date.

The contract boundary is reassessed at each reporting
date to include the effect of changes in circumstances
on the Group’s substantive rights and obligations and,
therefore, may change over time.
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{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.10 Insurance contracts (Continued)

(e} Measurement

The Group generally uses the PAA to simplify the
measurement of groups of contracts where the
coverage period of each contract in the group of
contracts is one year or less. For groups with a
coverage period longer than one year, eligibility for
the application of the PAA must be assessed for each
group of insurance contracts and therefore materiality
should be considered at the group level. PAA eligibility
is determined by applying a range of future scenarios
that an entity would reasonably expect, within the
context of the particular group. The carrying amount of
the LRC at each reporting date under those scenarios is
compared between the PAA and general model. When
any difference between the carrying amount of the
group’s LRC between the PAA and general model at
each reporting date in all scenarios is below a specified
threshold of materiality, then the group is eligible for
the PAA. This materiality threshold should be designed
to assess if the carrying amount of the LRC at each
reporting date under the PAA is not materially different
from the carrying amount of the LRC under the general
model for the particular group.

On initial recognition of each group of contracts,
the carrying amount of the LRC is measured at the
premiums received on initial recognition minus any
insurance acquisition cash flows allocated to the group
at that date and adjusted for amounts arising from the
derecognition of any assets or liabilities previously
recognised for cash flows related to the group.
Insurance acquisition cash flows will be amortised over
the contract’s coverage period.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.10 Insurance contracts (Continued)

(e} Measurement (Continued)

Subsequently, the carrying amount of the LRC
is increased by any premiums received and any
amortisation of the insurance acquisition cash flows,
and decreased by insurance acquisition cash flows
paid, the amount recognised as insurance revenue for
coverage provided and any investment component
paid or transferred to the LIC. On initial recognition of
each group of contracts, the Group expects that the
time gap between providing each part of the coverage
and the related premium due date is not significant.
Accordingly, the Group has chosen not to adjust the
LRC to reflect the time value of money and the effect
of financial risk.

If at any time during the coverage period, facts and
circumstances indicate that a group of contracts is
onerous, then the Group recognises a loss in profit
or loss and increases the LRC to the extent that the
current estimates of the fulfilment cash flows that
relate to remaining coverage (including the risk
adjustment for non-financial risk) exceed the carrying
amount of the LRC as loss component. In subsequent
periods, unless facts and circumstances indicate that
the group of contracts is no longer onerous, the loss
component is remeasured at each reporting date as
the difference between the current estimates of the
fulfilment cash flows that relate to remaining coverage
(including the risk adjustment for non-financial risk)
and the carrying amount of the LRC without loss
component.

Accordingly, by the end of the coverage period of the
group of contracts the loss component will be zero.

The Group recognises the LIC of a group of insurance

contracts for the amount of the fulfilment cash flows
relating to incurred claims.
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{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.10 Insurance contracts (Continued)

(e} Measurement (Continued)

The Group applies the same accounting principles to
measure a group of insurance contracts or reinsurance
contracts held under the PAA.

The Group calculates the loss-recovery component
by multiplying the loss recognised on the underlying
insurance contracts and the percentage of claims
on the underlying insurance contracts the Company
expects to recover from the group of reinsurance
contracts held. The Company uses a systematic and
rational method to determine the portion of losses
recognised on the group to insurance contracts
covered by the group of reinsurance contracts held
where some contracts in the underlying group are not
covered by the group of reinsurance contracts held. The
loss-recovery component adjusts the carrying amount
of the ARC. The Group subsequently reduces the loss-
recovery component to zero in line with reductions in
the onerous group of underlying insurance contracts in
order to reflect that the loss-recovery component shall
not exceed the portion of the carrying amount of the
loss component of the onerous group of underlying
insurance contracts that the entity expects to recover
from the group of reinsurance contracts held.

The Group includes in the estimates of the present
value of expected future cash flows for a group of
reinsurance contracts held the effect of any risk of
non-performance by the reinsurers, including the
effects of any collateral and losses from disputes. The
effect of non-performance risk of the reinsurers will be
assessed at each reporting date and will recognise in
consolidated income statement.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.10 Insurance contracts (Continued)

(f) Modification and derecognition

The Group derecognises the original contract and
recognises the modified contract as a new contract, if
the terms of insurance contracts are modified and the
following conditions are met:

(i) If the modified terms were included at contract
inception and the Group would have concluded
that the modified contract:

is outside of the scope of HKFRS 17;

- results in a different insurance contract due
to separating components from the host

contract;

- results in a substantially different contract
boundary;

- would be included in a different group of
contracts.

(i) The original contract was accounted for
applying the PAA, but the modified contract no
longer meets the PAA eligibility criteria for that
approach.

If the contract modification meets any of the
conditions, the Group performs all assessments
applicable at initial recognition, derecognises the
original contract and recognises the new modified
contract as if it was entered for the first time.

If the contract modification does not meet any of
the conditions, the Group treats the effect of the
modification as changes in the estimates of fulfilment
cash flows within the context of the simplifications
allowed by the PAA. For insurance contracts accounted
for applying the PAA, the Group adjusts insurance
revenue prospectively from the time of the contract
modification.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.10 Insurance contracts (Continued)

(f) Modification and derecognition (Continued)
An insurance contract is derecognised when it is:

- extinguished (that is, when the obligation
specified in the insurance contract expires or is
discharged or cancelled); or

- change in the measurement model or the
applicable standard for measuring a component
of the contract, substantially changes the contract
boundary, or requires the modified contract to be
included in a different group.

(g) Presentation and disclosure

The Group has presented separately, in the statement
of financial position, the carrying amount of portfolios
of insurance contracts issued that are assets, portfolios
of insurance contracts issued that are liabilities,
portfolios of reinsurance contracts held that are assets
and portfolios of reinsurance contracts held that are
liabilities.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.10 Insurance contracts (Continued)

(g) Presentation and disclosure (Continued)
(i)  Insurance revenue

When applying the PAA, the Group recognises
insurance revenue for the period based on the passage
of time by allocating expected premium receipts
including premium experience adjustments to each
period of service. However, when the expected pattern
of release from risk during the coverage period differs
significantly from the passage of time, the premium
receipts are allocated based on the expected pattern
of incurred insurance service expenses.

(ii) Insurance service expenses

Insurance service expenses arising from a group of
insurance contracts issued comprises:

- changes in the LIC related to claims and expenses
incurred in the period;

- changes in the LIC related to claims and expenses
incurred in prior periods (related to past service);

- other directly attributable insurance service
expenses incurred in the period;

- loss component of onerous groups of contracts
initially recognised in the period;

- changes in loss component in subsequent
measurement of the LRC; and

- amortisation of insurance acquisition cash flows.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.10 Insurance contracts (Continued)

(g) Presentation and disclosure (Continued)

(iii) Income or expenses from reinsurance contracts
held

Income or expenses from reinsurance contracts held
are split into the following two amounts:

- amount recovered from reinsurers;
- an allocation of the premiums paid.

The Group selects to present the income or expenses
from a group of reinsurance contracts held, other than
insurance finance income or expenses, as a single
amount.

The Group presents cash flows that are contingent on
claims as part of the amount recovered from reinsurers.
Ceding commissions that are not contingent on
claims of the underlying contracts are presented as a
deduction in the premiums to be paid to the reinsurer
which is then allocated to profit or loss.

(iv) Insurance finance income and expenses

Insurance finance income or expenses present the
effect of the time value of money and the change in
the time value of money, together with the effect of
financial risk and changes in financial risk of a group
of insurance contracts. Insurance finance income and
expenses shall be presented separately for insurance
contracts issued and reinsurance contracts held.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.11 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks
and in hand, deposits held at call with banks, cash
investments with original maturity of within three
months from the date of investment less bank
overdrafts.

2.12 Financial liabilities — Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net
of transaction costs incurred. Transaction costs are
incremental costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial liability,
including fees and commissions paid to the borrowers.
Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised
cost with any difference between the amount initially
recognised and redemption value is recognised in the
income statement over the period of the borrowings,
together with any interest and fees payable, using the
effective interest method.

2.13 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
the amount can be reliably estimated. Where there are
a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even
if the likelihood of an outflow of economic benefits
with respect to any one item included in the same class
of obligations may be small.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.13 Provisions (Continued)

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

Where the Group expects a provision to be reimbursed,
for example under an insurance contract, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but
only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.

2.14 Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains or losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the translation at closing
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the income statement.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.14 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b) Transactions and balances (Continued)

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities, such as equity instruments
measured at FVPL, are reported as part of the fair value
gains or losses in the income statement. Translation
differences on non-monetary items, such as equity
investments measured at FVOCI, are included in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity.

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the Company’s presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency
as follows:

- assets and liabilities in their statement of financial
position are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that statement of financial position;

- income and expenses in their income statement
are translated at average exchange rates,
unless these average exchange rates are not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing at the transaction
dates. In such case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions; and

- all resulting exchange differences are recognised
as a separate component of equity.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.14 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c) Group companies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising from the translation of the
net investments in foreign operations are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange translation
reserve. When a foreign operation is disposed of
or sold, the cumulative amount of the exchange
differences relating to the disposed of portion of
that foreign operation is reclassified from equity to
the income statement as part of the gain or loss on
disposal.

2.15 Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax
assets and liabilities are recognised in the income
statement except to the extent that they relate to
items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case they are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantially enacted at the reporting date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.15 Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the assets can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary differences or in periods into
which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset
can be carried back or forward. The same criteria are
adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
credits, that is, those differences are taken into account
if they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can
be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets and liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they
are not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries and
associates to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they
will reverse in the future.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.15 Income tax (Continued)

Where investment property is carried at its fair value
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
Note 2.6, the amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured using the tax rates that would apply on sale
of that investment property at its carrying value at
the reporting date unless that investment property
is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of
the economic benefits embodied in that investment
property over time, rather than through sale.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement
of the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities,
using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the
reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.
The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at each reporting date and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit
to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group
has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.15 Income tax (Continued)

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on the same taxable entity.

2.16 Revenue recognition

The Group’s revenue recognition policies are as follows:

(a) Interestincome

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method. For financial
assets measured at amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling)
that are not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate
is applied to the gross carrying amount of the assets.
For credit-impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the assets.

(b) Rental income from investment properties

Rental income receivable under operating leases
is recognised in the income statement in equal
installments over the periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the use of the leased asset. Lease incentives
granted are recognised in the income statement as
an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are earned.

(c) Dividend and distribution income

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholder’s
right to receive payment is established. Distribution
income is recognised when the right of the instrument
holders to receive payment is established.

—Z— =F4F3R Annual Report 2023

159



160

fm O BT IR ¥R RS
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Wbl BHRERBEERSERX
SstERER (£8)

2.16 IRANER (18)
(d) fRERUA

AEEENKEHER - SRHKE R
E(BRRENERFAR) DEBESE
ARFS AR - DAL RERRE HA ) (R B BR 75 UK
A o R - B AR B A RO T8 R R R T
B EBRENERAERAZER - R
RIS WA IR IR B B AR R IR TS B
M TRHAR S ETTHERR -

2.17 fBFRAR

ERRARELEFEERGERAH

2.18BE1@il
(a) R4

AEBEARFIE - SR B R
RNGETIVNCBEL:0E R N
FET 8 AR E S A B HA A FE
BRG] ARBEELHER - AE
BIMIAREE - ERESAU BTG N
BERMEREEREEE P RAEIE
B BRF S AR F] - AR IR TE S
E B ESAERIME -

AEBENEREERNRHERREERT
Fix - B A 28050 B KA RE R 51 8
& B FTIREE M SKMR D © TR K
5 ] 3R 2 R RS AL A R SR AN R Bl AR

{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.16 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(d) Insurance revenue

The Group recognises insurance revenue for the period
based on the passage of time by allocating expected
premium receipts including premium experience
adjustments to each period of service. However, when
the expected pattern of release from risk during the
coverage period differs significantly from the passage
of time, the premium receipts are allocated based on
the expected pattern of incurred insurance service
expenses.

2.17 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in the income statement
in the period in which they are incurred.

2.18 Employee benefits

(a) Retirement benefit costs

The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. These pension plans
are defined contribution schemes which the Group
pays fixed contributions and has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid.
The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to
pay further contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits
relating to employee services rendered in the current
and prior periods.

The Group's contributions are recognised as employee
benefits expense when they are due and are reduced
by contributions forfeited by those employees
who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in the
contributions. Prepaid contributions are recognised as
an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction
in future payments is available.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.18 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b) Employee’s leave entitlements

Employee’s entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. An accrual is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the reporting
date.

Employee’s entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

2.19 Related parties
For the purposes of these consolidated financial
statements, a related party is a person or entity that is

related to the Group.

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

2.19 Related parties (Continued)

(b)

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

one entity is an associate or a joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or a joint venture of
a member of a group of which the other entity is
a member).

both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in Note 2.19(a).

a person identified in Note 2.19(a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or is a
member of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT

The preparation of financial statements requires
management to make estimates and assumptions
concerning the future that affect the reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses in these
consolidated financial statements. The application of
assumptions and estimates means that any changes
of them, either due to changes of management’s
judgement or the evolvement of the actual
circumstances, would cause the Group’s financial
position and results to differ.

Estimates and judgement are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
The Group believes that the assumptions and estimates
that have been made in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are appropriate and
that these consolidated financial statements therefore
present fairly the Group’s financial position and results
in all material respects.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from
those involving estimations (see below), that the
Directors of the Company have made in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies and that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised
in the consolidated financial statements.

3.1 Significant influence over Xiamen
International Bank Co., Ltd. (“XIB”,
together with its subsidiaries, Chiyu
Banking Corporation Limited (“CYB”) and
Luso International Banking Ltd. (“LIB"],
are collectively referred to as “XIB Group”)

The Company holds approximately 8.689%
shareholding in XIB. The Company considered that it
has the ability to exercise significant influence over the
financial and operating policy decisions of XIB through
its representative on the board of directors of XIB as
well as the participation in policy-making processes
through the representation in committees set up by
the board of directors of XIB even though the Company
holds less than 20% of the voting power of XIB.
Accordingly, the Company considers that XIB Group
shall be classified as an associate of the Company
and the Company’s interest in XIB Group shall be
accounted for using equity method in accordance with
the HKFRSs. Details of XIB Group are set out in Note 18.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

3.2 Deferred income tax liabilities

The Group is subject to income tax in various
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the amounts of provision for income tax
and the timing of the payment of the related income
tax. There are certain transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain.
In particular, at 31 December 2023, the Group has
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position a deferred income tax liability of HK$29.27
million (2022: HK$30.14 million) in relation to the
dividends of RMB266.28 million (equivalent to
HK$292.64 million) for the years ended 31 December
2019, 2020 and 2021 (2022: in relation to the dividends
of RMB266.28 million, equivalent to HK$301.39 million,
for the years ended 31 December 2019, 2020 and 2021)
which has been proposed by XIB and approved by
board of directors of XIB, subject to approval from the
National Financial Regulatory Administration (“NFRA").
Although the Group has not recognised the dividend
income declared which had not been approved by
the NFRA, the Group has recognised the related
withholding tax in deferred income tax liabilities (Note
28) based on the assessment of probability of tax
exposure. Where the final tax outcome of the matter is
different from the amount that was initially recorded,
such difference will affect the provisions for deferred
income tax in the period in which such determination
is made.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

3.3 PAA eligibility test

The PAA measurement model is used for all the
contracts issued by the Group. Most of the contracts
issued by the Group was one year or less.

Most of the contracts issued by the Group have a
coverage period that is one year or less and they
automatically qualify as eligible for the PAA. Eligibility
for the application of the PAA must be assessed for
each group of insurance contracts and therefore
materiality should be considered at the group level.
For the contract issued with coverage period longer
than one year, PAA eligibility is determined by
applying a range of future scenarios that an entity
would reasonably expect, within the context of the
particular group. The carrying amount of the LRC at
each reporting date under those scenarios is compared
between the PAA and the general measurement model
(“GMM”). When any difference between the carrying
amount of the group’s LRC between the PAA and the
GMM at each reporting date in all scenarios is below
a specified threshold of materiality, then the group is
eligible for the PAA. This materiality threshold should
be designed to assess if the carrying amount of the LRC
at each reporting date under the PAA is not materially
different from the carrying amount of the LRC under
the GMM for the particular group.

When performing the PAA eligibility test, the following
key factors have been taken into consideration by the
management:

changing expectations of profitability for the
remaining coverage period (e.g., due to changes
in claims expectation); and

- changing market yield curves.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

3.4 Level of aggregation

The level of aggregation for the Group is determined
firstly by dividing the business written into portfolios.
The Group defines a portfolio as insurance contracts
subject to similar risks and managed together.
Contracts within the same product line are expected
to be in the same portfolio as they have similar risks
and are managed together. Portfolios are further
divided based on expected profitability at inception
into three categories: onerous contract, contracts
with no significant risk of becoming onerous, and the
remainder. The assessment of which risks are similar
and how contracts are managed requires the exercise
of judgement.

For each portfolio of contracts, the Group determines
the appropriate level at which reasonable and
supportable information is available, to assess
whether these contracts are onerous at initial
recognition and whether non-onerous contracts have
a significant possibility of becoming onerous. This
level of granularity determines sets of contracts. The
Group uses significant judgement to determine at
what level of granularity the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that is sufficient to
conclude that all contracts within a set are sufficiently
homogeneous and will be allocated to the same group
without performing an individual contract assessment.
If facts and circumstances indicate that some contracts
are onerous, an additional assessment is performed
to distinguish onerous contracts from non-onerous
ones. For non-onerous contracts, the Group assesses
the likelihood of changes in the applicable facts
and circumstances in the subsequent periods in
determining whether contracts have a significant
possibility of becoming onerous.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period that may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year.

3.5 Estimate of fair value of investment
properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on
the valuation performed by independent professional
valuers. The determination of the fair value involves
certain assumptions of market conditions which
are set out in Note 17. The best evidence of fair
value of investment properties held by the Group is
current prices in an active market for similar lease or
other contracts. In the absence of such information,
the Group determines the amount within a range
of reasonable fair value estimates. In making this
judgement, the Group considers information including
current prices in an active market for properties of
different nature, condition or location (or subject to
different lease or other contracts) adjusted to reflect
those differences, or recent prices of similar properties
in less active markets with adjustments to reflect
any changes in economic conditions since the date
of the transactions that occurred at those prices.
At 31 December 2023, the fair value of the Group’s
investment properties was approximately HK$172.33
million (2022: HK$173.34 million).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued])

3.6 Estimate of LIC

LIC includes expected ultimate costs of claims
incurred but not reported. It may take a significant
period of time before the ultimate costs of claims can
be established with certainty and for some type of
policies, these expected claims form the majority of
the insurance liabilities in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The ultimate costs of outstanding
claims are estimated by using a range of standard
actuarial claims projection techniques, such as the
Bornhuetter-Ferguson (“BF”) method.

The main assumption underlying these techniques
is that past claims development experience can be
used to project future claims development and hence
ultimate costs of claims. As such, these methods
extrapolate the development of paid and incurred
losses, average cost per claim and claim numbers
based on the observed development of earlier years
and expected loss ratios. Historical claims development
is mainly analysed by accident year, as well as by
significant business lines and claim types. Large claims
are usually separately addressed, either by being
reserved at the face value based on loss adjustors’
estimates or separately projected in order to reflect
their future development. The assumptions used are
those implicit in the historical claims development
data on which the projections are based. Additional
qualitative judgement is used to assess the extent to
which past trends may not apply in future (for example
to reflect one-off occurrence, changes in external or
market factors such as public attitudes of claiming,
economic conditions, levels of claims inflation, judicial
decisions and legislation, as well as internal factors
such as portfolio mix, policy conditions and claims
handling procedures), so as to arrive at the estimated
ultimate costs of claims that present the likely outcome
from the range of possible outcomes, taking into
account all of the uncertainties involved.

—Z— =F4F3R Annual Report 2023

169



170

= A\

fm O BT IR ¥R RS
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3

R B 5t& st R FIER (£8)

&t AEE MR EZRIR (58)

3.6 EREREEBEMIGET ()

ERLEREBEERAERED MG EFHE
B fE L e Ml o R R ARETT TR AR BR
BEMNERBERE - EEIAKE
BRENRBREOEFHEBRRAONE
BHYIR&ERSE 0F) AR
BERARBREEERMETERE
A([EBRBRER]) BERRAME
HAREHIBFESNABRMTISE
£ AEERSRABERARE RN E
RN EERT BHGRE— -

ERHAREREREIFMBERLNER
AE - RSB RARRESKOERR
MBS TR N RE T HEE 2K
EVHE - e AR R R R R A AR ERR
ARBEEREFBBRARPEENTHE
MEMEEMNNERE -

AEBRACEERNAMEREDE
BB B B MBOEE AT AR E JER
745 [\ B0 L B 78 2 o E 5T B B
B R E(E A B B T HO iR R
FIRFETE JEM SRR R SR & o B B)
MERMHEERMEREGEEEEE
HYRISREE - Bt ELENERARYE
75% B RS2 E K - FTEA A E12
ERFRREBFHEGLETEESLRES
BREITER

{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

3.6 Estimate of LIC (Continued)

LIC are discounted using the risk-free yield curves
adjusted by a liquidity premium to reflect the
illiquidity characteristics of the liabilities. Considering
the duration of insurance contracts issued and
reinsurance contracts held by the Group is less than
last liquid point (30 years), the Group adopts the risk-
free rates as published by the Insurance Authority
for determination of Risk Based Capital (“HKRBC"),
which are based on observable market information of
swaps or government bonds. The Group considers the
adoption of the HKRBC risk-free rates is to be market
consistent.

LIC includes the risk adjustment for non-financial risk,
which is the compensation that the Group requires for
bearing the uncertainty about the amount and timing
of the cash flows of groups of insurance contracts.
The risk adjustment reflects an amount that an insurer
would rationally pay to remove the uncertainty that
future cash flows will exceed the expected value
amount.

The Group uses a confidence-level approach at
entity level to determine the risk adjustment for non-
financial risk by applying statistical methods like
Bootstrapping. In estimating the risk adjustment, the
Group uses two applications of the bootstrapping
technique to determine the risk adjustment for non-
financial risk. The bootstrapping technique requires
calculating suitably chosen residuals for the chosen
model. The resulting risk adjustment corresponds to a
75% confidence level. The confidence-level assumption
used is reviewed each year and updated as necessary.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

3.7 Critical accounting estimates and
judgement of XIB Group

The Group’s major associated financial institution, XIB
Group, is principally conducting banking business
in Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau (Note 18).
The management of XIB Group has prepared a set
of consolidated financial statements for XIB Group's
reporting purposes. In preparing its consolidated
financial statements, the accounting policies of
XIB Group have been aligned, where necessary, in
the consolidated financial statements to ensure
consistency with those accounting policies adopted
by the Group. Certain critical accounting estimates
and judgement have been applied by XIB Group as
described below:

(a) Fair value of Level 3 financial instruments

The fair values of level 3 financial instruments that
are not quoted in active markets are determined
by XIB Group using valuation techniques. Valuation
techniques used include market comparison approach
and discounted cash flows analysis and models. To
the extent practical, models use only observable
data, however areas such as weighted average cost
of capital, credit risks (both own and counterparty),
volatilities and correlations require management of
XIB Group to make estimates. Changes in assumptions
about these factors could affect reported fair values of
financial instruments of XIB Group.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

3.7 Critical accounting estimates and
judgement of XIB Group (Continued)

[b) Impairment allowances on loans and advances

XIB Group adopts ECLs model for measurement of
impairment allowances on loans and advances. ECLs
are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
When determining whether the credit risk of a loan
and advance has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECLs, XIB Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
and analysis, based on XIB Group’s historical
experience and informed credit assessment and
including forward-looking information. XIB Group uses
watch lists to monitor credit risk of loans and advances,
and conducts regular assessments at the counterparty
level. The internal guidance used in determining
whether credit risk increases significantly is regularly
monitored and reviewed by the management of XIB
Group for the appropriateness.

The ECLs is the result of the discounted product of
PD, EAD and LGD. XIB Group determines the expected
credit losses by estimating the PD, LGD and EAD of
individual exposure or loan portfolios on a collective
basis. The calculation of PD is based on reasonable
and appropriate statistical models selected by the
management of XIB Group, which are based on
market data as well as internal data comprising
both quantitative and qualitative factors, including
historical data, assumptions and expectation of future
conditions. The management of XIB Group applied
judgements to determine LGD after considering
different types of counterparties, methods and priority
of recovering debts, and the availability of collaterals
or other credit support.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued])

3.7 Critical accounting estimates and
judgement of XIB Group (Continued)

[b) Impairment allowances on loans and advances
(Continued]

Both the assessment of the significant increase in
credit risk and the measurement of expected credit
losses involve forward-looking information. Based on
the analysis on historical data, XIB Group identified
critical economic indicators that affect the credit risk
and expected credit losses of all asset portfolios.

XIB Group quarterly monitors and reviews assumptions
related to the calculation of expected credit losses,
including the changes in PD and the value of collaterals
under the different time limits.

[c) Estimation of impairment on goodwill

XIB Group has recognised a consolidated goodwill on
acquisition of approximately 64.31% shareholding in
CYB at the date of acquisition based on the costs of
acquisition and the fair value of identifiable net assets
of CYB. In assessing the impairment of the consolidated
goodwill, the recoverable amount of CYB is determined
based on the value in use calculation. The value in
use calculation requires XIB Group to estimate the
future cash flow projections of CYB based on financial
budgets covering judgement and assumptions made
by senior management and the pre-tax discount rate
in order to calculate the present value. Based on the
impairment assessment performed by XIB Group on
such consolidated goodwill at 31 December 2023, an
impairment loss of RMB43.82 million was recognised.
However, as key assumptions which management of
XIB Group has made in respect of future cash flow
projections are subject to change, an adverse change
in the assumptions could cause the carrying amount to
exceed its recoverable amount.
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EBPR2AA] Min Xin Holdings Limited

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors

The Group’s business activities expose it to a variety
of insurance risk and financial risks including market
risk (including foreign exchange risk, price risk and
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. This note
summarises the Group'’s exposure to these risks, as well
as its objectives, policies and processes for managing
and the methods used to measure these risks.

The Group’s investment policy is to prudently invest
its funds in a manner which satisfies the Group’s
liquidity requirements and generates optimal returns
to the Group within a manageable risk level. The
Group’s overall risk management focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
performance.

The Board, representing the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole, is the highest
decision making authority of the Group and has the
ultimate responsibility for risk management. The Board
has adopted procedures for evaluating and approving
significant investment decisions. Given the nature of
the Group’s financial assets and liabilities, their risk
exposures are monitored by the Group primarily on a
qualitative basis.

The General Manager Meeting comprises the
General Manager (“GM”) and senior management
of the Company, is responsible for managing the
Group’s various types of risks, approving detailed
risk management policies, and approving material
risk exposures or transactions within its authority
delegated by the Board.

The Group has put in place an internal control system,
including establishment of the Group’s organisation
structure that sets adequately clear lines of authority
and responsibility for monitoring compliance with
policies, procedures and limits. Proper reporting lines
also provide sufficient independence of the control
functions from the business areas, as well as adequate
segregation of duties throughout the organisation
which helps to promote appropriate internal control
environment.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(a) Insurance risk

The Group issues contracts that transfer insurance risk.
This section summarises these risks and the way the
Group manages such risks.

The risks under any one insurance contract are the
possibility that the insured event occurs and the
uncertainty of the amount of the resulting claims. By
the very nature of an insurance contract, these risks are
random and therefore unpredictable.

For a portfolio of insurance contracts where the theory
of probability is applied to pricing and provisioning,
the principal risk that the Group faces under its
insurance contracts is that the amount of the actual
claims exceed the carrying amount of the insurance
liabilities. This could occur because the frequency or
severity of claims are greater than estimated. Insurance
events are random and the actual numbers and
amounts of claims will vary from year to year from the
level established using statistical techniques.

Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of
similar insurance contracts, the smaller the relative
variability about the expected outcome will be. In
addition, a more diversified portfolio is less likely to be
affected across the board by a change in any subset of
the portfolio.

Factors that aggravate insurance risk include lack of
risk diversification in terms of type and amount of risk
and type of industry covered.

(il  Concentration of underwriting risk

The frequency and severity of claims can be affected by
several factors. The most significant are the increasing
level of awards for the damage suffered and the
increase in number of cases coming to court that were
inactive or latent for a long period of time. Estimated
inflation is also a significant factor due to the long
period typically required to settle these cases.
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{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

(il  Concentration of underwriting risk [Continued)

The Group manages these risks through its underwriting
strategy, adequate reinsurance arrangements and claims
handling.

The underwriting strategy attempts to ensure that
the underwritten risks are well diversified in terms of
type and amount of risk, industry and geographical
location.

Underwriting limits are in place to enforce appropriate
risk selection criteria. For example, the Group has the
right to re-price, cancel or not to renew a contract, it
can impose deductibles and it has the right to reject
the payment of fraudulent claim. Insurance contracts
also entitle the Group to pursue third parties for
payment of some or all costs (subrogation). Unless the
legislation requires, the Group's strategy limits the total
exposure of any individual policy to a certain amount.

The reinsurance arrangements include facultative,
proportional treaties and excess of loss coverage. The
effect of such reinsurance arrangements is that the
Group should not suffer total net insurance losses more
than the prescribed amount. In addition to the overall
reinsurance program, additional reinsurance protection
for any individual risk will be arranged when necessary.

The group only conducts insurance business in
Hong Kong and Macau, therefore it does not have a
significant concentration of underwriting risk.

The concentration of insurance risk before reinsurance
in relation to type of insurance accepted is summarised
below, with reference to the carrying amounts of
the insurance contracts issued. The reinsurance
arrangement is mainly focusing on the motor, property
damage and employee benefits:
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK

MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors

(Continued)

(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

(il  Concentration of underwriting risk (Continued)

2023 2022

BT T BT

HKS’000 HKS’000

B Motor 54,433 35,022
—MERBE General liability 31,537 21,318
B E R Property damage 20,637 18,936
BRES A Reinsurance inwards 35,488 26,225
i Other 2,704 2,253
144,799 103,754
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{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

lii]  Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future
claims payments

Claims on insurance contracts are payable on a claim-
occurrence basis. The Group is liable for all insured
events that occurred during the term of the contract
even if the loss is discovered after the end of the
contract term. As a result, liability claims are settled
over a long period of time and a larger element of
claims provision relates to incurred but not reported
claims. There are several variables that affect the
amounts and timing of cash flows from these contracts.
These mainly relate to the inherent risks by individual
contract holders and the risk management procedures
adopted. The compensation paid on these contracts
is the monetary awards granted for bodily injury
suffered. Such awards are lump-sum payments that are
calculated as the present value of the loss of earnings
and rehabilitation expenses that the injured party will
incur as a result of the accident.

The estimated costs of claims include direct expenses
to be incurred in settling claims, net of the expected
subrogation value and other recoveries. The Group
takes all reasonable steps to ensure that it has
appropriate information regarding its claims exposures.
However, given the uncertainty in establishing claims
provisions, it is likely that the final outcome will prove
to be different from the original established liabilities.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

lii]  Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future
claims payments (Continued)

In calculating the estimated costs of unpaid claims (both
reported and not reported), the Group’s estimation
techniques are a combination of loss-ratio-based
estimates (where the loss ratio is defined as the ratio
between the ultimate costs of insurance claims and
insurance premiums earned in a particular financial year
in relation to such claims) and estimates based upon
actual claims experience using predetermined formulae
where greater weight is given to actual claims experience
as time passes.

The estimation of ultimate losses is generally subject
to a greater degree of uncertainty than the estimation
of the costs of settling claims already notified to the
Group, where information about the claim event is
available. In estimating ultimate losses which make
reasonable provisions for the claims, it is necessary
to project future costs of claims and associated
claims expenses and simulate the outcomes of claims
liabilities using models. These models are a simplified
representation of many legal, social and economic
forces and may not be entirely appropriate for the
types of insurance business being analysed. It is certain
that actual future claims and claims expenses will not
develop exactly as projected and may vary significantly
from the projections.

In estimating the liabilities for the costs of
reported claims not yet paid, the Group considers
any information available from loss adjusters and
information on the costs of settling claims with similar
characteristics in previous periods. Large claims
are assessed on a case-by-case basis or projected
separately in order to allow for the possible distortive
effect of their development and incidence on the rest
of the portfolio.
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{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

lii] Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future
claims payments (Continued)

Where possible, the Group adopts multiple techniques
to estimate the required level of provisions. This
provides a greater understanding of the trends
inherent in the experience being projected. The
projections given by the various methodologies also
assist in estimating the range of possible outcomes.
The most appropriate estimation technique is selected
taking into account the characteristics of the business
class and the extent of the development of each
accident year.

liii] Process used to decide on assumptions

The Group uses several statistical methods to
incorporate the various assumptions made in order
to estimate the ultimate costs of claims. The choice
of selected results for each accident year of each
class of business depends on an assessment of the
technique that has been most appropriate to observed
historical developments. In certain instances, different
techniques or combination of techniques have been
selected for individual accident year or group of
accident years within the same class of business.

In estimating the claims liabilities of the Group’s
insurance portfolio, the paid and incurred loss
development methods supplemented by BF method
are applied. For other classes of insurance portfolio, the
incurred loss development method is used to project
the claims liabilities.

The paid and incurred loss development methods
are used to project the ultimate costs of the claims,
and the BF method relies on a gradual transition
from an estimated loss ratio to an experience-rated
development. BF method is applied to the more recent
accident years, for which the paid and incurred loss
development methods may yield less accurate results.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

(liv] Reinsurance arrangement

The Group has in place a series of effective reinsurance
covers on a number of short-term insurance products.
The placement of reinsurance is diversified such that
the Group is neither dependent on a single reinsurer
nor are the operations of the Group substantially
dependent upon any single reinsurance contract. The
Group also considers the long-established business
relationship with the reinsurers.

The Group has also limited its exposure to a certain
level by use of reinsurance arrangements in order
to limit exposure to catastrophic events, such as
earthquakes and flood damages. The purpose of these
underwriting and reinsurance strategies is to limit
the exposure to catastrophes to a pre-determined
maximum amount based on the Group’s risk appetite.
For a single realistic catastrophic event, the maximum
exposure is less than 5% of the shareholders’ equity
of the wholly-owned subsidiary, Min Xin Insurance
Company Limited (“Min Xin Insurance”), on a net basis.

(vl Insurance claims development tables

The table below summarises actual claims compared
with previous estimates of the undiscounted amount
of the claims. The Group presents information on the
gross and net claims development for claims incurred 5
years before the reporting period. The Group reconciles
the undiscounted claims liabilities presented in the
table with the aggregate carrying amount of the gross
liabilities for incurred claims.

The Group has not disclosed previously unpublished
information about claims development that occurred
earlier than five years before the end of the annual
reporting period in which it first applies HKFRS 17.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

(vl Insurance claims development tables [Continued)

ENEE Accident year 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 #% Total
BRFT  EEFT  BEEFT  BEFT BN | BEFX
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
FREEREER Gross claims development
Bt REARFEEEE  Estimate of undiscounted ultimate
e gross claims
RENFE at end of accident year 19,616 25,069 30,610 33,474 55,171
—F% one year later 12,742 38,899 54,008 54,976
—Fig two years later 11,213 49,072 61,870
=F5 three years later 10,252 50,650
IEf four years later 9,555
SHIAE M Z2EEEE  Current estimate of cumulative claims 9,555 50,650 61,870 54,976 55,171 232,222
ZELRHNT Cumulative payment to date (8,667) (32,602) (31,332) (12,124) (3,920) |  (88,645)
20194 -2023FFH  Gross liabilities for accident years
FEEEER 2019-2023 888 18,048 30,538 42,852 51,251 | 143,577
019FERHNET Gross liabilities in respect of prior
8 years before 2019 2,329
ENRE Claims payable 10,170
pgiRiat A Effect of discounting (7,992)
DELREREEE  Gross liabilities for incurred claims 148,084

182 B{E&EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

(vl Insurance claims development tables [(Continued)

EHEE Accident year 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 443 Total
BETT EEFr BEFr BETr EETFL | B¥Tx
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEZXRTE Net claims development
T RERNEEEE  Estimate of undiscounted ultimate
FH net claims
RENFE at end of accident year 15,169 21,173 26,673 28,977 43,901
—E% one year later 11,765 34,901 48,899 49,429
“Eg two years later 10,302 43,920 57,042
=F5 three years later 9413 46,573
INEf four years later 8,727
SHILE M Z2EEEE  Current estimate of cumulative claims 8,727 46,573 57,042 49,429 43,901 205,672
ZERHNT Cumulative payment to date (7,854) (28,798) (27,489) (10,015) (2,960) | (77,116)
2019F-2023FEH  Net liabilities for accident years
FREMFE 2019-2023 873 17,775 29,553 39,414 40941 | 128,556
019FFEAMET  Netliabilities in respect of prior years
HE before 2019 1,810
ENRE Claims payable 7,018
nRETE Effect of discounting (7,296)
BELREGREFE  Netliabilities for incurred claims 130,088
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(a) Insurance risk (Continued)
vi] ~ Sensitivity analysis

The reasonableness of the estimation process is tested
by an analysis of sensitivity around different scenarios.
The change in the monetary awards granted for bodily
injury suffered and also the employers’ liabilities
claims are the most critical to the assumptions used to
estimate the liabilities for these insurance contracts.

The Group believes that the liabilities for these claims
carried at the reporting date are adequate. However,
an increase or a decrease of 10% in the costs of these
claims would require the recognition of an additional
loss or gain of approximately HK$10.86 million (2022:
approximately HK$9.35 million) net of reinsurance.

The impact on the profit before taxation described
above does not take into account of changes in other
variables, as they are considered to be less material.
Such an assessment and the relative materiality of
individual variable may change in the future.

(b) Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss that results from
movements in market rates and prices. The risk
includes potential losses arising from changes in
foreign exchange rates, interest rates, equity prices and
commodity prices.

The Group’s risk management objective is to enhance
shareholders’ value by maintaining risk exposures
within acceptable limits. The Group’s control of market
risk is based on restricting individual operation
to invest within a list of permissible instruments
authorised by the Board to ensure all risks arising
are thoroughly identified, properly measured and
adequately controlled.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(b) Market risk (Continued)

(il Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong, Mainland
China and Macau and is primarily exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from recognised assets and
liabilities and net investments in foreign operations
measured in Renminbi and the United States dollars.

Foreign exchange risk is the risk of loss due to
adverse movements in foreign exchange rates
relating to financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income denominated in foreign
currencies.

In respect of assets held in currencies other than the
functional currency of the operations to which they
relate, the Group ensures that the net exposure is kept
to an acceptable level, by buying and selling foreign
currencies at spot rates where necessary to address
short-term imbalances.

The Group’s borrowings are in the functional
currency of the entity taking out the loans. Given this,
management does not expect that there will be any
significant currency risk associated with the Group's
borrowings.

The following table details the Group’s exposure to
foreign exchange risk arising from recognised assets
and liabilities measured in a currency other than the
functional currency of the entities to which they relate
at the reporting date:

—Z— =F4F3R Annual Report 2023

185



186

fm O BT IR ¥R RS
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

L RIENEERESIE (8) 4 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)
4.1 RIBNRIFREERE () 4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)
(b) iz (&) (b) Market risk (Continued)
li)  ShERIRE (78 li]  Foreign exchange risk (Continued)
2023 2022
BRLE BRZE
HKD equivalent HKD equivalent
AR E am AR e a5
RMB usb Total RMB usb Total

BRFr  EMFn BRTL | ERTT BRI ERTR
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000 |  HKSO00  HKSOOO  HKS000

BATEFAZMRE  Financial assets at fair value through

batemaE other comprehensive income 580,296 23101 603,397 585,295 21,648 606,043
REHF AT EMERIRE Debt investments at amortised cost = 152,198 152,198 - - -
BATEEBBRTIEL  Financial assets at fair value through

SREE profit or loss - 9,250 9,250 = 8,99 8,996
Eft IR Other debtors 566 651 1,217 24 169 413
iz Term deposits 128,636 1,976 130,612 204,249 19,491 223,740
BERBEEED Cash and cash equivalents 117,678 1,254 118,932 55,980 574 56,554

827,176 188,430 1,015,606 845,768 50,878 896,646

TRINRAEBERERAEEARKE The following table indicates the approximate changes
EHIRHE T g2 A ERER in the Group’s profit after taxation and retained
HAKREMBRTE SR RRBEF - A profits, and other components of equity in response to
REREMARKSOEENRNOTE reasonably possible changes in the foreign exchange

rates of Renminbi to which the Group has significant
exposure at the reporting date:

2023 2022
EXx HRA&EAR  WREAH EX  Hhheaik  HiEnii
R/ (TH) RBENNYE fA30¥E LA/ (Th) RIEFHNFE SxFrnz2
Increase/ Effecton Effect on Increase/ Effect on Effect on
(decrease) in profit after other (decrease) in profit after other
foreign  taxationand  components foreign ~ taxationand  components
exchangerate retained profits ofequity  exchangerate  retained profits of equity
BAk BETT BEFT BAl BEFT BEFT
% HK$'000 HK$'000 % HKS'000 HK$'000
ARE Renminbi 5 10,307 29,015 5 10,875 29,265
(5) (10,307) (29,015) (5) (10,875) (29,265)
LRSRESTNREEXREHINZ The above sensitivity analysis has been determined
HABERERERAEHAEALAS assuming that the change in foreign exchange rate had
BENESE T AERINERPR - MATEH occurred and had been applied to remeasure those
M (BRI E) BIgHFTE - financial instruments held by the Group which expose

to foreign exchange risk at the reporting date, and that
all other variables, in particular interest rate, remained
constant.

{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(b) Market risk (Continued)

(il  Foreign exchange risk [Continued]

The stated changes represent management’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes in foreign
exchange rates over the period until the next reporting
date. As a result of the pegged rate between the
Hong Kong dollars and the United States dollars, the
management considered that there would not be
material impact arising from any changes in movement
in value of the United States dollars against Hong
Kong dollars. Accordingly no sensitivity analysis is
presented for the United States dollars. Results of the
analysis as presented in the above table represent
an aggregation of the effects on profit after taxation
and equity of each of the Group’s entities measured
in the respective functional currencies, translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rate ruling at the
reporting date for presentation purposes. The analysis
is performed on the same basis for 2022.

(ii]  Price risk

The Group is exposed to price risk on investments held
by the Group classified in the consolidated statement
of financial position as financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income or at fair value
through profit or loss.

The Group’s financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss comprise listed equity investments,
listed and unlisted investment funds and principal-
guaranteed structured bank deposits. Decisions
to buy or sell these investments are based on the
performance of individual investment compared to
that of the index, expected return and the Group’s
liquidity needs. Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income comprise listed equity
investments. These investments have been chosen
based on their long term growth potential and
are monitored regularly for performance against
expectation.
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{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(b) Market risk (Continued)

(ii]  Price risk [Continued]

The Group monitors price risk arising from structured
bank deposits by limits established for transactions
and open positions. These limits are reviewed and
monitored on a transaction-by-transaction basis.
The fair value of the structured bank deposits was
approximate to their respective aggregate of principal
plus expected interest income at the reporting date.

At 31 December 2023, it is estimated that if the quoted
prices of unlisted investment funds increased or
decreased by 5%, with all other variables held constant,
it would increase or decrease the Group's profit after
taxation and retained profits by approximately HK$0.8
million (2022: approximately HK$0.8 million).

At 31 December 2023, it is estimated that if the quoted
price of the US$200 million 8 per cent. undated non-
cumulative subordinated Additional Tier 1 capital
securities (the “Subordinated Additional Tier 1 Capital
Securities”) of CYB increased or decreased by 5%, with
all other variables held constant, it would increase or
decrease the Group’s other components of equity by
approximately HK$1.16 million (2022: HK$1.08 million).
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4 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(b) Market risk (Continued)

(ii]  Price risk [Continued]

The following table indicates the approximate changes
in the Group’s profit after taxation and retained
profits, and other components of equity in response
to reasonably possible changes in the relevant stock
market index for listed investments to which the Group
has significant exposure at the reporting date:

2023 2022

ERERSY HRHRENR  HEDHEM  ARERER HRRREIR ;ﬁ it
L/ (TH) REEANYE ARSINFE L7/ (TH) REENNTE ARPHaE

Increase/ Effect on Effect Increase/ Effect on Effect
(decrease) profit after on other (decrease) profit after on other
intherelevant  taxationand  components in the relevant taxation and components
risk variance retained profits of equity risk variance  retained profits of equity
BAl BEFr BYFr A7l BEFT BEFT
% HK$'000 HK$'000 % HKS'000 HKS'000
LTHREW Stock market index
RS in respect of listed
| investments
EERE Hang Seng Index 5 12 1,119 5 10 =
(5) (12) (1,119) (5) (10) -
HEGAES Shanghai Composite
Index 5 - 27,105 5 - 29,226
(5) - (27,105) (5 - (29,226)
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EBPR2AA] Min Xin Holdings Limited

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(b) Market risk (Continued)

(ii]  Price risk [Continued]

The above sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the reasonably possible changes in the
stock market index had occurred and had been applied
to the exposure to equity price risk in existence at the
reporting date. It is also assumed that the fair values
of the Group’s equity investments would change in
accordance with the historical correlation with the
relevant stock market index and that all other variables
remained constant. The stated changes represent
management’s assessment of reasonably possible
changes in the relevant stock market index over the
period until the next reporting date. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2022.

(iii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks

Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk is
the risk that future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates.

The Group’s interest bearing assets and liabilities
mainly comprise bank deposits, financial assets at
amortised cost, LIC for insurance contracts issued and
reinsurance contracts held, and bank borrowings,
bore at fixed or floating rates, which expose the Group
to fair value interest rate risk and cash flow interest
rate risk respectively. The Group manages these risks
primarily through maintaining the maturity profile of
these assets and liabilities within a short to medium
period and monitoring the market interest rate
movements so that the Group can react accordingly
when there are adverse interest rate movements.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk arising from its savings accounts carrying interest
at variable rates and fair value interest rate risk arising
from its debt investments at amortised cost at fixed
rates. The Group considered its exposure of the saving
accounts and debt investments at amortised cost to
interest rate risk is not significant and therefore no
sensitivity analysis is presented.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(b) Market risk (Continued)

(iii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks
{Continued)

The following table indicates the approximate changes
in the Group’s profit after taxation and retained profits
in response to reasonably possible changes in interest
rates with all other variables held constant for bank
borrowings, insurance contracts issued and reinsurance
contracts held at the reporting date:

2023 2022
HRBERAR Q@ﬁ&hﬂ
RERTNTE RERNETE
Effect on Effect on
GBS ) profit after kS 5 profit after
Changein taxation and Changein taxation and
interestrates  retained profits interest rates  retained profits
2y BETr 25 BEFT
Basis points HK$'000 Basis points HKS'000
r£E The Group
RTER Bank borrowings 100 (4,317) 100 (4,125)
(100) 4,317 (100) 4125
BRORRAD Insurance contracts issued 100 1,895 100 1,357
(100) (1,969) (100) (1,408)
BEEBRRAY Reinsurance contracts held 100 (157) 100 (95)
(100) 162 (100) 98

L BRERESMERRFEEHENRE
WABERBEFEAEBRERAEFE
RZEFEREHMTE BEAORBED
M&hﬁﬁ%m AP EREE o £F
S THI00REES AEEEHNEE T~ —
BFEE2RE FBEFREENEER
BEE BRI FL(E o

The above sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the changes in interest rates had
occurred and had been applied to the exposure to

interest rate risk for financial instruments, insurance
contracts issued and reinsurance contracts held
with variable interest rates held by the Group at
the reporting date. The 100 basis points increase or
decrease represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible changes in interest rates over the
period until the next reporting date.
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{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(c) Creditrisk

The Group is exposed to credit risk, which is the risk
that a customer or counterparty will be unable to
or unwilling to fulfill its repayment obligations for
amounts due to the Group. The Group’s credit risk
is primarily attributable to loans to customers and
interest receivable, reinsurance contract assets, other
debtors and bank balances.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer/
counterparty and therefore significant concentrations
of credit risk primarily arise when the Group has
significant exposure to individual customers/
counterparties.

In respect of loans to customers and interest receivable,
the Group limits its exposure to credit risk by screening
the counterparties, on-going monitoring and acquiring
collateral from counterparties. These receivables are
required to meet the Group’s established financial
requirements and the Group will obtain third party
guarantees when it considered them necessary.

Reinsurance is placed with counterparties that have a
good credit rating and concentration of risk which is
subject to annual review. At each reporting date, the
Group performs an assessment of non-performance
risk of reinsurers by reviewing their financial strength
and updates the reinsurance purchase strategy if any.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(c) Credit risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2023, credit risk on reinsurance
contract assets is limited because these reinsurance
contracts were signed with reputable reinsurance
companies with diversification. The majority of
counterparties are major reinsurance companies
with credit ratings of A- or higher (2022: A- or higher)
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.
These reinsurance companies have a low risk of non-
performance.

The Group performs impairment assessment under
ECLs model on credit-impaired loans to customers
and interest receivable individually. After considering
forward looking information, the management
estimates the PD and LGD of credit-impaired loans to
customers based on historical credit loss experience
of the debtors as well as the fair value of the collateral
pledged by the customers. The Group has recognised
impairment allowances at amounts equal to lifetime
ECLs for credit-impaired loans to customers and
interest receivable. At 31 December 2023, the Group's
impairment allowances on credit-impaired loans to
customers and interest receivable were HK$153.24
million (2022: HK$170.06 million) and impairment
allowances to credit-impaired loans to customers and
interest receivable ratio was 91% (2022: 91.4%).
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EBPR2AA] Min Xin Holdings Limited

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(c) Credit risk (Continued)

The Group has concentration of credit risk arising
from bank balances. At 31 December 2023, credit risk
on bank balances is limited because bank balances
were placed with reputable financial institutions
with diversification. The counterparties are major
institutional banks with credit ratings of BBB- or higher
(2022: BBB- or higher) assigned by international credit-
rating agencies. These institutional banks have a low
risk of default and there is no significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. Accordingly, they
are subject to 12-month ECLs.

The Group has concentration of credit risk arising from
debt investments at amortised cost. At 31 December
2023, credit risk on debt investments at amortised
cost is limited because debt investments at amortised
cost were placed with reputable financial institutions
or entities with diversification. The counterparties
are major financial institutions or entities with
credit ratings of A- or higher (2022: nil) assigned by
international credit-rating agencies. These institutional
financial institutions or entities have a low risk of
default and there is no significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition. Accordingly, they are subject
to 12-month ECLs.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which
would expose the Group to credit risk.
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bz 2B 5 R PREIR (48) 4 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)
41 RENRIIBREEREERE (8) 4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)
c) SERIKE (18) (c) Credit risk (Continued)
MAE AEMFENER R EMmER The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
AR REFENHEERROHKSEN date without taking into account of any collateral
EBEREEMBHRARANEH R - B held or other credit enhancement is the net carrying
fRB2 ﬁ%ﬁ’]ﬁﬁﬁﬁr@ EERBRANRS amount of the financial, insurance, reinsurance assets
BT stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position. A summary of the maximum exposure is as
follows:
2023 2022
(&%)
(Restated)
BEF T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
DEEREMNEFPER  Credit-impaired loans to customers
MW R B (727 23) and interest receivable (Note 23) 15,102 15,921
el —xEt& ATIIRE. Dividend receivable from an associate = 4,527
BB HEKATTER Debt investments at
BEBKRE amortised cost 156,174 _
Hin R EBR R MR & Other debtors and deposits 3,350 846
BE& RIBTET Cash and bank balances 1,093,227 1,032,423
RBRELNEE Insurance contract assets 1,461 _
BREENEE Reinsurance contract assets 15,019 11,738
1,284,333 1,065,455
EERENEFERRERFEEER Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
B E— PRI REH N EE23 - Group's exposure to credit-impaired loans to customers

and interest receivable are set out in Note 23.
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EBPR2AA] Min Xin Holdings Limited

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(d) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter
difficulty in meeting its cash flow needs or
commitments. Liquidity risk may result from either
inability to raise new funds, sell financial assets quickly
at their fair value, a counterparty failing on repayment
of a contractual obligation or an insurance liability
falling due for payment earlier than expected.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash, readily realisable marketable
securities and adequate committed lines of funding
from reputable financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

Individual operating entity within the Group is
responsible for its own cash management, including
the short-term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands.

The following table details the remaining contractual
value at the reporting date of the Group’s financial
liabilities which are based on contractual undiscounted
cash flows (including interest payments computed
using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates
current at the reporting date) and the earliest date
the Group can be required to pay and expected
undiscounted cash flow for LIC for insurance contracts
issued as well as undiscounted cash flows expected to
be received on related reinsurance contracts held.
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RIS REREIR (58) 4 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)
4.1 RBKEIFERMAR (&) 4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)
(d) WEhEERM (&) (d) Liquidity risk (Continued)
2023 2022
gt £o¢F
EHANE FTER Exivied EHER
FiisE  EF-8h (BF Fzie -4 (85
Tl FEEX  BERE) Tl FKEX  BERE)
EE  contractual Withinone  In the second EHE contractual Withinone ~ Inthe second
Carrying  undiscounted yearor tofifth year Carrying  undiscounted yearor tofifth year
amount cashflow  ondemand inclusive amount cash flow on demand inclusive
Afn  A¥fn BEFn BETa | EBETr BETT BEFr BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKs'000 HKS000
L Liabilities
EfbERES Other creditors 9910 9910 9910 - 8,141 8,141 8,141 =
HEAR Leaseliabilites 586 600 288 M 833 864 264 600
SR Bank borrowings 855,570 865,771 666,320 199,451 692,594 704900 500,172 204728
866,066 876,281 676,518 199,763 701,568 713,905 508,577 205,328
2023 2022
£o57 47
EHANE F1ER Exivied E14R0
FiisE  EF-h (BF Riidg A (85
Ttl  FEEX  BERE) Tl FKEX  EERE)
FEE  contractual Withinone  Inthe second EHE contractual Withinone  Inthe second
Carrying  undiscounted yearor totenth year Carrying ~ undiscounted yearor totenth year
amount cashflow  ondemand inclusive amount cash flow on demand inclusive
(&31) (5) (E51) (&5)
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
BEFr  BEFx BEFT BEFT A¥Fr  AEFR B¥TT B
HKS000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
&g Bssets
FEEREEY Reinsurance contracts held 17,99 18,934 10,615 8319 12,664 13332 8829 43503
gE Liabilities
RENRRAY Insurance contracts issued 148,084 156,079 73,151 82,928 124,625 131,889 61,963 69,926
T

e
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{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(e) Financial risk management of associated
financial institution

The financial risks exposure and management
objectives and policies of the Group’s associated
financial institution, XIB Group, are summarised as
below:

(il  Overview

The activities of XIB Group expose it to a variety of
financial risks including credit risk, liquidity risk and
market risk (including foreign exchange risk, price
risk and interest rate risk). XIB Group continuously
identifies, evaluates and monitors these risks. XIB
Group’s aim is to achieve an appropriate balance
between risk and return and minimise potential
adverse effects on its financial performance.

The board of directors of XIB Group (“XIB Board”)
provides strategy for overall risk management.
Its senior management establishes related risk
management policies and procedures under the
strategy approved by the XIB Board, including written
policies covering specific areas, such as foreign
exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of
derivative financial instruments and non-derivative
financial instruments. Those risk management
policies and procedures are implemented by various
departments after XIB Board’s approval. In addition,
its Internal Audit Department is responsible for the
independent review of risk management and control
environment.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(e) Financial risk management of associated
financial institution (Continued)

(i}  Credit risk

Credit risk is one of the main risks that XIB Group faces
in its operations which arises primarily from loans
and advances, investment portfolios, trade finance,
guarantees and other payment acceptance.

The credit approval policies and procedures of
XIB Group are standardised. Credit rating, risk
measurement, economic capital, various post-lending
management, indicator control, collective assessment,
risk warning and risk reporting are measures for
managing credit risk.

liii]  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that XIB Group has to
ensure the availability of adequate funds to meet
its needs to funding deposit withdrawals and other
liabilities as they fall due, as well as being able to
meet its obligations to funding loan originations
and commitments and to take advantage of new
investment opportunities.

XIB Group has set up a series of liquidity indices to

assess and monitor its liquidity risk and reviewed such
indices on a timely basis.
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{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(e) Financial risk management of associated
financial institution (Continued)

[iv] Market risk

XIB Group’s market risk arises from open positions in
the trading book and banking book in interest rate,
foreign exchange rate, equities and commodities. The
trading book consists of financial instruments and
commodities that are free of any restrictive covenants
on their tradability and held with trading intent, and
in order to or for the purpose of hedging market risk
of the trading book. The banking book consists of
financial instruments not included in the trading book
(including those financial instruments purchased with
surplus funds and managed in the investment book).

XIB Group has established a structural system of limit
controls including regulatory limits, position limits
and risk limits to identify, monitor and control market
risk. XIB Group performs sensitivity analysis on a
regular basis to assess the interest rate risk and foreign
exchange risk of its trading book and banking book.

— Foreign exchange risk

XIB Group conducts the majority of its business
in Renminbi with other transactions in foreign
currencies, therefore XIB Group is exposed to the
fluctuations in the prevailing foreign exchange rates
on its financial position and cash flows. XIB Group
manages its exposure to foreign exchange risk through
management of its net foreign currency position.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors
(Continued)

(e) Financial risk management of associated
financial institution (Continued)

(ivl Market risk (Continued]

— Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that XIB Group’s assets,
liabilities, revenue and economic value would suffer
losses or have the risk of contingent losses due to
fluctuations of interest rates and changes of interest
rates structure. The re-pricing risk, the primary and
most common interest rate risk, arises from the
difference between maturity terms (for fixed interest
rates) or between the re-pricing terms (for floating
interest rates) of XIB Group's assets, liabilities and off
balance sheet commitments. Cash flow interest rate
risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates.

XIB Group mainly manages its exposure to the interest
rate risk arising from fluctuations in the prevailing
market interest rates on re-pricing, fair value and cash
flows. XIB Group controls its interest rate risk primarily
through controlling the distribution of the maturity
date or re-pricing date of loans and deposits and the
asset-liability re-pricing gap.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.2 Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders of
the Company and benefits for other stakeholders and
to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the
cost of capital.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided by
total net assets. Total borrowings comprise all bank
borrowings and loan from the controlling shareholder
as shown in the consolidated statement of financial
position. Total net assets comprise all components of
equity attributable to shareholders of the Company
as shown in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

During 2023, the Group’s strategy, which was
unchanged from 2022, was to maintain the gearing
ratio at a healthy level of 30% or below. In order to
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders
of the Company, issue new shares, raise new debt
financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

The gearing ratio of the Group at 31 December 2023

MEXRBEBELERAT : and 2022 were as follows:
2023 2022
BT T BT T
HKS’000 HKS$’000
BIER Total borrowings 855,570 692,594
BEFE Total net assets 8,069,450 8,261,389
BAREELR Gearing ratio 10.6% 8.4%

{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.2 Capital risk management (Continued)

(a) Capital risk management of Min Xin
Insurance

The capital requirements of Min Xin Insurance, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, are mainly
set and regulated by the Insurance Authority and these
requirements are put in place to ensure sufficient
solvency margins. Min Xin Insurance is required to
maintain the value of its assets to be greater than the
aggregate amount of its liabilities and the relevant
amount within the meaning of Section 10 of the
Insurance Ordinance. Min Xin Insurance is also required
to maintain assets in Hong Kong with an amount that is
not less than the aggregate of a prescribed percentage
of its liabilities arising from Hong Kong insurance
business and the relevant amount determined
in accordance with Section 25A of the Insurance
Ordinance.

In addition, the Macau Branch of Min Xin Insurance
is required by the Macau Insurance Ordinance to set
up technical reserves and to maintain a margin of
solvency sufficient to meet the liabilities arising from
its activities in Macau. The technical reserves shall
be guaranteed by equivalent and congruent assets
located in Macau, unless authorised by Autoridade
Monetdria De Macau to utilise overseas assets.

Min Xin Insurance also maintains a healthy capital
ratios in order to support its business objectives and
maximise shareholder’s value. Min Xin Insurance may
adjust the dividend paid to the Company or issue new
shares to the Company to fulfill these requirements.

Min Xin Insurance manages its capital requirements
by assessing any shortfalls between the reported
and required relevant amounts on a regular basis.
Min Xin Insurance fully complied with the externally
imposed requirements of the Insurance Authority and
Autoridade Monetaria De Macau during the reported
financial periods.
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{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.2 Capital risk management (Continued)

(b) Capital risk management of associated
financial institution

XIB Group’s objectives when managing capital are: (i)
to comply with the capital requirements set by the
regulators of the markets where the entities within
XIB Group operate; (ii) to safeguard the ability to
continue as a going concern so that it can continue to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders; and (iii) to maintain a strong capital base
to support the development of its business.

Capital adequacy and regulatory capital are monitored
by XIB Group’s management, employing techniques
based on the guidelines developed by NFRA for
supervisory purposes.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.3 Fair value of financial instruments

(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value

Fair value estimates are generally subjective in nature,
and are made as of a specific point in time based on
the characteristics of the financial instruments and
relevant market information. The Group measures fair
values using the following hierarchy of methods:

- Level 1: fair value measured using only
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical instruments at the measurement date.

- Level 2: fair value measured using inputs other
than quoted prices included within Level 1 that
are observable either directly (i.e., as prices) or
indirectly (i.e., derived from prices). This category
includes instruments valued using: quoted market
prices in active markets for similar instruments;
quoted prices for identical or similar instruments
in markets that are considered less than active; or
other valuation techniques where all significant
inputs are directly or indirectly observable from
market data.

- Level 3: fair value measured using inputs that
are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs). This category includes
all instruments where the valuation technique
includes inputs not based on observable data
and the unobservable inputs have a significant
effect on the instrument’s valuation. This
category includes instruments that are valued
based on quoted prices for similar instruments
where significant unobservable adjustments or
assumptions are required to reflect differences
between the instruments.
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EBPR2AA] Min Xin Holdings Limited

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.3 Fair value of financial instruments
(Continued)

(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value
(Continued)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets (such as listed equity securities measured at
FVPL and FVOCI) is based on quoted market prices at
the reporting date. The quoted market price used for
financial assets held by the Group is the current bid
price. These financial instruments are included in Level
1 of the fair value hierarchy.

The fair value of the subordinated additional Tier 1
capital securities held is measured at quoted price
provided by the security brokers. The Group adopted
the quoted prices as their fair value at the reporting
date and these financial instruments are included in
Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

The fair value of unlisted investment funds is measured
at quoted price provided by the fund administrators or
published by the fund management companies. Such
quoted prices represent the net asset value per share
of the investment funds which are derived from the fair
value of the underlying assets and securities measured
using value or price provided by independent verifiable
pricing sources. The Group adopted the quoted prices
of the funds as their fair value at the reporting date
and these financial instruments are included in Level 2
of the fair value hierarchy.

The fair value of fixed-term and principal-guaranteed
structured bank deposits placed with certain banks in
Mainland China were approximate to their respective
aggregate of principal plus expected interest income
at the reporting date and these financial instruments
are included in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

During the year there was no transfer of financial
instruments between Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair
value hierarchy, or transfer of financial instruments into
or out of Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. The Group'’s
policy is to recognise transfers between levels of fair
value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period in
which they occur.
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bz 2B 5 R PREIR (48) 4 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)
4.3 = TEARFE (8) 4.3 Fair value of financial instruments
(Continued)
(a) M2 FEINRNERTE (a) Financial instruments carried at fair value
(%8) (Continued)
TERRBBEBE=RDELENREHRBLREE The following table presents the carrying value
REUATEFENSHTAKREE - of financial instruments held by the Group at the
FHEHTENAFLEREERELRT reporting date measured at fair value across the three
B ATFEFEREENEIBIEND levels of the fair value hierarchy, with the fair value of
FEERBHE each financial instrument categorised in its entirety
based on the lowest level of input that is significant to
that fair value measurement:
2023 2022
-850 EoER #=54 BE  5Sh EI%R £2%R gk
Level1 Level2 Level 3 Total Level1 Level2 Level 3 Total
A¥Fr BT B%Tr BEFn | B¥Tr BEFT BT BETr
HKS000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
EEHNATEFE  Recurring fair value
measurement
gE Assets
RATEIAES  Financial assets at fair value
2ERENER through other comprehensive
ZE income 606,992 23,101 - 630,093 585,295 21,648 - 606,943
RATEFBERIE Financial assets at fair value
NERAE through profit or loss 281 626,162 - 626,443 24 741,836 - 742,080
607,273 649,263 - 1,256,536 585,539 763,484 - 1,349,023

(b) A FEIIKNSRMIA
AFE

BT EN S REEIRRERS
B (WE) RZEHK AT ENSRE
EOEmENEEFREEQFERS - ©
BEENAFERAREEUSRTA
ARNRAEMGHEFARRSHRE
ML AE

(b) Fair value of financial instruments carried
at other than fair value

The carrying value of financial assets at amortised cost
less impairment losses (if any) and financial liabilities at
amortised cost are estimated to approximate their fair
value. The fair value of financial liabilities is estimated
by discounting the future contractual cash flows at
the current market interest rate that is available to the
Group for similar financial instruments.
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4 RIBRKREIFERER (18)

4.3 2R T RAXLYE (&)

(b] AR FEIKNEHRTE
n¥a (&)

fAET M E S RIT BN - WRIFBE
REMEMEARETHE  BEERRH
BATHERGEMNERREMFNE
A o

EERRAEENTREELRSRAE
MAFEOEEFRERZHRENEE

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.3 Fair value of financial instruments
(Continued)

(b) Fair value of financial instruments carried
at other than fair value (Continued)

Estimates and judgement are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

In the Directors’ opinion, the fair values of financial
assets and financial liabilities of the Group approximate

F o their carrying values at the reporting date.
(c) ST AEfERIRIESaE (c) Categories of financial instruments and
lease liabilities
2023 2022
(&%)
(Restated)
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
SEEE Financial assets
BAFEFAEM Financial assets at fair value through
PHKENEHEE other comprehensive income 630,093 606,943
LA EFEBIEZRYIEE  Financial assets at fair value through
HeEmEE profit or loss 626,443 742,080
BEEXNATERN Financial assets at
SRIEE amortised cost 1,267,853 1,053,717
REBHEREETEN Financial liabilities at
cREE amortised cost 865,480 700,735
HEAE Lease liabilities 586 833
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nEERY

AEEZABRETERAKERIS
MEBLERRARRBIERE - BR
DEMFERROAIE2HBEN T —
HHER T EERAZRNDILER

AEBEERRAZBNER - DHiRE
XER FANRERREHRMmD
B HRNEXERMGANKRE @ FHE
LERRMERDERAERICXER
MBREXBERASERAENRERE
o HNREHR - ARERERRE
HERFHHEERS -

REEA THNEAZHD B

- TRR%: EREEAKERA
MEBHEARERERDHRN
PEARM - FERRFIEERT
X% ERPEAmEE NEE

- KRR EERBELARMN K
IRER A

- PERE: BERTEAMGKA
BERFE -

- RERE: BRELBEERENIR
MBERRR ([FEE])ABKRE
D RAMIE R KRR E R AR
fE5 e

AREBED : CEHERALS R
SERE S BHE D REED L - Ut
TRAEENRE D -

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

The Group identifies its operating segments based on
the reports reviewed internally by the chief operating
decision-makers which include the Board and the
General Manager Meeting that are used to make
strategic decisions, allocate resources and assess
performance.

The reports to the chief operating decision-makers are
analysed on the basis of business entities, investments
held and investees. For business entities and
investments held, operating performance evaluation
and resources allocation are based on individual
business activity operated and investment held by
the Group. For investees, operating performance
evaluation is based on individual investee of the
Group.

The Group has the following reportable operating
segments:

- Financial services: this segment includes the
engagement of banking business through the
Group’s major associate, XIB Group in Mainland
China, Hong Kong and Macau respectively, and
the provision of micro credit business in Mainland
China.

- Insurance: this segment includes the general
insurance business in Hong Kong and Macau.

- Property investment: this segment includes the
leasing of high quality office space in Mainland
China.

- Strategic investment: this segment includes
the investment in A-Shares of Huaneng Power
International, Inc. (“Huaneng”), high-tech
investments and subordinated capital securities
and bonds.

Corporate activities: corporate treasury and other
centralised functions which cannot be allocated
to each reporting segment. It is not a reportable
operating segment of the Group.
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SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Continued)

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Group’s chief operating decision-makers monitor
the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each
reportable segment on the following bases:

Revenues derived from customers, products and
services directly identifiable with individual segment
are reported directly under respective segments.
All direct costs incurred by different segments are
grouped under respective segments. Indirect costs
and support functions’ costs related to the strategic
decision making and day-to-day management of the
business of the Group and corporate activities that
cannot be reasonably allocated to segments, products
and services are grouped under “Corporate activities”.
Transactions between segments are priced based on
similar terms offered to or transacted with external
parties. Inter-segment income and expenses are
eliminated on consolidation.

Segment assets include all tangible and intangible
assets held by the business entities, net book value of
investments held and share of net assets of and loans
to investees (Note 18(b)). Segment liabilities include
insurance and reinsurance contract liabilities, creditors
and accruals, income tax payable and deferred tax
liabilities attributable to respective segments and
borrowings managed directly by the segments or
directly related to those segments. An asset and a
liability are grouped under same segment if the liability
is collateralised by the asset. Dividend payable to
shareholders of the Company is treated as unallocated
liabilities in reporting segment assets and liabilities.
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nopER (88) 5 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Continued)

=Eka&fE (&) (a) Segment results, assets and liabilities
(Continued)
ABEE
SREH Rk HERE RBRE NAEHEE Inter-segment gs
Financial services Insurance Propertyinvestment  Strategicinvestment  Corporate activities elimination Consolidated

pLE] U] pLE] Julj pLIE] U] 023 JUlj 023 m 023 m 023 nm
(&51) (&51)
(Restated) (Restated)

BENANALER

HREFUA
[RBA
HEBA
E2hA
REA
ARBA

po
=
o,

TERARNE
SN

g2\
£4(E8) /it - 5
RRERER
HEERRANNERTE
FRARRANAE
(88),/1
HEERRALE
K/ (%5)
e
T
HHEER

E2EA/ (ER)
AL
ElBE07RE

BRAEH/ (BR)
fERER/ (%)

KEREH/ (BR)

H2HA
RERREREH

BER| EETR| BEFL| BETT| BMTR| BT BMFA| BETL| BMTL| ERTT| BETr| ERTR| BAFi| BT
HRSO00 | HKSO0 | HKSOO | HKSUID)  HKSO00| KGO HRSO00| HKSO0|  HKSOOD | HKSOCO| HKSOOO | HKSUOD)  HKSO00| SO

Year ended 31 December

Revenue from external customers

Insurance revenue - - 190128 ) 1949% - - - - - - - -1 191128 ) 194998
Interest income 5,603 30 128 - - - 3,91 - - - - -1 08 38
Rentalincome - - 5,760 5760 13N ] - - - - - - 8132 9301
Dividend income - - 2,662 - - - - - - - - - 2,662 -
Distrbution income c = = = = = 1880 - @ - @ - 1,880 -
5,603 3820 200833 | 200758 23N 3l 5841 - = - = - 4649 20812

Intersegments - - m £ 284 % - - 3,188 3880 ()| (414) - -
Reportable segment revenue 5,603 3800 201606 201404 2,656 3840 5841 - 3,188 368 @) (414 4ed9| 2081
Other income 1541 80 9394 5280 n 1% - -loBa| uw - - U N
Operatingncome 7150 4680 211,000 | 206654 2133 4093 584 -1 6409|0750 (4)| (414 8888 | 20047
Other (losse)gais - net (13918) 3700 1807 %00 (3208 (5304) - - 8858 | (115%) - -0 (6AeN] (3
Insurance service expenses - -1 (183,007))  (180950)4 - = - = - = - -1 (183,007)f  (180950)
Net expenses rom reinsurance conracts held - -1 (16606)] (14897) - - - - - - - -1 (16606 (14897)
Finance (expenses)fincome from insurance contracts

issted - -0 e 48 - - - - - - - -1 (5565) 4856
Finance incomel{expenses) rom reinsurance

contracts held - - 261 (3204 - - - - - - - - 261 (30)

White back of impairment loss on
creqitmpaired loans to customers

and nterest receiveble 2845 6294 - - - - - - - - - - 2845 6294
Impairment loss on debt investments

atamortised cost = = (150) - - - - - - - - - (150) -
Adminitrative expenses (9] 9f (19805 (15209) (820) (812) - -1 81| (L) 4095 40%| (56,566 (47050
Operating profitloss) (5824) 148 1935 | 24) (28] ) s -0 )| (1374 (150) G20 £ S
finance costs - = (200) 47 - - - -0 s (215%) 184 B W36 (215%)
Share of reuls of asocites 05947 | 477664 - - - -1 (139) - - - -1 e8| el
Profit{loss) before taxation 60123 H0I07| TS| 0| (1298 (03 73| (13%)] W8] (527)) k] 91| 4049
Income tax credftexpense) (4497 (8s34)|  @s6a| (181 1646 1648 - -1 1531 (7789) - -1 e (1540
Proftloss) for the year 55626 48157 4813 19251 31 65 13| (139 essT| (43085 £l ) 39409 | 456969
Interest ncome 7040 459 10527 3919 - - 3% - on9s| e - S| M| 38
Depreciation and amortiseton for the year 214 ) 2837 1680 - - 984 9] (883 (1% 2182 1578
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5 NIBER (&) 5 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Continued)
(a) NEKE - EENRERB (18) (a) Segment results, assets and liabilities
(Continued)
s
SHEH B WERE RERE PEESYE) Inter-segment &4
Financial services Insurance Property investment ~~ Strategicinvestment  Corporate activities elimination Consolidated
03 m 03 m 03 m 03 m 03 202 203 2 03 22
(&) (&3))
(Restated) (Restated)
AR | BETr| BETR| BETr| BETR| BYTr| BETa| EEn| BETa| EETn| BETa| EEr| BEfa| AR
HKS'000 | HKSO00 |  HKS'000 |  HKSO00 |  HKS'000 | - HKSO00 |  HKS'000 |  HKSO00 |  HKS'000 |  HKSO00 |  HKS'000 |  HKSO00 |  HKS'000 | - HKSO00
A12831R At31 December
KRRRHERR The Company and subsidiaries 181,670 | 177053 | 490,793 | 441838 | 46614 | 49854 | 706,794 | 606943 | 1,318,852 | 1346863 | (2,004)|  (3964)| 2,742,629 | 2618587
RERENT Investments n assocates 6,411,292 | 6505079 - - - -| 08| 4509 - - - -| 6,442,096 | 6550270
4ag Total assets 6,592,962 | 6,682,132 490,793 | 441838 | 46,614 | 49854 | 737598 | 652,134 1,318,852 | 1346863 | (2,094)) (3964 9,184,725 | 9,168,857
KAARKBAT The Company and subsidiaries 1719 54303 | 172446 | 127595 | 14,694 | 16576 | 16,233 -| 8847|2868 |  (2,094)  (3.964) 1,115,275 | 907468
g Total liabilities 1719 54393 | 172446 | 127595 | 14694 | 16576 | 16,233 -| 884 | 12868 | (2,094)  (3.964) 1,115,275 | 907468
KEERTERIAT  Additions to non-current segment assets
iE during the year - - 18] 58 - - - - 125 107 -l BTes)| 1283 1419
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nEbER (18)
(b) thE&EH

TREINBERE ) AKBREINAELH
WA R (i) N PSR - s Skt
EREEE  REMELEERE QR
([HEESERBBE]) MR EF o
B RIZIRERE I E Y XER
B - FEEIFRBE EPTEHIR A
o WxE - HEERE BEREEE
AREENFREETRELED -
REWE N BRI ALEREHE S -

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Geographical information

The following table sets out the information about
the geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenues
from external customers and (ii) the Group’s property,
plant and equipment, right-of-use assets, investment
properties and investments in associates (“specified
non-current assets”). The geographical location of
customers is based on the location at which the
services were provided or the goods delivered. The
geographical location of the specified non-current

assets is based on the physical location of the assets,
in the case of property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets and investment properties and the location
of operations in the case of investments in associates.

E# REIRL B &4
Hong Kong Mainland China Macau Consolidated
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
(&51) (&71) (E71)
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)

BEFr | BEFT | BEFR | EETL | BETn | BETT | BRFR | BRTL
HKSO00 | HKSO00 | HKS000 | HKSOOO | HKSO00 | HKSOD0 | HKSO00 | HKSOOO

BZ12B318LEE  Yearended 31 December

SREEIMA Revenues from external customers 91,361 88,843 7975 7363 | 115313 11915 | 214649 | 208121
R12A31H At 31 December

AARRNEAT The Company and subsidiaries 135,750 133387 62,640 66,729 1,147 1440 | 199,537 201,55
REBENT Investments in associates = - | 644209 | 6550270 = - | 6442,09 | 6550270
FEFFBEE Specified non-current assets 135,750 133387 | 6,504,736 | 6616999 1147 1440 | 6,641,633 | 6751826
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6 RIBIRFEFES 6 INSURANCE SERVICE RESULT
2023 2022
BETFT B F T
HKS’000 HKS$’000
fRERUTA Insurance revenue 191,128 194,998
IR AR B Insurance service expenses (a) (163,007) (160,950)
RBEBRRE AN Net expenses from reinsurance
ERFE contracts held (16,606) (14,897)
R RFS S 4 Insurance service result 11,515 19,151
(a) RIBZIRFSER (a) Insurance service expenses
2023 2022
BETFT B F T
HK$’000 HK$’000
DEAREREMDEAH  Incurred claims and other incurred
R ARG E R insurance service expenses 58,800 49,082
BR ARG A &b Changes that related to past service
EREREEBENAR Adjustment to the LIC 6,916 16,776
ER PR AR 75 A B &b Changes that related to future service
EEE AN EERS Loss on onerous groups of contracts
Nz BB I o W o] and reversal of such losses 5,982 1,845
RiRBIBHREERE Insurance acquisition cash flows
3] Amortisation 91,309 93,247
163,007 160,950
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Hithir A 7 OTHER INCOME
2023 2022
BYTFT B TT
HK$’000 HKS$’000
TR EHA Interest income from bank deposits 33,599 31,463
T§Q$@5Lﬁmﬁu,ﬁ§ Dividend income from financial assets
NE@MEERIMA at fair value through profit or loss 299 484
BT fHRG Government grants 4 1,001
HAt Others 337 978
34,239 33,926
Hfthgsia — 358 8 OTHER LOSSES - NET
2023 2022
BYTFT B TT
HK$’000 HK$’000
WA EFHBIEZRYIEE  Netrealised and unrealised gains on
WEmEENE#R financial assets at fair value through
RAREIHES FEE (a) profit or loss (a) 16,575 17,737
HEREHR AT B Loss on disposal of debt investments
HMESRENER at amortised cost (10) -
HEWE  WRKRWE  (Losses)/gains on disposal of property, plant and
(E18) W= equipment (13) 2
— KB N EIRERWHEEE Loss on dilution of interest in an
K18 associate (15,724) _
KREMEEEHATE Fair value losses on revaluation of
Eia investment properties (1,013) (2,284)
bE H E518 )% 58 Net exchange losses (6,276) (27,689)
(6,461) (12,234)
(@) ‘:E%E BREKREAFEER (@ The amount included an interest income of

T@ SHERM S mEEMNF B I
AJE#5 16,849,000 7T (2022 4F : B

20,409,000 7T) °

or loss.

HK$16,849,000 (2022: HK$20,409,000) received
from financial assets at fair value through profit
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9 gxiafl

OPERATING PROFIT

2023 2022
BT BT T
HK$’000 HKS’000

BERFITET AR Operating profit is stated after crediting

THEIA - and charging the following:
FTA Crediting
HEWE #WEKEM  Gains on disposal of property, plant and

ek equipment = 2
BEMED WKW Rentals received and receivable from

e MKREEER investment properties less direct outgoings 7,348 8,510

— Bz WA - Rental income 8,132 9,301

— BEEEH — Direct outgoings (784) (791)
R Charging
BIRA  BIFEESEME  Staff costs, including directors’ emoluments 42,517 39,625
— Fd  EERIEAT - Salaries, allowances and bonus 41,075 38,058
— RIKIEFI A (b) — Retirement benefit costs (b) 1,442 1,567
ZEAT S Auditor’s remuneration 5,157 3,110
— EFE (a) — Provision for current year (a) 4,434 2,772
— A FEEEA D — underprovision in prior year 400 _
— IR T EFE — Interim agreed-upon procedures 323 338
YT M 8 Depreciation and amortisation 2,152 1,978
— Y HES R B - Property, plant and equipment 1,623 1,448
— HHE £ #1 R + #(FH1E - Leasehold lands and land use rights 280 281
—HEAZE R E — Properties leased for own use 249 249
ERB (:##£11(a)Gi)))  Management fee (Note 11(a)(iii)) 1,880 1,880
HEYE W KEHE  Losses on disposal of property, plant and

E518 equipment 13 =
b 5B SR Net exchange losses 6,276 27,689

@ BERRABSHGHRELERT17
AR S M BB RAEE R E
% o

{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

(@) Including services for the statutory audit of the
consolidated financial statements on adoption of

HKFRS 17.
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Exmnl (48)
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9 OPERATING PROFIT (Continued)

(b)

The Group contributed to a defined contribution
scheme (“DC Scheme”) which was available
to all eligible Hong Kong employees prior
to 30 November 2000. The assets of the DC
Scheme were held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund.
Contributions to the DC Scheme by the Group
and employees were calculated at 15% of the
employees’ basic salary until 30 November
2000 when the DC Scheme was replaced by
a mandatory provident fund scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) set up under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance.

The Group’s monthly contributions (mandatory
and voluntary) to the MPF Scheme for each
employee are calculated at the higher of 10% (or
6% for employees who joined after 30 September
2000) of the monthly basic salary and 5% of the
monthly total income, subject to a maximum
contribution of HK$2,000, HK$3,000 or HK$4,000
based on the internal grading system. The Group's
contributions to the MPF Scheme can be reduced
by the Group’s voluntary contributions forfeited
in relation to those employees who leave the MPF
Scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions.
At 31 December 2023 and 2022, there were no
material unutilised forfeited contributions.

For Mainland China employees, the Group
participates in the employee pension schemes
administered by the respective municipal
government in various locations in Mainland
China where the Group operates. The Group
makes monthly contributions calculated at
a percentage of the monthly payroll costs to
these schemes and the respective municipal
government undertakes to assume the retirement
benefit obligations of the employees of the
Group.

10 FINANCE COSTS

2023 2022

BT T BT

HK$’000 HKS$000

BITERFEXZ Interest expenses on bank loans 41,350 20,419
PERR AR 2R B FRAY Interest expenses on loan from

B H the controlling shareholder - 1,117

HEBENFEXZE Interest expenses on lease liabilities 16 22

41,366 21,558
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11 BROBASHERESRS 1
B2 eBAA L

SENIOR EXECUTIVES" EMOLUMENTS AND

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

(a) EFE (a) Directors’ emoluments
ERHEE ERHEERE
As director As management
e EE
RE MR
RENFS
Salaries,
housing
and other
EZHWE  allowances, 2023
Directors’  and benefits ®e ok
fees in kind Bonus Total
BETFT BETFT BETFT BETFT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T3k (£/E)  MrWang Fei (Chairman)’ - _ _ _
BRIE%4 (F/E)°  MrYan Zheng (Chairman)’ - - - _
BEXBLE Mr Huang Wensheng
(F1EE)° (Vice Chairman)’ 50 1,244 595 1,889
BN (B/Z/Z)" Mr Chen Jie (Vice Chairman)’ - - - _
BFELE Mr Chen Yu 60 1,539 595 2,194
EHMITES Non-executive Directors
BERELE Mr Hon Hau Chit 60 - - 60
BWELE Mr Yang Jingchao - - - -
BUFRTESR Independent Non-executive Directors
ERARE Mr Ip Kai Ming 250 - - 250
RXELE Mr Cheung Man Hoi 350 - - 350
PEINES £ Mr Leung Chong Shun 250 = = 250
1,020 2,783 1,190 4,993
7 MN2023F2A28ABEERERERNAITE 1 Appointed as the Chairman and an Executive Director on
= 28 February 2023
2 MR2023F2 A28 AR RHTES 2 Resigned as the Chairman and an Executive Director on
28 February 2023
3 202362 A28 ABEEREBIER RMIT 3 Appointed as the Vice Chairman and an Executive Director on
5F 28 February 2023
4 7202362 A28 HEHERIEFE RMITES 4 Resigned as the Vice Chairman and an Executive Director on

218 B{E&EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited
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11 BRTBEASMERAhERS
=8 @RIAL (18)

(a)

EEM= (48)

11

SENIOR EXECUTIVES EMOLUMENTS
AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(Continued)

(a)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

EREZ EREREE
As director As management
e FE
RH 28
REMME
Salaries,
) housing
X0 and other 2022
Directors’ allowances, and ®e ek
fees benefits in kind Bonus Total
BT BT BT BEFT
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
BRIES4E (£/)  MrYan Zheng (Chairman) - - - -
WA (B/Z/E)  MrChen Jie (Vice Chairman) - - _ _
RF L Mr Chen Yu 60 1,548 595 2,203
FaiTES Non-executive Directors
BERAL Mr Hon Hau Chit 60 . . 60
BEERAE Mr Yang Jingchao - - - N
BUFHTER Independent Non-executive Directors
ERBATE Mr Ip Kai Ming 250 - i, 250
RXGLE Mr Cheung Man Hoi 350 - - 350
REIESEE Mr Leung Chong Shun 250 - - 250
970 1,548 595 3,113

(i)

(i)

(iii)

ERES : RERBRERAR
AREMBARMESAEHD
ARTE T S A SRS BB

ERERRE : ZFHAEEHE
I AN ER [E 5 P 4 R A A AR A%
s Sk BN S

AARAERBREEINER
BAEK188E L (202F : B K
1888 L)  tERHBE —HER
MEREH—LEERS  BIER
HEEFARRESTESHNER -

(if)

(iii)

As director: The amounts represented
emoluments paid or payable for the services as a
director of the Company or its subsidiaries.

As management: The amounts represented
emoluments paid or payable for other services in
connection with the management of the affairs of
the Group.

An amount of HK$1.88 million (2022: HK$1.88
million) was paid to Vigour Fine, the controlling
shareholder of the Company, for the provision
of certain management services which include
the provision of directors to the Board of the
Company pursuant to a management agreement.
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ﬂ

(b) hE&mEHMEER AL

FRNAEEFHESHRAEREREREN
% (202F : —%) BEF - HHMNFSB
FIR L FEB@R - FREKR=F
(20224 : 1O4R) 3E$@ﬂ%$ﬁﬁﬂz
RENFHEESNEENTEHFS

(N

SENIOR EXECUTIVES EMOLUMENTS
AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid employees of the Group for
the year included two (2022: one) Directors, details
of whose remuneration are set out in note (a) above.
Details of the remuneration for the year of the
remaining three (2022: four) highest paid employees

T who are neither a Director nor chief executive of the
Company are as follows:

2023 2022

BT T BT T

HKS’000 HKS$'000

FE - BENMEMERL  Salaries, housing and other allowances,

AR EDH = and benefits in kind 3,159 5,256
BINEFET SR Contributions to retirement benefit scheme 96 926
Re Bonus 2,530 5,370

5,785 10,722

< &5 2 Emoluments Band 2023 2022

AE A

Number of Number of

Individuals Individuals

755 1,500,001 7T — /8% 2,000,000 7t  HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 2 2

75 # 2,000,001 7T — ¥ 2,500,0007T  HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000 1 -

78% 2,500,001 7T — /8% 3,000,000 7L  HK$2,500,001 - HK$3,000,000 - 1

75 #5 4,000,001 7T — 7B 4,500,000 7T  HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000 = 1
(c)] SHREEBAS (c) Senior management

BN TARRSREEAENHCEE

Details of the emoluments payable to senior

ERCEUNNE management of the Company by band are as follows:
i< &5 & Emoluments Band 2023 2022
AE AZ
Number of Number of
Individuals Individuals
751,500,001 7T — 7% 2,000,000 7T  HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 3 2
B2 000,001 7T — 7% 2,500,000 7T  HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000 1 -
B 4,000,001 7T — 7B %5 4,500,000 7T  HK$4,000,001 - HK$4,500,000 = 1

220 B{E&EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated

income statement represents:

2023 2022
BT BT T
HK$’000 HKS’000
EHHE Current tax
BENER Hong Kong profits tax 402 359
AR A EE TS FR Mainland China corporate income tax 6,300 7,920
R A TEIEFTSFi (@)  Mainland China withholding tax (a) (17,476) 17,763
RPN IR Macau taxation 2,960 2,112
(7,814) 28,154
AIEERE Adjustment in respect of prior years
AR A b 1 FE TS AR Mainland China corporate income tax - (177)
JRFIFRIE Macau taxation 7 -
7 (177)
ERET IR Deferred tax
ERZEENEER Relating to the origination and reversal
#2 o] of temporary differences | (1,841, (12,487)
Frast (&) X Income tax (credit)/expense (9,648) 15,490

(a)

R2012F 128 ESfBHBERE
ERREH ARMDERRAF - K
02FF  ASBEREGERE
AALE 20081 A1 BERNADE
FEARE2090E THAENTE
REFBHROARE 20038 T (5
B BE26038TT) e FR - &
EEBMBERNER  AEEE
FEEEXNEAREBERHEER
ML FiENTERAEHELOA
R¥ 2,093 87t (5E4E% 2,300
BT e

EBFER TR BEAN G ERT R
2 Rl /A A% F) 15 5 B 2R 8.25% K% 16.5%
(20224 : 8.25% K 16.5%) IR HEM o

(a)

XIB was transformed from a limited liability
company to a joint-stock limited company in
December 2012. The Group had recognised
a withholding tax payable of approximately
RMB20.93 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$26.03 million) in 2012 for the Group’s share
of the capitalisation of XIB’s retained profits
after 1 January 2008 of RMB209 million. During
the year, after considering the advice from a tax
specialist, the Group believed that they have no
further obligation to pay and have sufficient and
reasonable ground to reverse the withholding
tax payable of approximately RMB20.93 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$23 million).

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate
of 8.25% and 16.5% respectively under the Two-tiered
Rates of Profits Tax (2022: 8.25% and 16.5%) on the
estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong
during the year.
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12 PrEfiszih (£8)

AR A (D S RIS R D IR R NG AT FE
AN BT 1S BB 4K T R 25% (2022 4F : 25%)
ATE o

AR B A B AR SZ B BT B R B IS B R
IR B - AEBEAES RIFKRBMA
F5% K2 10% 8040 B A b TR IR FT 1S 8% o

R P9 ) B B K AR R 4 A fh e R AR A
FISRHORFIRIRITIR R HE o

BIAX B E S ML E AR XA EN
TIAET B -

12

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Mainland China corporate income tax has been
calculated at the rate of 25% (2022: 25%) on the
estimated taxable profits for the year.

Mainland China withholding tax is levied at 5% and
10% on dividend income received from subsidiaries
and investees incorporated in Mainland China
respectively when these subsidiaries and investees
declared dividend.

Taxation on Macau profits has been calculated on the
estimated taxable profits for the year at the rates of
taxation prevailing in Macau.

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting
profit at applicable tax rates:

2023 2022
(&%)
(restated)
BT T BB F T
HK$’000 HK$’000
BR 15 A1 4 A Profit before taxation 29,761 472,459
$16.5% (2022 4F : 16.5%) Tax at the domestic income tax rate of
F = 1t P 1S A5 R EFS 16.5% (2022: 16.5%) 4,911 77,956
FE(LE = N R EER Tax effect of share of results of
M8 associates (8,542) (70,051)
E A @ Effect of different tax rates
TR ERE in other jurisdictions (265) 3,057
o B A TR IR AT S FR Mainland China withholding tax (17,476) =
AR AU A Income not subject to taxation (4,063) (3,865)
MRS Expenses not deductible for
taxation purposes 10,808 10,955
RERTRIEMNMEHTZE Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 7,482 5,336
1 FALART R FE R BB 18 Utilisation of previously unrecognised
tax losses - (3,217)
IS Adjustment in respect of prior years 7 (177)
BEREEHR Income tax at concessionary rate (165) (165)
HAtb Others (2,345) (4,339)
FER (Ke) Y H Income tax (credit)/expense (9,648) 15,490

{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited
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iR2 13 DIVIDEND
2023 2022
BEFT EF T
HK$’000 HKS$’000
N2 BERAHME Final dividend proposed after the
FRRBE 9L reporting date of 9 HK cents
(20224 : E¥121L) (2022: 12 HK cents) per share 53,753 71,671

REmMBABBIRANKR S ERARLGLE B
HHREARNINEEE  HHREZE2024
F12A31BIEFEFERE T DA ©

=1l

FRERAZNEIRIKEE E2023F12
A31 8 It FEAR AR EEMN S
#3,940.9% 7T (2022 4F : 75 % 45,696.9
B KEY) RFAEEITRMD
B N #E F 15 $0597,257,252 (2022 £
597,257,252) %t & o

AEBAFEREFEHEDHTAS
SBEINBD - AR EEFENER
BERNEgRERBNER -

14

The dividend proposed after the reporting date has
not been recognised as a liability in these consolidated
financial statements, but will be reflected as an
appropriation of retained profits for the year ending
31 December 2024.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to shareholders of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2023 of HK$39,409,000
(2022: HK$456,969,000, as restated) and the weighted
average of 597,257,252 (2022: 597,257,252) shares in
issue during the year.

The Group has no dilutive potential shares in issue
during the current year and prior year and therefore
diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings
per share for the years presented.

—Z— =F4F3R Annual Report 2023

223



fm O BT IR ¥R RS
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15 ¥13% - igE8s N aR 15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

B £
WEER
ElRE
B Furniture,
BRET EREM  fixtures, office hat:d
Buildings held Computer and computer Motor am
for own use Software equipment vehicles Total
BETT BT BT BETT BETFT
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
20251710 At 1 January 2022
KA Cost 21,358 2,850 6,811 2,684 33,703
ZEERAA Accumulated depreciation and
B impairment losses (9,149) (2,850) (4,612) (2,243) (18,854)
REFE Net book value 12,209 - 2,199 441 14,849
BZ202%51283181EEE  Yearended 31 December 2022
HREFE Opening net book value 12,209 - 2,199 441 14,849
EREE Translation differences (277) - (3) = (280)
#5 Additions - - 1479 - 1479
AEEME Charge for the year (640) = (720) (88) (1,448)
HE Disposals - - (14) = (14)
HRREFAE Closing net book value 11,292 = 2,941 353 14,586
R202F12A318 Kk At 31 December 2022 and
202351818 1 January 2023
XA Cost 21,021 2,850 8,206 2,583 34,660
ZEMERAE Accumulated depreciation and
BB impairment losses (9,729) (2,850) (5,265) (2,230) (20,074)
REFE Net book value 11,292 - 2,941 353 14,586

{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited
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15 5 - 133Nkl (78) 15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)
B ®6-
BEER
BiRfE
5 Furniture,
BRgT BB fixtures, office e
Buildings held Computer and computer Motor okl
for own use Software equipment vehicles Total
BEFT BEFT BEFT BETFT BETFT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
H22023%F12A31HLFEE  Yearended 31 December 2023
BOEEFE Opening net book value 11,292 = 2,941 353 14,586
EHZE Translation differences (93) - (1) - (94)
1R Additions - - 245 1,008 1,253
AEERE Charge for the year (629) = (906) (88) (1,623)
e Disposals - - (13) - (13)
HREREFE Closing net book value 10,570 = 2,266 1,273 14,109
®2023512A31R At 31 December 2023
KA Cost 20,901 2,850 8,309 3,556 35,616
ZETERAA Accumulated depreciation and
B impairment losses (10,331) (2,850) (6,043) (2,283) (21,507)
REFE Net book value 10,570 - 2,266 1,273 14,109
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16 FHIES=E 16 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
HELTHR
= it 55 FA A HEA
Leasehold BRANYE
lands and Properties
land use leased g
rights  for own use Total
BT T BT T BETF T
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
R2022E1 418 At 1 January 2022 13,142 1,016 14,158
NG Y Charge for the year (281) (249) (530)
72022412 A31 B & At 31 December 2022 and
202341 A 1H 1 January 2023 12,861 767 13,628
NEFHEH Charge for the year (280) (249) (529)
A2023%512831H At 31 December 2023 12,581 518 13,099

REBRERRBRFEAFHELD o

FRANHEERSRLBEAEBE 268TT
(20224 : B 2587T) °

R2023F12A31H EHRHEEARE
EM o BT (20224 - B¥E3IETT) &
IR REEEE K528 T (2022
F:8%778L) BLEBAAREHEE
BEMERES 2N HEHRTEGR
INERRL - HEBETSAEERIE
R o

AEEEHOTRERILEEE B
SAREEELETERANEEANURK
[REMRESESHERE - AWK
BEERARRAKEITE MRS
BEVHEAITEE ©

AEBENHEER A HETHE - 7
NBIEMEE NEITER IBEE -

BEAN - AR B AT (S AT AR I #8
BABRLEEREHXRENBERNE(LEE
BRAIA AT N E1TEA LB RE
FALEZFHE M (20226 « £]) o

{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

The Group did not enter into any new lease during the
year.

Total cash outflow for leases was HK$0.26 million (2022:
HK$0.25 million) during the year.

Lease liabilities of HK$0.59 million (2022: HK$0.83
million) were recognised with related right-of-use
assets of HK$0.52 million (2022: HK$0.77 million) at 31
December 2023. The lease agreement did not impose
any covenants other than the security interests in the
leased assets that are held by the lessors. Leased assets
may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

The Group has termination option in the lease which
is used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of
managing the assets used in the Group’s operations.
The termination option held is exercisable only by the
Group and not by the respective lessor.

The Group has assessed at lease commencement
date that it is reasonably certain not to exercise the
termination option.

In addition, the Group reassesses whether it is
reasonably certain not to exercise the termination
option, upon the occurrence of either a significant
event or a significant change in circumstances that is
within the control of the lessee. During the year, there
was no such triggering event (2022: Nil).
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16 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

fn OBl R R R eERE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(@) The net book value of leasehold lands and land

BEofmwT : use rights are analysed as follows:
2023 2022
BYTFT BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
EEBHBEMELD Leases held in Hong Kong
50F A Over 50 years 3,371 3,374
10F & 504 Between 10 and 50 years 9,210 9,487
12,581 12,861
L >R
g 7\
RAMR 17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
2023 2022
B FT BT T
HK$’000 HKS'000
~TEE At fair value
®m1A1H At 1 January 173,342 175,626
NFEEEE Fair value losses (1,013) (2,284)
MW12A318 At 31 December 172,329 173,342

AEENREYEEREED T

The Group’s interests in investment properties at their

o carrying amounts are analysed as follows:
2023 2022
EBEFT BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
EEBRFEMEY Leases held in Hong Kong
10FE504F Between 10 and 50 years 120,000 117,600
EEBUAIMNFERL Leases held outside Hong Kong
10F£504F Between 10 and 50 years 52,329 55,742
172,329 173,342

—RWBRRIFANAFES 12,000
BT (20224F : E¥ 11,7608 7T) (LD
BB —HEREMENERZHHRR

BEEDEE

VATE

BEERENERH

MIE ° REREEE RN 2 B REUHHK
AREBEMENEEROIAERENR

T W EERL

REERR -

The title deeds in respect of an investment property in
Hong Kong with a fair value of HK$120 million (2022:
HKS$117.6 million) held by a subsidiary are placed in
the custody of the Insurance Authority pursuant to the
relevant regulatory requirements. The requirement to
place in the custody of the Insurance Authority the
title deeds in respect of that investment property was
rescinded after the reporting date and the title deeds

were returned to Min Xin Insurance.
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17 &M= (18)

(a) NFERIE

TREJNAEBFENREYERLER
HEEA SN 2023F12 A31 BT
B WREREBYERELELF 135
[AEEFE] FTEEN=RAFEERE
(¥ 430) nE - A FEFEDEN
ERIH2EGE R AT AN B
MNEDHERET -

17

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(a) Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of
investment properties held by the Group measured at
31 December 2023 on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy (Note 4.3(a))
as defined in HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement. The
level into which a fair value measurement is classified
is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technique.

2023 2022
BT T BB F T
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEMHHNDFEFE Recurring fair value measurement
E=ZZER Level 3
AR B A 3D Mainland China
[EEXZES Commercial properties 45,119 48,215
EFEME Residential properties 5,715 5,920
BAL Car parks 1,495 1,607
52,329 55,742
BB Hong Kong
[HEXZES Commercial properties 120,000 117,600
172,329 173,342

AEBEFERAFEINRNABEREY
EERARFERBNE=FHTE -

FRILER R FHERE

E=FRNE

%o AEEHBRARELEENE R
HIRER N FERBESSLMENES -

228 B{E&EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

All the investment properties carried at fair value held
by the Group were measured using Level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy. During the year there was no transfer
into or out of Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. The
Group's policy is to recognise transfers between levels
of fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting

period in which they occur.
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17 &R&EWE (18)

(b) AFERBRE=SFHER

WEYHERBTIBETGHE - F—KF
BENTHEREXEEBER AR @ 1%
2023F 12 AMHM A FEEEEMR -
AEBEAB BETHEMFTHRRSF
EE2HFENGHERSEERHELER - KE
VISR B EETHANE — K&
B KRB XEER AR A BB HT T
BARA RN 2022 FEITEHGE -

R BIA I EEE KRB AT
BERABRABETEEEE - ERIEHAZ
EReaxEMNA - ERAEFEFRNEER
TR BIRBIEL R A (\AEDENE
AAL BN F425[E £45F (20224 -
425 BF458)  miFAHEENTEF
FARARES2TTE AR 76T (2022
F: AREs2TE AR 767T) K Aii)
B MERERA28E (20224 : 2.8
E) mHEAREABEMARKG630T
(2022F : AR¥6307T) - X FEFE
HEMNMLERERLEE  EmEAHES
SRR -

R2023412A31H » (AR E A A
FEMERNRAFERBBRAENLEE
F o BEREAReMRENTEHE -
FERMETENNEZETAEREEA
EREEISERMBABEEFEF K
ARB29TT - AFEFEEERNMLRKRE
RREE - Bmis S 2 ELBEE -
72022512 A31 B AFE AT
GLHEAET - WREM LY EAH
MEFEHREEER  URAEENY
5 B A] L B E L BRI A A E R 2= R R
NERESERREXTENAE - &
RAmEFER - TEEN TR EREUE
WHREE -

17

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(b) Information about Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy

The investment properties were revalued based on
their fair values at 31 December 2023 by independent
professional valuer, namely Savills Valuation and
Professional Services Limited. The Group has discussed
with the independent professional valuer on the
valuation assumptions and valuation results at each
annual reporting date. The investment properties were
revalued by independent professional valuers, namely
Savills Valuation and Professional Services Limited and
Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited in 2022.

The fair values of commercial properties and car parks
located in Mainland China were determined by income
capitalisation approach. The current use is the highest
and best use. The significant unobservable inputs
applied in valuation measurement are (i) capitalisation
rates ranging from 4.25% to 4.5% (2022: 4.25% to
4.5%) and monthly market rental ranging from RMB52
to RMB76 (2022: RMB52 to RMB76) per square meter
for commercial properties and (ii) capitalisation
rate of 2.8% (2022: 2.8%) and monthly market rental
of RMB630 (2022: RMB630) per unit for car parks
respectively. The fair value measurement is negatively
correlated to the capitalisation rate and positively
correlated to the monthly market rental.

As at 31 December 2023, the fair value of residential
properties located in Mainland China was determined
by income capitalisation approach. The current use is
the highest and best use. The significant unobservable
inputs applied in valuation measurement are
capitalisation rate of 1.5% and monthly market rental of
RMB29 per square meter. The fair value measurement
is negatively correlated to the capitalisation rate and
positively correlated to the monthly market rental. As
at 31 December 2022, the fair value was determined by
market comparison approach with reference to recent
sales price per square meter of comparable properties,
adjusted for a premium or a discount specific to
the factors such as the location and quality of the
Group's properties while compared to the comparable
properties. The unobservable input for discount
applied in valuation measurement was immaterial.
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17 &M= (18)

(b) NAFERBRE=SFHER

(&)

M2023F 124318 MR EBHNREE
MER N FEFEABRAEREEE
ERFERAReSMRENTHHE E
AHEETERNEERABREES
ERMEESERMZABREEFEFRE
¥334L e RTFEFEHEARALLEXE
REEFE - BEmigAHES2ERERE -
72022512 A31 B AFE AT
BLHEAET  WREMLRYELH
MNEFFREEER  URAEENY
¥HEAERYELEBENFETEEZ (5
MR AKEEERE) EHREXITENT
Bo fZERPA  ATFEBE - BAR
HEFER  TEENEETTEHEY
BHAE10% -

{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

17

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(b) Information about Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy (Continued)

As at 31 December 2023, the fair value of commercial
properties located in Hong Kong was determined by
income capitalisation approach. The current use is the
highest and best use. The significant unobservable
inputs applied in valuation measurement are
capitalisation rate of 5% and monthly market rental of
HK$33.4 per square feet. The fair value measurement
is negatively correlated to the capitalisation rate and
positively correlated to the monthly market rental. As
at 31 December 2022, the fair value was determined by
market comparison approach with reference to recent
sales price per square feet of comparable properties,
adjusted for a premium or a discount specific to the
factors such as the larger floor area of the Group'’s
properties while compared to the comparable
properties. Larger discount will result in a lower fair
value measurement. The significant unobservable
input for discount applied in valuation measurement
was approximately 10%.
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17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued]

(b)) "FEFERBE=FHEN (b) Information about Level 3 of the fair value
(...g) hierarchy (Continued)
FARNZEANTFERBE=SHNEE The movements in the balance of Level 3 of the fair
EP NN value hierarchy during the year are as follows:
2023 2022
wENE  fThE mENE  HENE
Commercial ~Residential Efy B%  Commercial  Residential Efi it
properties properties  Car parks Total properties  properties  Carparks Total
BETT  EETT  BEFT BETL | BEEr BEFr BRI BEEn
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
MA1H At 1 January 165,815 5920 1,607 173,382 167413 6,500 1713 175,626
NEER Fair value losses (696) (205) (112) (1,013 (1,59) (580) (106) (2,284)
R12A318 At 31December 165,119 5715 1,495 172,329 165,815 5,920 1,607 173,342
ERNABRRN Total unrealised fair value losses
[AER - 8 for the year recognised in
RERRER the consolidated income statement
Nl as part of “Other losses - net” (696) (205) (112) (1,013 (1,59) (580) (106) (2,284)
/N 18 ASSOCIATES
2023 2022
BEF T BT
HK$’000 HKS’000
& AN Cost of investment 972,776 972,776
B emRf & Share of post-acquisition profits and
HEah 2w - other comprehensive income,
kR B WAL B net of dividend received 5,871,987 5,805,596
B 5, A & Exchange adjustments (413,384) (238,819)
EREEFEE Share of net assets 6,431,379 6,539,553
ERF—KEt2/AR](b) Loan to an associate (b) 10,717 10,717
M12H831H At 31 December 6,442,096 6,550,270
.
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EIEES

18 ASSOCIATES (Continued)

BIRERE DM (@) The Group's investments in associates are

™ analysed below:
EREH Hit HE
XIB Group Others Total
BT T BT BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
R202%1818 At 1 January 2022 6,725,205 53,212 6,778,417
PE N =% Translation differences (425,142) (2,119) (427,261)
FEERR TR &% R,/ (E518) Share of profit/(loss) after taxation 477,664 (1,393) 476,271
R ) Profit before taxation 470,608 122 470,730
FiEBiEe,/ (XH) Income tax credit/(expense) 7,056 (1,515) 5,541
BER/DIKEE Dividends declared/paid (177,635) (4,527) (182,162)
N EFES (FJ{ER)  Decrease in fair value reserve
o (recycling) (107,005) - (107,005)
NEERFES (FAIfER) Increase in fair value reserve
N (non-recycling) 12,032 18 12,050
BRLBITERES Issuance expenses of capital
oE=9z8 securities capitalised (40) = (40)
72022912 A31 B At 31 December 2022 and
202351 A1H 1 January 2023 6,505,079 45,191 6,550,270
fEN =58 Translation differences (178,551) (559) (179,110)
FE(RG TSR Share of profit after taxation 65,947 1,541 67,488
BEA (ER) %5 (Loss)/profit before taxation (114,117) 1,682 (112,435)
FisRiiEe,/ () Income tax credit/(expense) 180,064 (141) 179,923
B9k E Dividends paid (44,966) (15,393) (60,359)
NEEFES (FJfER)  Increase in fair value reserve
=0 (recycling) 76,180 = 76,180
NEEEES (RAEE) Increase in fair value reserve
pp | (non-recycling) (4,180) 24 (4,156)
BEkn Dilution of interest
WFAEBRRNMER 2 Loss on dilution recognised in
B consolidated income statement (15,724) = (15,724)
feNEMEEEE R Release of exchange translation
NTERES reserve and fair value reserve
(P]fE3R) ¥ (recycling) 7,507 - 7,507
$2023F12H31H8 At 31 December 2023 6,411,292 30,804 6,442,096
(b) LERAAREHZEE RGN (b) The loan represented the Group’s investments in

()

RE THRERAW RERE
BREERRE

REBE T IE R 575 6 B N 17 R
TERREECREE  HER
REFEEReMBITET (B
25)

EBPR2AA] Min Xin Holdings Limited

that associate and was unsecured, interest free
and had no fixed repayment terms.

(c) Bank deposits placed by the Group with
associated financial institutions in the normal
course of business are included in cash and bank
balances (Note 25).
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18 B=22,8 (18)

(d)

ERR2023F3ATKAE =

BOTHBROBERERA ([EE
BARL)  UBARRATHEER
B A% #E H 49 8.8543% 1% #E E & 4
8.689% ° 7N £ B (A Ith R F N 15
—RAEBEEENEE155728
T MR A EEE £ 2022F
12A31BIENEEZEETHE
R EIRE E2022F12A31H
IEREEZERE B ER (KRR
NREAREBOEETEEK) 578 o
N5 B[R] B 5 T 6RO IR A A E
EH8689% EMMEATERES
ThafEEe  BEAREBESRAT
EBEfFES (TAER) & XOEK
2998 BT ERAREREGH

AR REE R EAIE BB 1% -
B &k B P75 = 4R 4 8.689% X 1
MEREEREN L URAER
BERNERIER  AARHE
BEHRNEERN KR EER
RITFEERTEN - Bt AR
ARABERBEEHRYBEEERD
AN E AR MEMBERKY
ERGERELRBEEYEREE
BIAEZS SFHEANER ©

18 ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(d)

XIB completed the issuance of new shares to third
parties to enlarge its share capital in March 2023
(the “Capital Contribution”), which resulted in the
dilution of the Company’s shareholding in XIB
from approximately 8.8543% to approximately
8.689%. Accordingly, the Group recorded an one-
off loss on dilution of approximately HK$15.72
million during the year based on the audited
consolidated financial information of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2022 and the
audited consolidated financial information of XIB
for the year ended 31 December 2022 as adjusted
to conform with the Group’s accounting policies.
The Group also transferred directly to retained
profits in total of approximately HK$29.98 million
from statutory reserve, general reserve, capital
reserve and fair value reserve (non-recycling)
attributable to the dilution of the shareholding in
XIB to approximately 8.689%.

The Company had evaluated the applicable
accounting treatment in respect of its
approximately 8.689% shareholding in XIB after
the completion of the Capital Contribution and
considered that the Company will continue to
have the ability to exercise significant influence
over the financial and operating policy decisions
of XIB in accordance with the terms of the
constitutional documents of XIB. Accordingly,
the Company considered that XIB will continue
to be classified as an associate of the Company
and the Company’s interest in XIB will continue
to be accounted for using the equity method in
accordance with the HKFRSs.
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18 B=2,8 (18)

18 ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(&) UTHERBIER2022F12 A 31
HX 2023412 A31 HEAREERK
¥EREEAEATENHEN

(e)

The following list contains the particulars of
those associates at 31 December 2023 and 2022
which principally affected the results or assets

Ale WEEBRBE2HHYAIELTA of the Group. All of these entities are unlisted
AN ARG EARR - corporates and are accounted for using equity
method.
aRREENY ]
Place of ‘ ERTRARRAHE
incorporation IEEH Particulars of issued REANENER
BEnasR Name of associates and operations  Principal activities and paid up capital Group's effective interest
2023 2022 2023 2022
BER Directly held
EFEBRTRAERAT - XamenintemationalBankCo, Ltd, — AREARKME  BARKAER | 15496688 | 138249k 8.689% 8.8543%
RERELA and its subsidiaries (AR (ARE
154.966f87) | 1382492 7T)
The People's Banking and 15,496.6 13,8249
Republic of China investment | million shares |  million shares
holding | (RMB15,496.6 (RMB13,824.9
million) million)
BEEEHAIRAERDA LusoIntenational Banking Ltd. i #11 2615ER 261 B 8K 4.2611% 43421%
(e | (e
2%.1%E7%) %.1E7)
Macau Banking 2,61 million 261 million
shares shares
(MOP2,610 (MOP2,610
million) million)
SRBAERDA Chiyu Banking Corporation Ltd. B BT | neMER | 2184ER 6.0501% 6.1652%
(8% (2%
6577878 ) | 657787 )
Hong Kong Banking 2,218.24 221824
million shares | million shares
(HK$6,577.87 (HKS6,577.87
million) million)
ERERRERRAA Yiamen International Investment &A RERR | 641953ER | 6419536 8.689% 8.8543%
Limited (e (%
64.1953E7) | 6419537
Hong Kong Investment 6,419.53 6,419.53
holding | millionshares | million shares
(HK$6,419.53 (HKS6,419.53
million) million)
B&iE Indirectly held
BEEBREARAT Min Faith Investments Limited” &k ALK 100 1007 40% 40%
(E%100m) | (B¥1007)
Hong Kong Investment 100 shares 100 shares
holding (HK$100) (HK$100)
(1) WHERRWIERES -SRI BX - B (1) This associate is not audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.

15 LB

PE A

AR & B E MR AR 4

234

IHARSKELRE HBTER 3.9% & -0.3% °

{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

Both the aggregate net assets and profit before taxation
attributable to this associate represent approximately 3.9%
and -0.3% respectively of the Group’s consolidated totals.
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(f) EERBERRATEERBE (B
SERMNSFTEERS - LK
HSAVBBRERNERESER) #
BWR :

(f)

18 ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Summarised financial information of the
material associate prepared in accordance with
the accounting policies adopted by the Group
and reconciled to the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements is disclosed
below:

ERER
XIB Group
2023 2022
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HKS’000
BE AR THIREAR Gross amount of the associate’s
BE Assets 1,231,341,064 | 1,231,582,549
& Liabilities (1,136,514,367) | (1,134,062,855)
FEFERR M 2 Non-controlling interests (21,277,706)|  (24,231,318)
PR (R Equity attributable to shareholders 73,548,991 73,288,376
i 8. (0) Dividends (i)
2019 FRERAE B Final dividend for 2019 (1,698,775) (1,749,552)
2020 FRAAAR S Final dividend for 2020 (496,026) (510,852)
2021 FARAAR B Final dividend for 2021 (935,817) (963,789)
(3,130,618) (3,224,193)
WG ERA S8HEEFE Net assets after dividend proposed 70,418,373 70,064,183
WA 4858 Total revenues 46,604,858 45,185,881
SR E TR T Profit from continuing operations 758,963 5,394,714
Hip2mElas Other comprehensive income 986,431 (117,766)
EEREEEE Total comprehensive income 1,745,394 5,276,948
HIRZAEER Reconciled to the Group’s interest
BE QT NER in the associate
HIFREE & A R #ERAR S 12 Net assets after dividend proposed
VEEFE by the associate 70,418,373 70,064,183
REENG R ER Group's effective interest 8.689% 8.8543%
EhHEEFE Share of net assets 6,118,652 6,203,692
& 8 Dividends
2019 FREAMR B Final dividend for 2019 165,860 170,818
2020 FARHRR & Final dividend for 2020 43,920 45,232
2021 FARAAR B Final dividend for 2021 82,860 85,337
LA TS HRER A Carrying amount in the consolidated
BREE financial statements 6,411,292 6,505,079
(i) ZEHREAEE 2019F ~ 2020F & 2021 F (i) These amounts represented the proposed dividends for the

12ANBLEFENRERSE  HEERS
REETELREMEETRMIE - AQ
AIE R ERURE 2022 F RIS o

years ended 31 December 2019, 2020 and 2021 that were
subject to approval from the National Financial Regulatory
Administration Xiamen Office. The Company has received the
final dividend for 2022 during the year.
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18 ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(9) W3IEERIE R E N F K ER () Aggregate information of associates that are not
ERBFENT individually material is disclosed below:
2023 2022
BETFT B F T
HKS’000 HKS$'000
NS BGHAXANIIE  Aggregate carrying amount of individually
&1 51 E2 K Ay B 2 /A =] immaterial associates in the consolidated
RIBREE4E%E financial statements 30,804 45,191
REBEGZER S AT Aggregate amount of the Group’s share
Ty &IELERR of those associates’
SIB SIS TS Profit/(loss) from continuing
wAl (E18) operations 1,541 (1,393)
Hib 2 E = Other comprehensive income (535) (2,101)
FHEKEARE Total comprehensive income 1,006 (3,494)

19 BRAFESTAEMEBRRZE 19 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
ETHEE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME
2023 2022
BT T JBEMEF T
HKS’000 HK$'000
®1B1A At 1 January 606,943 805,914
1885 Addition 33,538 23,594
RAFERES (] Fair value losses recognised in
fER) RO ATE fair value reserve
B (non-recycling) (10,388) (222,565)
M12H31H At 31 December 630,093 606,943
BAFE At fair value
LTREES Equity securities listed on
FEBEERSF() Shanghai Stock Exchange (a) 580,296 585,295
B X BT Stock Exchange 26,696 =
ERBEM—R Subordinated Additional Tier 1
BARITA Capital Securities listed on
B8 32X B (b) Stock Exchange (b) 23,101 21,648
630,093 606,943

{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited
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19 BRRFESFAHMZEDRGEN

EMEE (18)

REBEE N FRER A ERT AEM
2EME (PAER) DTRREFRE
RREBFERBBNMIFE °

(@ RLEBFELARZ LHHRER
FERRBRAEERENERRRESE
IR BERAR ([ZERE])6,795
ERABRKONEE  ©BEK
57,428 B7r (HEX AR¥ 52,255
BIT) o FEAR 20224 2023 4F
12A3MBRBENT :

19 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (Continued)

The Group designated these investments as fair value
through other comprehensive income (non-recycling) as
these investments are held for long-term and strategic
purposes.

(a) The equity securities listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange comprised an amount of HK$574.28
million (equivalent to approximately RMB522.55
million) for the investment in 67.95 million shares
of A-Share of Huaneng Power International, Inc.
(“Huaneng”) held by the Group. The particulars of
Huaneng at 31 December 2022 and 2023 are as

follows:
e FEEH TEENARER
Place of Principal Group’s
NGIES Company name incorporation activities  effective interest
ZRERBRE LG Huaneng Power International, REARLNE RERIEETH . 043%
BRAR Inc. (#76,795 BIRARR)
The People’s Generation and sale (approximately
Republic of China  of electric power 67.95 million
A-Share)

ARQBVEGH B A A R R
B RAE AN 2 B LA BT /2 & &6
DERARFRE N TRIEME
o AM - ARBERFARK
& W B 6% 1Y 1E 1B T
g AREHNEmEEKEA
R - WEAFERES (TR &
R) AD R RAFEZBIRE
MHEHELEMSHAE -

(b) RFEEM—REARATEARERR
TR2022F108 BTHRES
FI0EETWMEARATAEMNARFE
B - AEEBEBERFAKER S B UK
A248ETT (ZELB®18887T)
(20224 : 4)

The tax bureau in Beijing, Mainland China
exempted the Company from withholding tax
on the gain from disposal of certain A-Share of
Huaneng by the Company in prior years. However,
the Company has paid 6% value-added tax on
such disposal gain during the year. Accordingly,
the Group has made corresponding provisions
for deferred income tax liabilities for the changes
in fair value recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling).

(b) The Subordinated Additional Tier 1 Capital
Securities represented the fair value of the
subscription amount of US$3 million capital
securities issued by CYB in October 2022. The
Group has received the distribution income of
US$0.24 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$1.88 million) during the year (2022: Nil).
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20 REHEMNNGtENBEIFRE

20 DEBT INVESTMENTS AT AMORTISED COST

2023 2022
BYTFT BT
HKS'000 HKS'000

REBHEKARTE At amortised cost
B AP EERIRE Debit investment listed on Stock Exchange 152,005 =
TEEEE R ECL (150) =
151,855 -
JE LRI B, Interest receivable 4,319 _
156,174 -

2023F 12 A31 8 » REBEREHK
KFEMEBREY AEIRT  BEE
HAH &2025 FF £ 2033 F - [EFE FF X

B1.75% F7.2% °

(a) ZHFBEIEBRIEN2023%F6 A%

171 2033 F R HAHY 7
RERBEBLEOTE

EETTHR

285 %8 1,400

SREAEE10941 BT RERES
FEessEETSIB T (ZERE

3961%7_5)

At 31 December 2023, the Group’s debt investments at
amortised cost were unsecured, had fixed maturities
from 2025 to 2033 and fixed interest rates ranging from
1.75% to 7.2% per annum.

(a)

The balance included an amount of HK$109.41
million for the investment in the supplementary
capital bonds due 2033 issued by LIB in June
2023 in the subscription amount of US$14 million
and an amount of US$0.51 million (equivalent to
HK$3.96 million) for the bond interest receivable.

(b)

M2023F12 8318 - IREASHF
HAFEMEREHEKATTEN

EHRENTHAHER

1218 A °

(b) At 31 December 2023, the maturity of all the debt
investments at amortised cost was more than

B 12 ANEREEEEANRESE

12 months based on their contractual maturity

dates.

The movement of impairment allowances recognised

HOEEBIT : at amounts equal to 12 months ECL was as follows:
2023 2022
BT BT
HK$'000 HKS'000
1A At 1 January = =
TEEEEEBER ECL recognised 150 _
MW12A31H8 At 31 December 150 -

{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited
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RREENEENER 21 INSURANCE CONTRACT ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES
NHRRELEE DREZRKER
LRC LIC
FRELHE FHBER
RiEm et MEREZ
Estimates of Risk
FBAHS present adjustment
Bx#2 Excluding value for
Loss loss offuture  non-financial ag
component component cash flows risk Total
BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
BUEE Opening assets - - - - B}
HEE Opening liahilities (1,545) 30,090 (96,250) (4,499) (72,204)
RANE1R1A At 1 January 2022 (1,545) 30,090 (96,250) (4,499) (72,04)
{REBMA Insurance revenue = 194,998 = = 194,998
REREER Insurance service expenses
BREEZRREMRR Incurred claims and other insurance
%2R service expenses 2,504 - (48,878) (2,708) (49,082)
BEEZEREN Adjustments to liabilities for
g incurred claims - - (18,011) 1235 (16,776)
BRANNEX Loss on onerous contracts (1,845) = = = (1,845)
REWERSRE Amortisation on insurance
%%ﬁ acquisition cash flows - (93,247) - - (93,247)
659 (93,247) (66,889) (1473) (160,950
REFREEE Insurance service result 659 101,751 66,889) (1473) 34,048
BEORBAON Finance income from insurance
SHERA contracts issued - - 4,856 - 4856
LABREN Total changes in the consolidated
BHm income statement 659 101,751 (62,033) (1473) 38,904
BemE Cash flows
BURE Premiums received - (196,981) = = (196,981)
REWERSRE Insurance acquisition cash flows = 92,869 - - 92,869
ﬁ m&ﬁ‘r@f B IR Claims and other insurance service
expenses paid - - 33,658 - 33,658
RenenR Total cash flows - (104,112) 33658 - (70,454)
R202%F12A431H At 31 December 2022 (886) 21,729 (124,625) (5972) (103,754)
BREE Closing assets - - . ; _
BRRR Closing liabilties (886) 27,79 (124,625) (5972) (103,754)
B202F12431H At 31 December 2022 (886) 21,729 (124,625) (5,972) (103,754)
—Z— =F4F3R Annual Report 2023
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21 RRENEENERGE (&) 21 INSURANCE CONTRACT ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Continued)
JBRRERAE BREZERR
LRC
*mﬁﬁﬁ;ﬁ FEBER
BN fERAR
Estimates of Risk
FBAHS present adjustment
Bx¥5 Excluding value for
Loss loss offuture  non-financial ax
component component cash flows risk Total
BETT AETT BEFT AETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
HNEE Opening assets - = - = =
etk Opening liabilities (886) 27,129 (124,629) (5972) (103,754)
R2023%1810 At 1January 2023 (886) 27,729 (124,625) (5,972) (103,754)
(R Insurance revenue = 191,128 = = 191,128
REREER Insurance service expenses
BEEREREMRR Incurred claims and other insurance
RBER service expenses 3876 - (58,066) (4610) (58,00)
BEERERREN Adjustments to liabiliies for
Eip incurred claims = = (3,132) (3,784) (6.916)
BERANNER Loss on onerous contracts (5,982) - - - (5982)
REYERSRE Amortisation on insurance
acquisition cash flows - (91,309) - - (91,309)
(2,100) (91,309) (61,198) (8,394) (163,007)
REREEE Insurance service result (2,106) 99,819 (61,198) (8,394) 28121
BEORBAON Finance expenses from insurance
HKER contracts issued - - (5,565) = (5,565)
LABREN Total changes in the consolidated
bE et income statement (2,106) 99,819 (66,763) (8,394) 22,556
BenmE Cash flows
BURE Premiums received - (207,704) - - (207,704)
RRkEES TS Insurance acquisition cash flows - 100,799 - = 100,799
BRETREMRRRR Claims and other insurance service
&R expenses paid - - 43304 - 43304
Bonens Total cash flows - (106,905) 43,304 = (63,601)
R20235 128310 At 31 December 2023 (2,992) 20,643 (148,084) (14,366) (144,799)
HREE Closing assets - 4327 (2,536) (330 1461
HREE Closing liabilities (2992) 16316 (145,548) (14,036) (146,260)
R2023%12831H At 31 December 2023 (2,992) 20,643 (148,084) (14,366) (144,799)

{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited
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22 BRIEEHNEENKEE 22 REINSURANCE CONTRACT ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES
IBRBERSS SREREHS
Remaining coverage component  Incurred claims component
ARBLRE  EMEAR
W RENGT  NEREE
B%H%  Estimates of Risk
WEE X2 Excuding presentvalue adjustment for
Lossrecovery  lossrecovery  of future cash  non-financial 3
component component flows risk Total
BT BETT AEFT BT BT
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HaE Opening assets - (5,059) 9,441 778 5160
HaE Opening liabilities - (3,179) 50 - (3,129)
H0n%1A18 At1 January 2022 - 8239) 9,491 778 2,031
EXRBRRAEAE Allocation of reinsurance premiums paid = (21,982) = = (21,982)
HERLAEDN P Amounts recovered from reinsurers
EECEERERAM Recoveries on incurred claims and other
ﬁf%@ﬁﬁi%;ﬁﬁﬁ incurred reinsurance service expenses = = 5,140 349 5,489
BERENEDFE Changes in recoveries for past claims = = 1,786 (190) 1,59
- - 6,926 159 7,085
FRERREONERFE Net expenses from reinsurance contracts
held - (21,982) 6,926 159 (14,897)
BEERBRANE Finance expenses from reinsurance
HHER contracts held - - (320) - (320)
GaEREY Total changes in the consolidated income
298% statement - (21,982) 6,606 159 (15217)
Reng Cash flows
BHRE Premiums paid - 19,536 - - 19,536
ERBRAAKEE Amounts received from reinsurers
BREZRENSHE relating to incurred claims = = (3433) = (3433)
Benens Total cash flows = 19,536 (3433) = 16,103
R202F12A431H At 31 December 2022 = (10,684) 12,664 937 2917
HREE Closing assets = (1,432) 12,269 901 11,738
HRAE Closing liabilities = (9.252) 395 36 (8821)
R02%E12A8318 At 31 December 2022 - (10,684) 12,664 937 2917
—Z— =F4F3R Annual Report 2023
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22 BRIRENEEKER (18)

LIABILITIES (Continued)

HHRRELHD

Remaining coverage component

EREREND

Incurred claims component

ARAGRE  FUBAER

22 REINSURANCE CONTRACT ASSETS AND

khE  BENET  NERSBER
B%H%  Estimates of Risk
WEE %S 2 Excluding  presentvalue adjustment for
Lossrecovery  lossrecovery  of future cash  non-financial ]
component component flows risk Total
BETT Vil A AETT Vil A BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEE Opening assets - (1432) 12,269 901 11,738
B0afk Opening liabilities - (9.252) 395 36 (8,821)
#203%1818 At 1 January 2023 . (10,682) 12,664 937 2917
BXHBERBABARNE Allocation of reinsurance premiums paid - (25452) = = (25,452)
HERAAZDN LB Amounts recovered from reinsurers
EECEERERAM Recoveries on incurred claims and other
BRERBER incurred reinsurance service expenses = - 9,719 719 10438
BARENEDHE Changes in recoveries for past claims - = (1,225) 7 (1,696)
BESNMKEEXRAE Loss recovery on onerous underlying
contracts and adjustments 104 - - - 104
104 - 8,494 248 8,846
FEERBEONERFE Net expenses from reinsurance contracts
held 104 (25,452) 8,494 248 (16,606)
REARBAON Finance income from reinsurance
FHERA contracts held - - 261 - 261
Tﬁﬁi%% Total changes in the consolidated income
298% statement 104 (25452) 8,755 248 (16,345)
Reing Cash flows
BHRE Premiums paid - 331 - - 33N
ERERAANEE Amounts received from reinsurers
BREZRENSH relating to incurred claims = = (3423) = (3423)
Benees Total cash flows = 23372 (3423) - 19,949
R2023%128318 At 31 December 2023 104 (12,764) 17,996 1,185 6,521
HREE Closing assets 15 (4,099) 17,924 1,179 15,019
HRAE Closing liabilities 89 (8,665) 72 6 (8,498)
R2023%128318 At 31 December 2023 104 (12,764) 17,99 1,185 6,521

{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited
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23 CREDIT-IMPAIRED LOANS TO CUSTOMERS

il 2 AND INTEREST RECEIVABLE
2023 2022
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HKS’000
NERERER Micro credit business
ERER Guaranteed loans 86,093 93,977
EIRE R Secured loans 61,481 68,825
HHRERER Pledged and guaranteed loans 10,467 10,866
B EFRIERER  Secured, pledged and guaranteed loans 3,077 4,301
BEEREMEFEEZR  Credit-impaired loans to customers 161,118 177,969
BIEEREMEWFIE  Credit-impaired interest receivable 7,222 8,008
168,340 185,977
B Impairment allowances (153,238) (170,056)
M12A8318 At 31 December 15,102 15,921
AEBEHMEEEERENERIER The Group has initiated litigations against all the

fERAREHRA - BE2HAE - §FE
B AR AERERXE  WERNE

TR -

borrowers of credit-impaired loans. At the reporting
date, all litigations have obtained effective legal

documents and are in the process of performance or

execution.

—Z— =F4F3R Annual Report 2023

243



244

fm O BT IR ¥R RS
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23 EEaRENEFPEMNIEI
= (48)

EEAEENBEAFTENNEHREERS

23 CREDIT-IMPAIRED LOANS TO CUSTOMERS
AND INTEREST RECEIVABLE (Continued)

The movement of impairment allowances recognised

B (BEEERE) REEENZE W at amounts equal to lifetime ECLs (credit-impaired) was
™ as follows:

2023 2022

BT T BT T

HK$’000 HK$’000

M1 A1H At 1 January 170,056 202,233

FEE 3 =58 Translation differences (4,906) (14,981)

EEFEERERGTE®@ Credited to current year's income statement (a) (2,845) (6,294)
ZIHEEERER Write-off of credit-impaired

B AEE b) loans principal (b) (5,964) (7,284)
ZIHEEERER Write-off of credit-impaired

FEU T E (b) interest receivable (b) (257) (495)

HAth Other (2,846) (3,123)

M12H31H At 31 December 153,238 170,056

@) ZBE/EF

i —

#5975 87T (2022 € : & 987.9

BESRRL (a)

The amount represented a net balance of a

& T) R E & BB 569.1
8 7T (20224 : B #0941.78 7T)
AR AFEFIROEEINKEE B
& 28468 JT (2022F : B K
3123 87T) BUFEHREE -

M2023F 12 A31H  BREAZEA
R#5,565.28 7T (ZEE%6,116.2
B7r) (2022F : AR¥ 564288
7T ZEB%e38688 L) A
BEBEBARELI1NAET (F
BB 4606 87T) (2022F - AR
#4361 870 HEEK4794.7
B8 NEEERENEFERK
FEULF B B RA N EET -
FANERZEHBERTIREIN
SREETE B 284.6 8 7T (20224 -
31238 T) c AEBE BN
ZEWHEEEZSFHREER
BAANRE13741 8 T (ZEE
#1,5102870) (2022F : AR
1,406.7 870 EEB%1,59218
JL) ©

{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

reversal of impairment allowance of HK$5,691,000
(2022: HKS$9,417,000) due to settlement of the
outstanding balance of HK$5,975,000 (2022:
HK$9,879,000) by customers and an additional
impairment of HK$2,846,000 (2022: HK$3,123,000)
for the year.

At 31 December 2023, there are credit-impaired
loans to customers and interest receivable with
gross carrying amount of RMB55,652,000 (equivalent
to HK$61,162,000) (2022: RMB56,428,000, equivalent
to HK$63,868,000) with impairment allowance of
RMB41,911,000 (equivalent to HK$46,060,000) (2022:
RMB42,361,000, equivalent to HK$47,947,000) being
pledged by properties of borrowers. An impairment
allowance provided was HK$2,846,000 (2022:
HK$3,123,000) for these related loans during the
year. The Group has the rights on these properties
to repay these remaining outstanding exposures
of approximately RMB13,741,000 (equivalent to
HK$15,102,000) (2022: RMB14,067,000, equivalent
to HK$15,921,000).
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23 EEaRENEFPEMNIEER

= (48)

(b)

REBRFENZHEERE R & E
U | BB 4R BE 75 5 622.1 & JT (2022
FEE77798 L) BHEER
BRERACBABREVBRESR
BAEBRIVEZTHRELEA
BRNEEERENEREDER
FTHEERBHIRER S - FRNZX
HR W E R & EKF SR E L
SERDERFINITH ©

23 CREDIT-IMPAIRED LOANS TO CUSTOMERS
AND INTEREST RECEIVABLE (Continued)

(b)

During the year, the Group wrote off loan
receivable and interest receivable with a gross
amount of HK$6,221,000 (2022: HK$7,779,000)
as there was information indicating that the
borrowers are in severe financial difficulty and
there was no realistic prospect of recovery after
the Group has taken legal action against the
debtors to recover the credit-impaired loans.
The contractual amount of loans and interest

receivable that were written-off during the year
are still subject to enforcement activity.

24 BV ERBERYIKRNER 24 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

S THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
2023 2022
BETFT B F T
HKS’000 HKS$'000
EAYE At fair value
TR iERE Equity securities listed on
B 22 BT Stock Exchange 281 244
RN 4B EIRITTE R () Principal-guaranteed structured
bank deposits (a) 605,646 721,546
EmS®RE At quoted price
JEEMIREES (b) Unlisted investment funds (b) 20,516 20,290
M®12A31H At 31 December 626,443 742,080
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24 BNV EBBREBRYIKRNER 24 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

& (18) THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

(a) EHELBATRAME TIETE (a) The amount represented fixed-term and
1TEY B BPR M AR AN A5 1B 1 SR 1T principal-guaranteed structured bank deposits
TR AR 551098 7T (FEL of approximately RMB551.09 million (equivalent
B 60,565 F 7T) (2022F © AR to approximately HK$605.65 million) (2022:

63,749F 7T - FEAE! 72,155 RMB637.49 million, equivalent to approximately
&Ir) ° HK$721.55 million) issued by certain banks in
Mainland China.
R2023F 1283180 XEEFEF At 31 December 2023, the Group held principal-
DRIRERMER (& SAEE guaranteed structured bank deposits with a
SRS BITHRAEEE fair value of approximately RMB135.21 million
RIFRATFEARK135218 (equivalent to approximately HK$148.6 million)
7T (ZEXB% 14,8608 7T ) (2022 (31 December 2022: RMB137.57 million,
F12A318: ARM13,75787T equivalent to approximately HK$155.71 million)
FEHAB®E1557187T) ° issue y an respectively, both are
ZELBE &) d by XIB and CYB ly, both
associated financial institutions of the Group.

b) ERTBSASEERTERT (b) The amount represented unlisted investment
N RBERIE T TREES - Z funds subscribed by the Group in Hong Kong and
EREEGDHINETRARK Mainland China. These investment funds are in
sHE ° United States dollars and Renminbi respectively.

25 IRENRTEF 25 CASH AND BANK BALANCES
2023 2022
BT T BT
HK$’000 HKS'000
R MRS EEY Cash and cash equivalents
He RFEEEHA=MA  Cashand bank balances with original
AR IRITEETT maturity within three months 414,062 235,285
e LRI B, Interest receivable
1,353 971
415,415 236,256
TE BT R Term deposits
REBABB=MAK  Term deposits with original maturity
GRS over three months 309,652 438,281
JE WA B, Interest receivable 13,618 5814
323,270 444,095
B R Z IR GIH)F /7K Pledged and restricted term deposits
RIBRBEEEMER  Term deposits placed pursuant to
T mAF B A insurance regulatory
TEHFER (b) requirements (b) 103,320 103,320
RO EHFR () (@)  Pledged time deposits ((c), (d)) 234,800 241,370
fE LR 2 Interest receivable 16,422 7,382
,,,,,, O
NE NRITETFEARE Total cash and bank balances 1,093,227 1,032,423

246 B{E&EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited
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25 IRENRITE’F () 25 CASH AND BANK BALANCES (Continued)

(a)

ReRRITEFD BB m
T

The maturity profile of the cash and bank
balances was summarised as follows:

2023 2022
BEFT BEF T

HK$’000 HK$000

F—FA Within 1 year 623,544 564,609
ZR—F More than 1 year 469,683 467,814
1,093,227 1,032,423

M2023F 128318 "EBEH
SRITHETFAFEFIE 0.001% (FEKR
P) Z5.42% (20224 : 0.001% &
5.61%) 518 °

AEENRE MBITEFEBEA
REFBOERH AR 69,617
B (£EYB 765098 7T)
(2022%F : HAR¥ 60,791 BT
ZEHHE 68,8078 TT) ° 82 T &I
BeRRTEFETEUBTRE
JLETE °

Bank balances of the Group carried interest
at market rates ranging from 0.001% (savings
account) to 5.42% (2022: 0.001% to 5.61%) per
annum at 31 December 2023.

The cash and bank balances of the Group included
RMB denominated deposits of approximately
RMB696.17 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$765.09 million) (2022: approximately
RMB607.91 million, equivalent to approximately
HK$688.07 million). The remaining cash and bank
balances are primarily denominated in Hong
Kong dollars and United States dollars.
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25 IRERIRTETF (18)

(b)

BEBEREEEERNHATE  TH
EEN—R2EWNBRAIBER
BRELEBAEBT DR E1,600
BELNESNU [RBREEERERR
MEREBERAR] BEBEHEIT
BFEHRERETEF - 72023F 12
A31H BEREREE—RIR
T T REEEEREFRERR
BERAR] BEGFHEE1,6008
JC (20224 : B #1,6008 T) B
TEHEFTAFTEEBRTE - %M
BRARMGEFRMK1841E T
(ZELHBE1,7878 ) B
6,945 87T (2022 F : JBFIEE 1,841
B SENBE1,787B TN
756,945 8 7T) WERITE RARF
BBRPCRBEEEZBE) BT
MRIE o

REEEERNEHRBEIUHM
FEREBBEEZET DR B 1,600
BITHMESU [REEEEREP
BiERRER AR B& B AR
THEROBET  ZEHERER
2024 £ 8 A FEA# (D -

{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

25 CASH AND BANK BALANCES (Continued)

(b)

Pursuant to the requirements from the Insurance
Authority, Min Xin Insurance, a wholly-owned
subsidiary, shall maintain at all times a portion
of its funds of not less than HK$16 million in the
name of “Insurance Authority account Min Xin
Insurance Company Limited” in bank deposits as
a statutory deposit. At 31 December 2023, Min
Xin Insurance has placed fixed deposits of HK$16
million (2022: HK$S16 million) in the name of
“Insurance Authority account Min Xin Insurance
Company Limited” with a bank in Hong Kong for
fulfillment of such requirements. That subsidiary
has also maintained bank deposits of MOP18.41
million (equivalent to approximately HK$17.87
million) and HK$69.45 million (2022: MOP18.41
million, equivalent to approximately HK$17.87
million, and HK$69.45 million) for fulfilling
certain requirements under the Macau Insurance
Ordinance.

The requirements to maintain at all times of
its funds of not less than HK$16 million in the
name of “Insurance Authority account Min Xin
Insurance Company Limited” were rescinded after
the reporting date and the term deposits will be
released on maturity in August 2024.
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25 IRENIRITHT (8) 25 CASH AND BANK BALANCES (Continued)

() T2023F12A318 ' RIEARAA (c) At 31 December 2023, a wholly-owned subsidiary
FEIMENEE (53 270@) B9 has pledged its three-year bank deposit of
F —REENBRARIEEHRE RMB200 million (equivalent to approximately
—FHRTHERARK 200008 HK$219.8 million) (2022: RMB200 million,
7T (Z{EZ 1 21,980 BT ) (2022 equivalent to approximately HK$226.37 million)
F: AR®20,0008 7T EELD to a branch of the lending bank in Mainland
B8 22,637 B7T) TEFERITIH China for the issuance of a standby letter of
A — K917 UNEZ DT credit in favour of the lending bank pursuant to
BERNERRTAISTANER the requirements of the loan facility (Note 27(a))
EAE - entered into by the Company.

(d) WREBBE-RBITHELUAELRRD (d) Pursuant to the requirement of a standby letter of
AN—XE2EMBRAREITIEA credit issued by a bank in Hong Kong in favour of
SHERRBENBRRBR AR AY a reinsurance company that has entered into the
A ANBRERAENER »® Non-life Reinsurance Facility with a wholly-owned
2023F 128310 22 BB subsidiary of the Company, that wholly-owned
ANAIETFA—ZAE%1,5008 T subsidiary has placed a bank deposit of HK$15
(20224 : B #1,5008 jT) AU IR million (2022: HK$15 million) as a collateral for
TERERBRERENERR - the standby letter of credit at 31 December 2023.

26 THEBE 26 LEASE LIABILITIES
7202312 A31 8 - RIEAER KA At 31 December 2023, the remaining contractual
REMFGELNEIFHARDT maturity profile of the present value of the minimum
lease payments was summarised as follows:
2023 2022
BEFTT BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000

EF—FN Within 1 year 278 247

ZR—FEBIPEME More than 1 year but less than 2 years 308 278

ZRMFEINEF More than 2 years but less than 5 years - 308

586 833

RH23[E (20224 : 23F) °

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates

applied to lease liabilities was 2.3% (2022: 2.3%).
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27 RITER 27 BANK BORROWINGS
2023 2022
JBMTF T BT T
HK$’000 HKS'000
REFIRITRERK Long-term bank loans

BIEM(a) Secured (a) 198,580 198,563

B R HIERTTE K Revolving and short-term bank loans
A (b) Secured (b) 223,530 244,360
I () Unsecured (c) 433,460 249,671
,,,,,, 656,990 | 494,031
855,570 692,594

REBPATAMNIRITERGABEEHE -

RIS SRR P 2 2
TTRERB AT

ERBEH R

All of the Group's bank borrowings are in Hong Kong
dollars. The maturity profile of the bank loans based
on the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan

facilities was summarised as follows:

2023 2022

BT B F T

HKS’000 HKS’000

E—FNR Within 1 year 656,990 494,031
ZN—FEBERAMFEN More than 1 year but within 2 years 198,580 =
ZHMEERAENA More than 2 years but within 5 years = 198,563
855,570 692,594

{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited
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= {H xh

Tk (88)

RITERAERATR2022FE A M
H—RIBITIRIA = FHEFE A
REHREROKRERES -

ZTEREFRABHBITRAFRAR
M —RAPTHEENERERE
EAERARABTERELNIEK
e ZBERERERARARRE
BRHH —R2EWE QRS
o F2023%12A318 0 % M
BRACEEHRE=FHRITER
AR¥20,000&8 T (ZEHBE
21,9808 7T) (2022512 318 -
AR#200008 7 SENEE
22,637 870) TEFIRITHRFREA
B —KD1T o

2% E HAE R B B E R R &t
o R2023F 128318 BERE
MEEH27E -

RIEZBRBEENGRR - BER
ERERNEEREHATBEER
SEEFERNRA D EITRAD
51% A LB En - KBRAGER
=

27 BANK BORROWINGS (Continued])

(a)

The bank loan represented the outstanding
balance of the three-year fixed rate term loan
obtained from a bank in London by the Company
in 2022.

The term loan was secured by a standby letter
of credit issued by a branch of the lending
bank in Mainland China for the fulfillment of
the Company’s repayment obligations. The
standby letter of credit was applied by a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company in Mainland
China. That subsidiary has pledged its three-
year bank deposit of RMB200 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$219.8 million) (31
December 2022: RMB200 million, equivalent to
approximately HK$226.37 million) to the branch
of the lending bank in Mainland China at 31
December 2023.

The term loan bore interest at fixed rate and the
effective interest rate was 2.7% per annum at 31
December 2023.

Pursuant to the terms of the loan facility, if FIDG
ceases to directly or indirectly hold more than
51% beneficial interest in the issued share capital
of the Company during the tenor of the loan
facility, this will constitute an event of default.
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27 Rf

(b)

(c)

TiEK (£8)

ZEBEITERUAN—RE2ENER
ABEEBEURESNERAREEREY
EEEE - ZIMEWER 2023 F
12A3EBNE®EFED LB
#8378 7T (20224 : #8638
JT) e 2023128318 ZW
¥R FED R ABE 24,0008
7 (2022 4 : ¥ 28,0008 7T) °

ZERITEROF BIREBRIT
REFENMEETE  1K2023F
12A318 ' BREFEFENT62[E
272 (20224F : 6.2 EF69EF) ©

WRIR B LE SR 1T 15 SRR B IR 3K
ARRAHREREZRERER
REZLESRITIE R E AN 415 (&
WEERLEE) HREARRE#T
PR AR DR 35% H) B 55 0 a5 M
BYHARBITE (EmEEK LM
&) BRI HIRESN -

ZEBREEHFEITERAER
. FEBREFBRITRZERE N
BEFE - MN2023F 128318 -
ERFNEAENTSEZI6E
(20224 : 69[F)

BIEZEEIRBITEREENIK
FARARAEHERFERERESE
BANRZERBIRETEREEN
NS (EREEIME) #AK
NAIEBEITRATLR51%0E
BN RBEBHARRTE (R
HEREE) SR HES -

{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

27 BANK BORROWINGS (Continued])

(b)

(c)

These bank loans were secured by the self-
use office building owned by a wholly-owned
subsidiary in Hong Kong with a net book value
of approximately HK$8.37 million (2022: HK$8.63
million) at 31 December 2023. The fair value of
the property was HK$240 million (2022: HK$280
million) at 31 December 2023.

These bank loans bore interest at a spread over
Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate and the
effective interest rates ranged from 6.2% to 7.2%
(2022: 6.2% to 6.9%) per annum at 31 December
2023.

Pursuant to the terms of these bank loan facilities,
the Company shall procure FIDG to maintain
(whether directly or indirectly) not less than 35%
beneficial interest in the issued share capital of
the Company and have the power to exercise
(whether directly or indirectly) management
control over the Company during the tenor of
these bank loan facilities.

These revolving and short-term bank loans were
unsecured, bore interest at a spread over Hong
Kong Interbank Offered Rate and the effective
interest rate ranged from 5% to 7.6% (2022: 6.9%)
per annum at 31 December 2023.

Pursuant to the terms of these revolving bank
loan facilities, the Company shall procure FIDG
to maintain (whether directly or indirectly) not
less than 51% beneficial interest in the issued
share capital of the Company and have the
power to exercise (whether directly or indirectly)
management control over the Company during
the tenor of the revolving bank loan facilities.
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RIE PR ISR

BEAMSHRAABREINEREZRES
5 0 T8 B B %K 16.5% (2022 4F : 16.5%)
Ko R B g ) A5 TE A B R 25% (2022 4F ¢
25%) tEZ 8 BE - EBETEFIATH
EMHEAEREHTBEAERS N
BRLEMEHERFA—FHIEEELR
—EAERRER B SEEMEHE
ERELEMSHAET A -

BIEFFSHEE,/ (BB WEHL
o

28 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary
differences under the liability method using a taxation
rate of 16.5% (2022: 16.5%) for Hong Kong taxation and
25% (2022: 25%) for Mainland China taxation. Deferred
income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes relate to the same taxation authority on
the same taxable entity.

The movement on the deferred income tax assets/
(liabilities) was summarised as follows:

2023 2022

BT T B F T

HK$’000 HKS$'000

»1A1H At 1 January (49,340) (63,443)

[EH =%8 Translation differences 883 1,616

EEFEEEEIRITEN  Deferred income tax credited to

EEFTEFL current year’s income statement 1,841 12,487
ERAFEHES (RAfE Deferred income tax charged to fair value

IR) B EELEFTER reserve (non-recycling) (16,233) =

®12831H At 31 December (62,849) (49,340)

EEFTEHEEEEREHREHER
B RS B AR R E R RS B2 IR T st A
HEENBIBERR - 12023F 12 A 31
B ANEBEXRERNA]AEERKE
R R AR IBL B 5.81187T (2022
B S37ET)  MikFiEwE
PRER -

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax
losses carried forward to the extent that realisation of
the related tax benefits through future taxable profits
is probable. At 31 December 2023, the Group did not
recognise tax losses of approximately HK$581 million
(2022: approximately HK$537 million) that can be
carried forward against future taxable profits and have
no expiry date.
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28 IRFEFRISHR (48)

RERNBELEMSHEENABNE
(B[R —EH [ M AE BRI S AT ) Bt g

-

EIEFRSREIE

28 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued]

The movement in deferred income tax assets and
liabilities (prior to offsetting of balances within the
same taxation jurisdiction) during the year was

summarised as follows:

Deferred income tax liabilities

NERERER BeNaN BRAYE
RENZE( RRRE TARBRENES RAVERERENR
Accelerated tax (35 18) SHEELTEAR NOREELTHESEE
depreciation Proposed dividend ~ Fair value adjustment Fair value adjustment
and revaluation of of associate forfinancial assets  for financial assets an
investment properties (Note 18) measured at FVOCI  measured at FVPL Total
2023 202 2023 202 2023 02 203 02 203 20N
BETT BT |\BETL |BRTT |BREFR |BETT |\ BETL |BRTT |BREFR |BETT
HKS'000 | HKS'000 | HK$'000 | HKS000 | HKS'000 | HKS'000 | HKS'000 | HKS'000 | HKS'000 | HKS'000
MATH At 1 January 20,651 | 23832 | 30,140 | 40955 - - 297 431 | 51,088 | 65218
EREE Translation differences - 1| @m)| (158 - = (8) 31| (883) | (1616)
FEERRRRAR Credited to current year'
income statement (1,856) | (3,182) - 9229 - - (3) (103) | (1,859) | (12514)
ERTERES (TER)  Charged to fair value reserve
ik (non-recycling) - - - | 16233 - - - | 1623
R12831H At 31 December 18,795 | 20651 | 29,265 | 30140 | 16,233 - 286 297 | 64579 | 51,088

{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited
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28 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets

B ER e aE
Accrued expenses Tax losses Total
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
BEFL | BEFT | BEFL | EEFT | BEFL | BETT
HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000
R®A1A At 1 January (319) (319 (1,429) (1,456) (1,748) (1,775)
EEEEBERMG  Charged to current year's
income statement - - 18 27 18 27
®12B31A At 31 December (319) (319) (1,411) (1,429) (1,730) (1,748)

A ABEEEELEREHEERARE
& TI @ BEELEETBARRTEK AT
R

The following amounts, determined after appropriate

offsetting of deferred income tax assets and

liabilities,

are shown in the consolidated statement of financial

position:
2023 2022
BT T JBEMEF o
HK$’000 HKS’000
ELEFEHRAaE Deferred income tax liabilities 62,849 49,340
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29 BRNEFEEBET 29 CAPITAL AND RESERVES
(a) BRIK (a) Share capital
2023 2022
RGEE BETT RAEE BT T
No. of shares HK$’000 |No. of shares HK$'000
ERITRHBERA Ordinary shares, issued
VE R and fully paid 597,257,252 1,715,377 | 597,257,252 1,715,377

BIE CARUEHI) B1351& - AARIER In accordance with Section 135 of the Companies

PR D W M EE(E Ordinance, the ordinary shares of the Company do not

have a par value.

EBRRA AR BRI EE KR The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive

B WEARTNKREAE LERE dividends as declared from time to time and are

—EHNREE - IEERKRKROBEERR entitled to one vote per share at general meetings of

AN EEREA R SRR - the shareholders of the Company. All ordinary shares

rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual
assets.

(b) REENESRAR (b) Nature and purpose of reserves

li) ZERHEE (il  Statutory reserve

EERBBEEIERE The statutory reserve mainly comprises the following:

- TREZSEHERE CRPMER - Non-distributable reserve set aside by an
TR RADEETIE) ﬁﬂ%%ﬁﬂ associated financial institution from its retained
BEN TR EREERES profits in accordance with the Financial System

Act of Macau.

- TEBESRBEBERENBEHR - General reserve established and maintained
P (eRERER S IRER within shareholders’ equity of an associated
#E) (8142012 205%) & m— financial institution pursuant to Caijin 2012 No.
BB - % —REFBERFES 20 “Regulation on Management of Financial
A Bz 12 SIET’E%HQ?TEEH% il Institutions for Reserves” issued by Ministry of
5 F3 AR A R B 2 0 VB AR OR Finance. The general reserve was established
BEEE - through the appropriation of income to cover

unidentified potential impairment losses.

- —FXHECHEBRRET SR - Regulatory reserve set aside by an associated
ERBORERREENE LD financial institution from its retained profits in
BB - accordance with the requirements of the Hong

Kong Monetary Authority.
{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited
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snkiEEE (8)
(b) fFEtRENMHESESRAE (&)
lii) B@E#BEE

EAFEREE DR SR B W E—R
R -

liii) BHEEE
BEXNRHZ B

- 2000 FE1RAT1TBLARIBLERS G
MEEBERNRMEENTER
AEEREGHKEENTZRE
E -BERIARBBEOHAFFE
BREABREEE

- BERFARENEBRR /LMK
AR R B A AR T R B 0 A
wEEAXL

- EEBEARETEHEEELM
B 2 B4R B 0 B B 3 A 3
DELEY TR

livl 2 FlEREE (TBR)

NP EFRES (JER) SRENRE2RH
ABERAFEFARMEEKETE
MEBRENZFA A FEZHFE (N
BARBRERIA W) ©

vl 2FEREE (NIER)

NP EFEE (TAER) BRRE®R
HARBERERAFEFAREMEEE
D ENRERENRFTAFEESF
8 (FRAERETERIAS L)

29 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued]

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(il General reserve

The general reserve is transferred from retained profits
and is available for general use.

liii] Capital reserve
The capital reserve comprises the following:

- goodwill and the excess of the Group’s interest
in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over the cost of business combination and the
investments in associates prior to 1 January 2001;

- capitalisation of retained profits and reserves
for the purpose of increasing the share capital
and capital reserve of associates and their
subsidiaries;

- share of movement in reserves recorded in equity
of associates for the change in the interest in
their subsidiaries that do not result in a loss of
control.

(liv] Fair value reserve [recycling)

The fair value reserve (recycling) comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of debt
investments measured at FVOCI (less related deferred
tax charge) held at the end of the reporting period.

[v]  Fair value reserve [non-recycling)

The fair value reserve (non-recycling) comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of equity
investments designated as measured at FVOCI (less
related deferred tax charge) held at the end of the
reporting period.
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29

30

SREGHES (18)

(b) BBEAUBRAR (&)
Wil HERBFERZREGE
HEEEEMREECREHEERME
TERYMEETOBAKREYWE B
EENRTERDFE -

Wiil JEEREFER

SNENTE EE S BIEREBINKTE A R]
B E RNRMPBEREREARARNFZE|RE
BAHEENTEERY =% -

AR

72023F 12 A31 B » REBE M E %K
TN

29

30

CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)
(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

lvi] Leasehold buildings revaluation reserve

The leasehold buildings revaluation reserve comprises
the net change in the fair value of leasehold buildings
at the date of reclassification from owner-occupied
property to investment property.

(vii] Exchange translation reserve

The exchange translation reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising on translation of
the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries and
associates into the reporting currency of the Company.

COMMITMENTS

At 31 December 2023, the Group had capital
commitments as follows:

2023 2022
BYF T BB F T
HK$’000 HK$'000

EERNBREH Contracted but not provided for
— KRB - investment properties 182 188
— W% BBERE - properties, plant and equipment 469 469
651 657

{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited
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fn OBl R R R eERE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPERATING LEASING ARRANGEMENT

As lessor

At 31 December 2023, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease payments receivable under non-

cancellable operating leases as follows:

2023 2022
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HKs'000

5 b EE Land and buildings
F—FNA Within one year 8,197 7,364
F_F In the second year 9,073 6,482
F=F In the third year 9,048 6,957
EHF In the fourth year 7,674 6,929
ERF In the fifth year 5,760 6,912
FERERIAE In the sixth year and thereafter - 5,760
39,752 40,404

AEBERBKEHELHFHEREREY
¥ - HEKRRELERBEN  LES
— RIS - BFE—FRNF
WHB L BEERANBEEES

The Group leases its investment properties under
operating lease arrangements. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of terms and conditions, including tenures
ranging from one to eight years and fixed rentals

throughout the tenures.
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32 HEREREXRTE

32 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) FRiANAMNMIKLSFENIRE (a) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to
MA 2R ¥ B8R net cash inflow from operations
2023 2022
(E5)
(Restated)
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HKS$’000
B 35 B VA Profit before taxation 29,761 472,459
FEE - Adjustments for:
FE(GBLZ N B ZEE Share of results of associates (67,488) (476,271)
KEYESEHATFE Fair value losses on revaluation of
&8 investment properties 1,013 2,284
WE R Depreciation and amortisation 2,152 1,978
BECEERENES  Write back of impairment loss on
e GS) credit-impaired loans to customers
B 1R and interest receivable (2,845) (6,294)
R AET ERER Impairment loss on debt investments at
AR EEE amortised cost 150 _
— KB E N RS Loss on dilution of interest
SR E R in an associate 15,724 .
HEWE W KRB  Losses/(gains) on disposal of property, plant
B8, (M) and equipment 13 )
FEBUA Interest income (38,843) (31,463)
EEERENEFER  Interestincome from credit-impaired
F B HBA loans to customers (5,603) (3,822)
B H Interest expenses 41,366 21,558
BATEFBIEZYIEES  Net realised and unrealised gains
SRMEENEERR on financial assets at fair value
RERU T FHE through profit or loss (16,575) (17,737)
PE 5 5185 58 Net exchange losses 6,276 27,689
MBESEHEMN Changes in working capital:
RaE 4 EEL Increase in insurance contract assets (1,461) -
BREREHEEE N Increase in reinsurance contract assets (3,281) (6,578)
EEEREMNEFEER  Decrease in credit-impaired loans to
R e U 1) 8 customers and interest receivable 5,975 9,885
HiFEUEBESX « FEfHFX  (Increase)/decrease in other debtors,
Rigg (3%h) R prepayments and deposits (2,174) 11,154
REA BB Increase in insurance contract liabilities 42,506 31,550
BRBREABEEN Increase in reinsurance contract liabilities (323) 5,692
H b AT BR R M B AT Increase/(decrease) in other creditors and
AN CRd) accruals 11,682 (2,081)
1R ESEENIR & AR Net cash inflow from operations 18,025 40,001

{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued])

(b) REEPRARE EFEFELES (b) Changes in the Group’s liabilities and
BREIPEHERNE T pledged term deposit arising from
15 B11EI S R IEIR £ EE) financing activities, including both cash
and non-cash changes
2023 2022
BRRR
il £ EE
foes  HESE  EEER EARS BB Lmfomthe  HERE  EEEX  EARE
Bank lease  Pledged Dividend 4 Bank  controllng lease  Pledged  Dividend i
borrowings  liabilities termdeposits  payable Net  borowings ~shareholder liabilties ~temdeposts payable Net
B8Fr  BEFr BETn BEFL BETn | BETr BRI BRr BRI BEFr o BETr
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'O00  HKS'000  HKS'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HKS'000
MATE At 1 January 692,594 833 (233,034) - 460,393 497,308 99,985 1063 598,356
BERSREY Changes from financing
cash flows
EEERRRER Loan repaid o the
controlling shareholder - - - - - - (100,000) - - - (100,000)
QERmER Bank loans obtained 1,606,200 - - - 1,606,200 73470 - - - - T34
EERTER Bank loans repaid (1,443,241 - - - (1443.241) | (54059%) - - S - (54059%)
TAEREEE Other borrowing costs paid 690) - - - (690) (51) - - - - (51)
e Lease payments - (47) - - (247) - - (30 - - (230)
Xfika Dividend paid - - (men  (men) - - - - e )
FHER Placement of
ehEa pledged term deposits - - - - - (u80) - (80
Total changes from
financing cash flows 162,269 (247) - (men) 90,351 194,074 (100,000) 30 (477180) (1671)  (225007)
$hesy: Non-cash changes:
EizE Translation differences - - 6570 - 6,570 - - - 20810 - 20810
ElHERM Increase i nterest eceivable - - (7500 - (500 = = - (e - (6
ke Dividend declared - - - 7,67 71,67 - - = = il il
Effesii Amortisation o other
Bz borrowing costs 107 - - 107 1212 15 - - - 121
FaiEy B Tota non-cash changes 707 - 90 76M M8 1212 15 e TIEN e
M2A318 At 31 December 855,570 586 (233964) - 622,192 692,594 - 833 (233,034) - 460393
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33 REAEEAX%

BRI AER S M F R B B0 RSN
AEBAELTEBEBENETHEKRE
BMAOTRXZWENT :

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements, significant related
party transactions which were carried out in the

normal course of the Group’s business are as follows:

(@ M2023F 128318 K& B & (a)
BFRER SREBER (2IAEX
SENBECRERE NEXRE
5T 75 ¥ 21,8638 7T (20224F : B
¥32,622870) ° WEFHHFE
N—REEFNEAFE  AEER
FANARLFAEENFERA BB
#8278 7T (20224 : BHETI2E
JT) °

b) RER ' AEE—XR2ENEBEA (b)
A AR B B Bl RS A R B T Lk
MABRITHNENERBRAEGE
B 4538 T (202245 : B 612
BL) WEREEAEE AR
HWE=EEFAMEINEGRM
WHRHEBRER - ZWB RN
RERR—REESpEEEN
EBTASEBEREINASAEE
1,742 87T (2022 F : &% 1,495 8
JL) ©

(00 FEEBAEB (c)

SRITHA BE 2 2023 F 2022
F12A3BIEFENMESOT :

At 31 December 2023, the Group had deposits
with XIB, CYB and LIB, all are associated financial
institutions of the Group, totalling HK$218.63
million (2022: HK$326.22 million). These deposits
carried interest at normal commercial rates and
had generated interest income of HK$8.27 million
(2022: HKS$7.72 million) to the Group during the
year.

A wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group
underwrote insurance policies with gross
insurance premiums less discounts of HK$4.53
million (2022: HK$6.12 million) to the associated
financial institutions of the Group at prices and
terms not less favourable than those contracted
with other third party customers of the Group
during the year. That subsidiary also paid
commissions of HK$17.42 million (2022: HK$14.95
million) to an associated financial institution for
business referred to the Group during the year.

Key management personnel
The senior executives’ emoluments for the year

ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 are detailed
as follows:

2023 2022

BT T B F T

HKS$’000 HKS$'000

Yk Directors’ fees 1,020 970
HE EEREM Salaries, housing and other allowances,

EAEA R B YR 2R and benefits in kind 7,241 5,910
BB TSI Contributions to retirement benefit scheme 96 926
i Bonus 4,140 4,055

12,497 11,031
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position

B of the Company at the end of the reporting year is as
follows:
2023 2022
(&%)
(Restated)
BT T B F T
HK$’000 HK$'000
BE Assets
W - 2R KR Property, plant and equipment 3,348 3,613
FRAEEE Right-of-use assets 4,600 7,088
KEYE Investment properties 51,719 55,257
i)EEPNG] Subsidiaries 1,499,551 1,496,017
& A A) Associates 972,776 972,776
BATEF AEHMAEE  Financial assets at fair value through
e mEE other comprehensive income 597,383 606,943
R HK AT ER Debt investments at
BIEIRE amortised cost 113,369 =
HbFEUERSEY - TERTEX Other debtors, prepayments and
)NEisia deposits 702 649
HAFEFE BBV Financial assets at fair value through
HemEE profit or loss 9,531 9,240
fE—RHIEBARALE  Dividend receivable from a subsidiary - 4,500
FEHATFR Term deposits 130,627 235,499
ReRREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 179,353 70,883
BEE Total assets 3,562,959 3,462,465
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34 I AEIFFRIRE (48)

THE COMPANY (Continued)

34 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

2023 2022
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000

= Equity

& A Share capital 1,715,377 1,715,377

HinfEEe Other reserves 336,510 362,303

IREE & A Retained profits 594,206 627,911

ERemE Total equity 2,646,093 2,705,591

=L Liabilities

HMENBRER R EZTE A Other creditors and accruals 26,620 17,837

HEAE Lease liabilities 2,563 4,972

RITER Bank borrowings 855,570 692,594

R ANHARL IR Current income tax payable - 23,689

EEEREE Deferred income tax liabilities 32,113 17,782

BwEE Total liabilities 916,866 756,874

EEREE Equity and liabilities 3,562,959 3,462,465

T3k WANG Fei

E1 Director

=l CHEN Yu

E1 Director
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)

@) FRAFARREREBEEZHEN (@) Information on the movement of the total equity
R during the year is as follows:
Aftfitae
Other reserves
NYE HEERE Htt
R EfiHES fifEe
(FAER) Leasehold &% RREs
R& Fair value buildings Total REEA am
Share reserve  revaluation other Retained Total
capital (non-recycling) reserve reserves profits equity
AEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT AEFT AEFT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R202F1 /18 At 1 January 2022 1,715,377 582,528 2,340 584,868 583,156 2,883,401
KEEHET Profit for the year = = = = 116,212 116,212
B2 EhE Other comprehensive income - (222,565) - (222,565) - (222,565)
RE Dividend - - - - (71,671) (71,671)
BRIRRERARE  Unclaimed dividends forfeited - - - - 24 24
RN202F12A318 At 31 December 2022 1,715,377 359,963 2,340 362,303 627,911 2,705,591
M203FE1A18 At1January 2023 1,715,377 359,963 2,340 362,303 627,911 2,705,591
AERH Profit for the year - - - - 37,966 37,966
Efp2mEbE Other comprehensive income = (25,793) - (25,793) - (25,793)
RE Dividend - - - - (1671 (71,671)
R2023E12A318 At 31 December 2023 1,715,377 334,170 2,340 336,510 594,206 2,646,093
—Z— =43} Annual Report 2023
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35 MiE T 35 SUBSIDIARIES
UTHERBENR2023F12A318 K The following list contains the particulars of those
2022F 12 A BHASENESE & subsidiaries at 31 December 2023 and 31 December
EXBEEEATENNEB AR - 2022 which principally affected the results, assets or

liabilities of the Group.
R EETR A5E
B HRRAHE FiifER
Place of Particulars Group's TEEK
incorporation of issued and equity Principal
INGIES Name of company and operation paid up capital interest activity
HERE Directly held
SEBRARLA Dorfine Development Limited Bk W (&) 100% NERE
Hong Kong 2 shares (HK$2) Property investment
BREEZEERLAA"?  Fujian Minxin Investments Co, Ltd"?  PEARLTE EWER 100% REER
(7%1,031,434,8007C)
The People’s Paid-in capital Investment holding
Republic of China (HK$1,031,434,800)
BiERRERAT Min Xin Insurance Company Limited 4 5,500E % 100% AR
(%2350ET) —fRiRR %
Hong Kong 55 million shares Writing of general
(HK$235 million) insurance business
“Hm=EEEEEH  Sanming Sanyuan District Minin REARLNE EWER 100% o NEE
BRAR" Micro Credit Company Limited"” (ARE3ET) REAEZEH
The People’s Paid-in capital Provision of
Republic of China (RMB300 million) micro credit and
entrusted loans
REERAE Take Chance Company Limited B YR (BT 100% WERE
Hong Kong 2 shares (HKS2) Property investment
RBERRAT] Thousand Limited &k 1k(E%1T) 100% REBR
Hong Kong 1 share (HK$1) Investment holding
FERRARAA Welljet Development Limited Bk WR(E%2T) 100% VEST
Hong Kong 2 shares (HK$2) Property investment
o AR BRI AHA L RSB INEE D - & Wholly foreign-owned enterprises incorporated and operated
in Mainland China.
@ RRAFER 2022 F i EWZ TR RIBRE @ The Company has capitalised the dividend receivable from this
A 18,000,000 7T (5518 7% # 20,898,600 subsidiary of RMB18,000,000 (equivalent to HK$20,898,600) as
TL) B AZ T AR ERER - the paid-in capital of the subsidiary in 2022.
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36 EHRHBERFA

EEMN2HMREBHEREL T :

(a)

M2023F 12 8190 @ RERBER
EERAR ([BERE]) BB
ABFHEEEEANE LR —
mhEEWE EEREREER
EHHECNEEEEMNmH—E
WAYE ([HEWZE]) - 52024
F1A1H #8 E2026F12 A31H
AP =F FH&DFAEAR
" 468,863 7T * A X % 468,863 7T
T AR#E 482,974 T °

FHE - BEEEEAELAF &S
Bee R mH AR AR (e
B EAEBE AR S —HHEE
Wi BERERERFEER
HHEBEEYZE  82024F1 A1H
B E2026F 128318 1t AH =
FFH2ORAARE551,604
T AR #551,6047C & AR
568,152 7T ©

TEERSBERESENNE
AR BEREEBEREEAR
RABERRER - Lt HE #
N HRETHNRZBRAREN
KEMERS BRARGEZHEM
BT LEHARAUFE+TMATHR
E o AR AR R E A B H AR
SENFEREIZETLTR
AR ENEZIEF -

KR E2ENB AR =ZHM =
TEREENEERARAR ([=
TTNE]) ERFRMRIEEIF R
RRLEWERARE12ETTH
e ZHEBON2024F3A87
BESIE =T/ ENBERE
ABEBBRLEARE18ET - =
TT/NE EFEREITH B RANR A
EHARE 128 -

36 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in these
consolidated financial statements, a summary of
significant events after the reporting period are
disclosed as follows:

(a)

On 19 December 2023, Fujian Minxin Investments
Co., Ltd. (“Fujian Minxin") as the lessee has
entered into a lease agreement with Vigour Fine
as the lessor whereby Vigour Fine has agreed to
lease an office property located in Fuzhou, Fujian
Province (the “Leasehold Property”) to Fujian
Minxin for a period of 3 years from 1 January
2024 to 31 December 2026 at an annual rental
of RMB468,863, RMB468,863 and RMB482,974
respectively.

On the same day, Fujian Minxin as the lessor
has entered into another lease agreement with
Zhongmin Energy Co., Ltd (“Zhongmin Energy”)
as the lessee whereby Fujian Minxin has agreed
to lease the Leasehold Property to Zhongmin
Energy for a period of 3 years from 1 January
2024 to 31 December 2026 at an annual rental
of RMB551,604, RMB551,604 and RMB568,152
respectively.

Zhongmin Energy is a subsidiary of FIDG and
both FIDG and Vigour Fine are the controlling
shareholder of the Company. The transactions
contemplated under the above lease agreements
constitute continuing connected transactions
of the Company but are fully exempt from the
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The Company will engage its auditor
to perform review procedures on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions under the
requirements of the Listing Rules.

Sanming Sanyuan District Minxin Micro Credit
Company Limited (“Sanyuan Micro Credit”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
has submitted an application to the relevant
authorities for the reduction of its paid-in
capital of RMB120 million during the year. The
application was approved on 7 March 2024 and
the paid-in capital of Sanyuan Micro Credit was
reduced to RMB180 million thereafter. Sanyuan
Micro Credit is applying to the bank to remit
RMB120 million to the Company.
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SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTY INTERESTS HELD BY THE GROUP

AEER2023FE12A31AFEERENE

Details of the Group’s principal property interests held for

BEQEDET

The People’s Republic of China

{5 EABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

EYERRFBEOT investment as at 31 December 2023 are as follows:
8- BiRgE
% EfER BE%
B Group's Approximate
Lease attributable gross floor BRR%
fi Location expiry interest area Existing use
A7l % 5 Rsq.

1 WEARDERES7-8655 Shops 7 &8 on ground floor including 2049 100 17,190 5E3
KEREH MBI 7585 store 8 on the cockloft therein and Commercial
BRENEE 1 ERE the whole of 1st and 2nd floors
ZE Winfield Building

847-865 Canton Road, Yaumatei
Hong Kong

) REARLRERREENT 22/F (excluding partial area of unit no. 1) 2044 100 37,09 Fof 3
ARE58F IR ES 2218 and 23/F, Worldwide Plaza Commercial
(PeE1RESHER) 158 Wusi Road, Fuzhou, Fujian
k23 The People’s Republic of China

3 PEARLAERRABNT Carpark Nos. #24 to #28 and #42 to #48 2044 100 5227 S
AR ES T =B Basement Level 3, Worldwide Plaza Commercial
BURBI4Z N R#42E 148 158 Wusi Road, Fuzhou, Fujian

The People’s Republic of China

4 PREARARERRERMT Unit C2 & D2, 25/F, Huafu Building 2063 100 2450 fx

AERINRERAR 121 Gutian Road, Fuzhou, Fujian Residential
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RESBEARAF

17th Floor, Fairmont House
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Tel s
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Website #911t :
Email EH:
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